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CEO'S STATEMENT
THRUBES

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Kai
Yuan Holdings Limited (the “Company”) together with its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the "Group” or “Kai Yuan”), | now present the
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 (the "Year”),
together with the comparative figures for the year ended 31 December
2021 (the “Preceding Year”).

The Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$41.1 million for the
Year, as compared to the loss of approximately HK$164.4 million for
the Preceding Year. The reduction in the loss for the Year is mainly
attributable to (i) the increase in the revenue contributed by the Paris
Marriott Hotel Champs-Elysées (the “Paris Marriott Hotel”) from the hotel
operation segment; (ii) the absence of provision of impairment on the
investment in an associate of the Company for the Year, as the investment
in the associate had been fully provided for impairment; (iii) the absence
of share of loss from the associate of the Company during the Year; (iv)
the reduction in provision of the expected credit loss on the loan and
interest receivables from the associate of the Company; and (v) the record
of the fair value gain as opposed to fair value loss from the unsecured
convertible bonds subscribed by the Company for the Year.

The revenue contributed by the Paris Marriott Hotel increased during
the Year. With the lifting of almost all of lockdown measures and travel
restrictions, the strong desire to resume international travel causing
tourists flocked back to Paris. Paris has seen and benefited from the rise of
the “revenge travel” trend. The return of the international leisure guests
had led to strong increase in guestroom prices. The strong demand of
hotel rooms in Paris has shown positive feedback on the sustainable
rebound in occupancy, average daily rate and revenue per available room
of the Paris Marriott Hotel in 2022. During the Year, the Paris Marriott
Hotel was partially closed to undergo the Phase 1 renovation (“Phase 1
Renovation”) on the guestrooms and corridors facing the Avenue des
Champs-Elysées. Phase 1 Renovation of the hotel was completed in late
October 2022.

Regarding the investment in and loan to It RS IHEB B AR A
7] (Beijing Chemical Reaction Engineering Science & Technology Co.,
Limited*) (the "Associate”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Associate
Group”) in which the Group had 37.125% equity interests, the Group
recorded impairment provision in total of approximately HK$137.5 million
covering the provision for impairment on the investment, the share of
loss and the provision for the expected credit loss on the loan and interest
receivables from the Associate in the Preceding Year. During the Year, the
Associate Group continues to be operating at a loss, the Group recorded
the provision for the expected credit loss of approximately HKS$3.5 million
on the loan and interest receivables. After the Associate Group failed to
pay two instalments of interests in the second half of 2022, the Group
issued demand letters to the Associate Group for, among other matters,
repayment of overdue interest, as well as the principal amount of loan.
On 19 January 2023, the Group made an application to the People’s Court
of Leling City, Shandong, the PRC (IR & %M A R)ABR) (the “Court
of Leling City”) to apply for enforcement of pledged assets such that
the proceeds could be applied towards repayment of the loan principal,
interest and penalty relating thereto. On 20 February 2023, the Court of
Leling City accepted this case for hearing.

*  For identification purposes only
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The three-year unsecured, interest bearing convertible bonds
(“Convertible Bonds") subscribed continued to contribute interest income
of approximately HK$7.8 million (2021: approximately HK$7.8 million) to
the Group. Due to the adjustment of fair value of the Convertible Bonds,
the Group recorded the fair value gain of approximately HK$0.4 million
as opposed to the fair value loss of approximately HK$9.6 million for the
Preceding Year.

Further details on the operations of the Group for the Year will be
provided in the section headed Management Discussion and Analysis.

Looking forward, the Board has the expectation that the demand for
hotel rooms for the international travellers in Paris is sustainable in
2023, paving the way to the full recovery of the hotel room demand to
the pre-coronavirus pandemic level in 2019. Despite having positive
anticipation, the prospect of the Paris Marriott Hotel will be challenging
due to a number of factors, such as the continuous increase in prices in
Europe under the continuous interest hike environment; the ongoing
geopolitical tension between Ukraine and Russia; the social unrest
caused by the worker class, and the adoption of new law on renewable
energy, carbon-neutral and climate related policies in France. Regarding
the interests in the Associate, the business operation of the Associate
Group proceeds as usual. The Board shall continue to closely monitor its
investment in the Associate.

In conclusion and on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to express my gratitude to all shareholders, customers,
employees, suppliers and business partners for their continuous support
and encouragement.

On behalf of the Board
Xue Jian
Executive director and Chief Executive Officer

27 March 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW

Overview

For the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$153.5 million, representing an increase of
approximately 63.4% from the approximately HK$93.9 million for the
Preceding Year. The significant increase in revenue during the Year was
mainly attributable to the increase in the revenue contributed by the
Paris Marriott Hotel Champs-Elysées (“Paris Marriott Hotel”) of the hotel
operation segment.

Regarding the investment in and loan to an associate, reference is made
to the announcement of the Company dated 29 November 2021, the
annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021
and the interim report of the Company for the six months ended 30 June
2022, in relation to among other matters, the performance of 1t & ]l
AR AR 2 7l (Beijing Chemical Reaction Engineering Science &
Technology Co., Limited*) (the “"Associate”, together with its subsidiaries,
the “Associate Group”), the provision for impairment on the investment
in the Associate, the provision for the expected credit loss on the loan
and interest receivable for the year ended 31 December 2021, as well as
receipt of loan interest from the Associate Group during the six months
ended 30 June 2022. The Associate Group continued to be operating at a
loss during the Year. During the Preceding Year, the Group had recorded
the full provision for impairment on the investment in an associate. As a
result, the Group did not record any share of loss of an associate during
the Year (2021: approximately HK$25.5 million). Regarding the loan and
interest receivables from an associate, the Group recorded the provision
for expected credit loss of approximately HK$3.5 million during the Year
(2021: approximately HK$103.6 million). Further details on the provision
for expected credit loss will be provided at the segmental review below.

With regard to the three-year convertible bonds (“Convertible Bonds")
subscribed by the Group recorded under financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, the Group recorded the fair value gain of
approximately HK$0.4 million for the Year, as opposed to fair value loss
of approximately HK$9.6 million for the Preceding Year. The record of the
fair value gain was due to the adjustment of fair value of the Convertible
Bonds.

*for identification purposes only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group recorded the loss for the Year of approximately HK$41.1
million, representing a decrease of approximately 75.0% from the loss of
approximately HK$164.4 million for the Preceding Year. The reduction
in the loss for the Year is mainly attributable to (i) the reduction in the
Group's gross loss attributable to the increase in revenue to HK$153.5
million for the Year (2021: approximately HK$93.9 million); (i) the absence
of provision of impairment on the investment in the Associate for the
Year as the investment in the Associate had been fully provided for
impairment; (iii) the absence of share of loss from the Associate for the
Year; (iv) the provision of the expected credit loss on the loan and interest
receivables from the Associate for the Year decreased to approximately
HK$3.5 million (2021: approximately HK$103.6 million); and (v) the record
of the fair value gain as opposed to fair value loss from the unsecured
Convertible Bonds invested by the Company for the Year. The loss
attributable to owners of the Company for the Year was approximately
HKS$41.1 million, as compared to the loss of approximately HK$164.4
million for the Preceding Year. The basic and diluted loss per share for
the Year was HK0.32 cents, as compared to the basic and diluted loss per
share of HK1.29 cents for the Preceding Year.

The total non-current assets of the Group as at 31 December 2022
amounted to approximately HK$2,440.1 million, representing the
decrease of approximately 9.6% from approximately HK$2,698.5 million
as at 31 December 2021. The decrease in the total non-current assets of
the Group during the Year was mainly due to the reclassification of the
loan to an associate from non-current assets to current assets, as the loan
expiry date was less than one year; the increase in the derivative financial
instruments due to the increase in interest rate; and the reclassification of
the investment in the Convertible Bonds to current assets; but reduced
by the depreciation of Euro against Hong Kong Dollar. The total current
assets of the Group as at 31 December 2022 amounted to approximately
HK$1,176.4 million, representing an increase of approximately 15.7% from
approximately HK$1,016.7 million as at 31 December 2021. The increase
in the current assets of the Group during the Year was mainly due to the
reclassification of the loan to an associate from non-current assets; the
increase in trade receivables; and the reclassification of the investment in
the Convertible Bonds from non-current assets; but compensated by the
reduction in the pledged deposits.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DN

The total current liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2022
amounted to approximately HK$92.6 million, representing an increase
of approximately 44.2% from approximately HK$64.2 million as at 31
December 2021. The increase in the total current liabilities of the Group
during the Year was mainly due the increase in trade payables, other
payables and accruals, and tax payable. The total non-current liabilities
of the Group as at 31 December 2021 amounted to approximately
HKS$1,593.4 million, representing a decrease of approximately 4.4% from
approximately HK$1,667.3 million as at 31 December 2021. The decrease
in the non-current liabilities was mainly due to the reduction in the
interest-bearing bank borrowings as the result of the depreciation of Euro
against Hong Kong Dollar.

Segmental review of the Group’s operations during the Year is as follows:

Hotel Operation

The Group recorded the revenue of approximately HK$153.5 million from
the hotel operation segment, representing the increase of approximately
63.4%, from the approximately HK$93.9 million for the Preceding Year.
The increase in revenue of the hotel operation segment for the Year was
mainly attributable to the increase in revenue contributed by the Paris
Marriott Hotel. Despite the Paris Marriott Hotel was partially closed for
renovation, the hotel was opened for more days during the Year than the
Preceding Year. The increase in average daily rate achieved during the
Year also contributed to the increase in revenue.

With the lifting of almost all of lockdown measures and travel restrictions,
the strong desire to resume international travel causing tourists flocked
back to Paris. According to Google Flights data, Paris remained one of
the top-Googled travel destinations of 2022. Despite the total number
of tourists visiting France in 2022 remained lagging behind that of 2019
(2022: approximately 82.6 million; 2019: approximately 90.0 million),
Paris has seen and benefited from the rise of the “revenge travel” trend.
The exchange rate of Euro against the United States dollar also provided
another advantage for the United States tourists to travel to Europe. The
return of the international leisure guests had led to strong increase in
guestroom prices. The strong demand of hotel rooms in Paris has shown
positive feedback on the sustainable rebound in occupancy, average daily
rate and revenue per available room of the Paris Marriott Hotel in 2022.

During the Year, the Paris Marriott Hotel was partially closed to undergo
the Phase 1 renovation (“Renovation”) on the guestrooms and corridors
facing the Avenue des Champs-Elysées, and kitchen. The Renovation
commenced on 3 January 2022 and was planned to complete on 8 June
2022. However, the completion date was delayed to late October 2022
due to the shortage of skilled labour in France.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group recorded the loss of approximately HK$51.0 million in this
segment for the Year, as compared to the loss of approximately HK$29.1
million for the Preceding Year. The increase in loss of this segment during
the Year was mainly attributable to government grants received from the
coronavirus pandemic relief was significantly reduced during the Year.

Below is a comparison of the operational performance of the Paris
Marriott Hotel during the Year against the Preceding Year.
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Money Lending

The Group did not record any revenue from this segment during the Year
(the Preceding Year: Nil). The Group recorded a loss of approximately
HK$0.9 million from this segment for the Year, as compared to the loss
of approximately HK$0.6 million for the Preceding Year. There was no
mortgage loan receivable as at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021:
Nil).

Equity Investment and Other Investment

Interests in an Associate

As disclosed in the section headed Business Review above as well as
the announcement of the Company dated 19 January 2023, after the
Associate Group had failed to pay two instalments of interests in the
second half of 2022, the Group had sought legal advice and issued
demand letters to the Associate Group for, among other matters,
repayment of overdue interest, as well as the principal amount of loan
of approximately HK$201.5 million (RMB 180 million) (“Loan Principal”)
and the relevant penalty. On 19 January 2023, the Group made an
application to the People’s Court of Leling City, Shandong, the PRC (LU 3R
HEapEm ARIART) (the "Court of Leling City") to apply for enforcement
(the "Enforcement”) of pledged assets such that the proceeds could
be applied towards repayment of the Loan Principal, the interests and
penalty relating thereto. On 20 February 2023, the Court of Leling City
accepted this case for hearing.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DN

In light of the reasons given the 2021 annual report, the supplemental
announcement of the Company date 15 September 2022, and the
circumstances stated above. The Company carried out an assessment
on whether an allowance for expected credit loss (“ECL") is required
on the loan to an associate and interest receivables (“Financial Assets”)
in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 9
("HKFRS 9). Pursuant to HKFRS 9, credit loss is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the
contract and all cash flows that the entity expects to receive, discounted
at the original effective interest rate or credit-adjusted effective interest
rate on purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets. The
method used for the measurement of ECL should reflect: an unbiased
weighted amount, the time value of money and the reasonable and
supportable information about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions available at the reporting date
without undue cost or effort. The Company engaged an independent
valuer (the “Valuer”) to perform assessment on the valuation on the ECL of
the Financial Assets as at 31 December 2022 (“Valuation Report”). During
the Year, a provision for ECL on the Financial Assets of approximately
HK$3.5 million (2021: approximately HK$103.6 million) was recorded.

The ECL Valuation

According to the Valuation Report, the ECL model divides financial
assets into three stages according to the credit risk status to ensure the
appropriate and timely recognition of ECL:

Stage 1, i.e. the stage of high-quality assets, which applies
to assets or portfolios with low credit risk and no significant
increase in risk since their initial recognition. Provision shall be
made for credit losses that may occur within 12 months after the
reporting date, i.e. 12-month ECL. Interest income is calculated by
multiplying the effective interest rate by the amount of assets.

Stage 2, i.e. the stage of decline in asset quality, which applies
to financial assets or portfolios with a significant expected
increase in credit risk but no objective impairment events since
their initial recognition. Provision shall be made for ECL over the
assets’ lifetime, i.e., lifetime ECL. Interest income is calculated by
multiplying the effective interest rate by the amount of assets.

Stage 3, i.e. the stage of deterioration of asset quality to “non-
performing”, which applies to financial assets under Stage 2 that
suffer from credit impairment (i.e. loss events). Lifetime ECL shall
be continuously recognised. Interest income is calculated based
on amortised cost, i.e. the gross carrying amount less the net
impairment allowance.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Upon analysis and discussions with the Company’s management on the
borrower’s credit risk profile, the Valuer consider the Financial Assets
conformed with the characteristics of Stage 3 above. Accordingly, the
Valuer had used the following formula in making the ECL assessment:

ECL = value of the pledged assets — outstanding amount relating to the
construction-in-progress as regards the pledged assets — default debt
exposure position

(i) Value of the Pledged Asset

The Valuer valued the pledged assets (“Pledged Assets”) on the
basis of the Group’s recovery in the event of liquidation of the
Associate Group member holding the Pledged Assets, being
the “orderly liquidation value” (1§ )5 B E1E) (the "OLV"). An
OLV refers to an estimate of the gross amount that the tangible
assets would fetch in an auction-style liquidation with the seller
needing to sell the assets on an “as-is, where-is” basis. Pursuant
to the Valuation Report, the OLV of the Pledged Assets was
RMB147.1 million (equivalent to approximately HK$164.7 million)
as at 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB150.6 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$182.5 million).

In calculating the OLV of the Pledged Assets, the Valuer had (i)
assessed the fair value of the land parcel primarily by making
reference to certain comparable transactions available in the
area where the assessed object is located by referring to the land
transactions disclosed by the local land reserve centre and public
domain; and (ii) assessed the fair value of construction-in-progress
by analysing the value of the new built assets and adjusting
factors based on market data and their useful life.

(ii) Outstanding amount relating to the construction-in-progress as
regards the Pledged Assets
The outstanding amount relating to the construction-in-progress
as regards the Pledged Assets amounted to RMB37.7 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$42.2 million) as at 31 December
2022 (2021: RMB38.9 million (equivalent to approximately
HKS$47.1 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DN

(iii) Default debt exposure position
As at 31 December 2022, the Group's default debt exposure
position was equivalent to the outstanding principal amount and
interest under the Loan, being RMB204.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$229.7 million). By applying the above formula,
the ECL had come to the amount of RMB94.6 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$107.2 million). Accordingly, the Company
recorded the provision for impairment of approximately HK$3.5
million to the Financial Assets as at 31 December 2022 (2021:
RMB87.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$103.6 million)).

Convertible Bonds

During the Year, the Group recorded the interest from the Convertible
Bonds of approximately HK$7.8 million (2021: approximately HK$7.8
million). During the Year, the Group recorded the fair value gain of
approximately HK$0.4 million from the Convertible Bonds (2021: fair value
loss of approximately HK$9.6 million), due to the adjustment of fair value
of the Convertible Bonds.

PROSPECTS

Hotel Operation

Paris is a unique leisure travel destination for international travelers, it is
expected to enjoy the higher rise in room rates during recovery in 2023.
The Board has the expectation that the demand for hotel rooms for the
international travelers in 2022 is sustainable in 2023, paving the way to the
full recovery of the hotel room demand to the pre-coronavirus pandemic
level in 2019. In addition to hosting recurring trade shows, sports and
holiday events, Paris will be hosting a series of mega events such as Rugby
World Cup 2023 and the Paris Summer Olympics in 2024. The Board is of
the opinion that such mega events will continue to boost the hospitality
business in Paris as a whole. Despite having positive anticipation, the
prospect of the Paris Marriott Hotel will be challenging due to a number
of factors, such as the continuous increase in prices in Europe under the
continuous interest hike environment; the ongoing geopolitical tension
between Ukraine and Russia; the social unrest caused by the worker class
and the adoption of new law on renewable energy, carbon-neutral and
climate related policies in France.

Meanwhile, the Board is considering the proposals of the Phase 2
renovation of the Paris Marriott Hotel on the rest of the guestrooms, guest
welcoming area, and internal facilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Money Lending

The Board considers Hong Kong’s mortgage loan market will remain
challenging, being heavily competitive with uncertain prospects. The
Board would exercise the utmost caution when conducting mortgage
loan business in Hong Kong.

Equity Investment and Other Investment

Interests in an Associate

As disclosed in the section headed Equity Investment and Other
Investment above, the Enforcement was accepted for filing by the
Court of Leling City on 20 February 2023. The Company will keep its
shareholders and investors informed of any material development
relating to the Enforcement, and will publish relevant announcements as
and when appropriate in accordance with the Listing Rules. As at the date
of this report, the business operation of the Associate Group proceeds
as usual. The Board shall continue to closely monitor its investment in
the Associate. Further announcement will be published by the Company
as and when appropriate if there are any significant changes to the
Associate.

Convertible Bonds

The interest income received from the Convertible Bonds offered a
premium over the interest rates of fixed deposit. The Directors are of the
view that the Convertible Bonds would continue to enhance the income
of the Group.

LOOKING AHEAD

The Board will concurrently review the Group’s portfolio to restructure
and enhance the quality of assets held. The Board will also continue to
explore investment opportunities from new business segments with a
view to enhancing and improving returns to the Company’s stakeholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DN

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2022, total assets and net assets of the Group were
approximately HK$3,616.6 million and HK$1,930.6 million respectively (31
December 2021: approximately HKS$3,715.2 million and HK$1,983.7 million,
respectively). The cash and bank balance of the Group as at 31 December
2022 were approximately HK$700.2 million, and were denominated in
Hong Kong dollar, Euro, United States dollar and Renminbi (31 December
2021: approximately HK$871.7 million). The total current assets of the
Group as at 31 December 2022 were approximately HK$1,176.4 million (31
December 2021: approximately HK$1,016.7 million). As at 31 December
2022, the Group had net current assets of approximately HK$1,083.9
million (31 December 2021: approximately HK$952.5 million). The
Group adopted a conservative treasury approach and had tight control
over its cash management. As at 31 December 2022, the Group had
outstanding bank loans and other borrowings amounted to approximately
HK$1,450.1 million' (31 December 2021: approximately HK$1,516.8 million),
none of which (31 December 2021: Nil) were due within one year. As at 31
December 2022, the Group's gearing ratio (total borrowings/total assets)
was approximately 40.1% (31 December 2021: approximately 40.8%).
The Group constantly monitors its cash flow position, maturity profile of
borrowings, availability of banking facilities, gearing ratio and interest rate
exposure.

(1) Approximately HK$1,450.1 million (equivalent to €175,000,000) at the
interest rate of 3 months EURIBOR plus 2.2% per annum.

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
During the Year, the Group had no material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group had operations in France, Luxembourg, the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") and Hong Kong where transactions and cash flow
were denominated in local currencies, including Euro, Renminbi, United
States dollars and Hong Kong dollars. As a result, the Group was exposed
to foreign currency exposure with respect to Euro and Renminbi, which
mainly occurred from conducting daily operations and financing activities
through local offices where local currencies were different from the
Group. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had not entered
into any forward contracts to hedge the foreign exchange exposure. The
Group managed its foreign exchange risks by performing regular review
and monitoring of foreign exchange exposure. The Group would consider
employing foreign exchange hedging arrangements when appropriate
and necessary.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no contingent liabilities.

PLEDGE ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, cash deposits amounting to approximately
HK$19.8 million (31 December 2021: approximately HK$39.3 million) and
a building of the Group with a net carrying amount of approximately
HK$2,341.2 million (31 December 2021: approximately HK$2,432.3 million)
were pledged to secure bank loan granted to the Group.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

The Group had 7 employees as at 31 December 2022 (31
2021: 7). The total employee remuneration during the Year was
1 December 2021: approximately HK$7.8
million). Remuneration policies were reviewed regularly to ensure that

1 December
appro><|mate|y HK$7.7 million (31

compensation and benefits packages were in line with the market level. In
addition to basic remuneration, the Group also provided other employee
benefits including bonuses, mandatory provident fund scheme, medical
insurance scheme and participation to the share option scheme.
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DIRECTORS' PROFILE
EE[ET

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xue Jian

Mr. Xue Jian, aged 57, was appointed as a non-executive Director on 7
January 2009. Mr. Xue was re-designated as an executive Director on 6
January 2011, and appointed as chief executive officer on 1 June 2016. Mr.
Xue also serves as director to a number of subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Xue received his master’s degree in business administration from
Zhongnan University of Finance, Economics, Politics and Law. Mr. Xue
has over two decades of experience in the steelmaking industry and in
the commercial sector in the PRC. He was the legal representative of
Rizhao Steel Co., Limited*, and is a director of Rizhao Steel Holding Group
Co., Limited*. The Rizhao Steel group of companies is one of the largest
private steel makers in the PRC. Mr. Xue has also been appointed as the
supervisor of Jinghua Rigang Holding Group Co., Limited*. Mr. Xue is
appointed as non-executive director of Qingdao Rural Commercial Bank
Corporation* (Stock Code: 002958.57), the issued shares of which are
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange of the People’s Republic of China.

Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen

Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen, aged 52, was appointed as an executive
Director on 18 May 2011. He has also been appointed as members of the
remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Company
as well as chief financial officer, existing process agent and company
secretary of the Company. Mr. Law also serves as director, company
secretary and legal representative to a number of Group companies. Mr.
Law has extensive experience in financial management and professional
accounting. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Law was the chief financial
officer of Diamondlite Group, one of the leading jewelry manufacturers
in the PRC. Having started his career as a professional accountant in an
international accountancy firm, Mr. Law has undertaken key financial
management positions in companies engaged in a variety of industries.
Mr. Law is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Accountancy
from the City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Law is also appointed as an
independent non-executive director of KML Technology Group Limited,
the issued shares of which are listed on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (Stock Code: 8065).

* For identification purpose only
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tam Sun Wing

Mr. Tam Sun Wing, aged 65, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 14 December 2001. He has also been appointed as
chairman of the audit committee and the remuneration committee, and
the member of the nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Tam is a
professional accountant with more than 30 years of extensive audit and
business advisory experience. Mr. Tam is practicing as a director of FTW &
Partners CPA Limited. Mr. Tam is also a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Tam holds a Master Degree
of Science in Corporate Governance and Directorship from the Hong
Kong Baptist University.

Mr. Ng Ge Bun

Mr. Ng Ge Bun, aged 65, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 30 September 2004. He has also been appointed as
member of the audit committee and the remuneration committee and
chairman of the nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Ng holds the
degree in bachelor of science and degree in bachelor of laws. He obtained
a postgraduate certificate in laws from The University of Hong Kong. He
is a solicitor of the Supreme Court of Hong Kong and currently serves as
a consultant of H.Y. Leung & Co. LLP Solicitors. Mr. Ng is also appointed
as an independent non-executive director of EverChina Int'l Holdings
Company Limited, the issued shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 202).

Mr. He Yi

Mr. He Yi, aged 50, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 18 May 2011. He has been appointed as member of the
audit committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. Mr. He is the chief executive officer of
Shanghai YAOXIN Asset Investment and Management Limited. Prior
to this, he was the general manager of Barclays Bank Shanghai Branch
and has extensive experience in the financial industry. Mr. He started
his career with the Credit Agricole Indosuez in Shanghai and was the
head of treasury department and financial institutions department of
First Sino Bank, the head of global markets China and deputy general
manager of the Shanghai branch of Australia and New Zealand Banking
Group Limited. Mr. He is a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a certified economist accredited by The Ministry
of Personnel of China. Mr. He also holds a postgraduate master degree
of economics from Fudan University, Shanghai, China. Mr. He is an
independent non-executive director of Sunshine Oilsands Limited
("Sunshine QOilsands”) (Stock Code: 2012). Mr. He is also an independent
non-executive director of Future World Holdings Limited (“Future World")
(Stock Code: 572). The issued shares of both Sunshine Oilsands and Future
World are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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EE[ET

Ms. Kwok Pui Ha

Ms. Kwok Pui Ha, aged 53, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director with effect from 1 January 2023. Ms. Kwok has also
been appointed as member of the audit committee, the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee of the Company. Ms. Kwok
started her career with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and she has more
than 28 years of experience in investment management, accounting and
financial management. Being a finance executive, Ms. Kwok has taken
up a broad range of responsibilities including accounting, financing, tax
planning, strategic planning, deal analysis, treasury, legal and company
secretarial matters, as well as human resources management. Ms. Kwok
is currently director of Adanti Limited, a company which is principally
engaged in the provision of business advisory services. Ms. Kwok was
appointed as the head of finance and company secretary of CCIAM Future
Energy Ltd ("CCIAMFE"), the issued shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange, from January 2022 to April 2023. Ms. Kwok had also worked
as head of finance in CITIC International Assets Management Limited, an
affiliate of CITIC Group for 10 years. Ms. Kwok has accumulated extensive
experience in listed companies, including serving as an independent non-
executive director of and as head of finance and company secretary of a
number of main-board listed companies in Hong Kong for more than 20
years. Ms. Kwok is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales, and a member of Hong Kong Securities and Investment
Institute.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board and the management of the Company are committed to
maintaining high standards of corporate governance. Continuous efforts
are made to review and enhance the Group's internal control policy and
procedures in light of local and international developments to instill best
practices.

The Board has set up procedures on corporate governance that comply
with the requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) on corporate governance
practices based on the principles and code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 to
Listing Rules.

The Company had complied with the code provisions of the CG Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2022 with the following
deviations:

C.2.1 The Company does not have a Chairman. No replacement
appointment of the Chairman of the Board was made during
the Year. The role and responsibilities of the Chairman on
governance matters of the Company were shared between the
executive Directors during the Year. The Company will publish
an announcement once an appointment has been made in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

F.2.2 The Company does not have a Chairman, an executive
Director, Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen, was elected to chair the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 2 June 2022 in
accordance with the Bye-laws.

The Board will keep these matters under review.

Following sustained development and growth of the Company, we will
continue to monitor and revise the Company’s corporate governance
policies in order to ensure that such policies meet the general rules and
standards required by the shareholders of the Company.

No appointment of the Chairman of the Board was made during the Year.
The role and responsibilities of the Chairman on governance matters of
the Company were shared between the executive Directors during the
Year. The Company will publish an announcement once an appointment
has been made in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
The Company, having made specific enquiry, has confirmed with the
Directors that they have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions.

THE BOARD AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
STRUCTURE

The Board is responsible for directing the strategic objectives of the
Group and overseeing the management of the business. The Directors are
responsible for leadership and control of the Group. The overall corporate
governance structure of the Company is depicted in the following chart:
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BOARD

(R)

(B)

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises two executive Directors and four
independent non-executive Directors, serving the important
function of guiding the management.

The Board members during the Year and up to the date of this
annual report are as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Xue Jian (Chief executive officer)
Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Tam Sun Wing

Mr. Ng Ge Bun

Mr. He Yi

Ms. Kwok Pui Ha (Ms. Kwok was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director with effect from 1 January 2023)

No Chairman was appointed during the Year. There are no
relationships (including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship) among the Directors. All Directors
are not appointed for a specific term. Although all Directors
are not appointed for a specific term, all Directors, except the
Chairman (if any), are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meetings of the Company pursuant
to the Bye-laws.

ROLE AND FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for formulating the strategic business
development, reviewing and monitoring the business
performance of the Group, as well as preparing and approving
financial statements. The Directors, collectively and individually,
are aware of their responsibilities to shareholders, for the manner
in which the affairs of the Company are managed and operated.
In the appropriate circumstances and as and when necessary,
directors will consent to the seeking of independent professional
advice at the Group's expense, ensuring that board procedures,
and all applicable rules and regulations, are followed.

The Board gives clear directions as to the powers delegated to the
management for the management and administration functions
of the Group, in particular, with respect to the circumstances
where management should report back and obtain prior approval
from the Board before making decisions or entering into any
commitments on behalf of the Group. The Board will review those
arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain
appropriate to the needs of the Group.
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The Board has the full support from the senior management to
discharge its responsibilities. Appropriate insurance cover for the
Directors” and officers' liabilities in respect of legal actions against
the directors and officers of the Company and its subsidiaries
arising out of corporate activities of the Group has been arranged
by the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board had held
meetings and discussed following issues:

1. reviewed the internal control system and risk management
of the Group;

2. discussed the annual results of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021 and the interim results of the
Group for the period ended 30 June 2022 respectively;

3. considered the recommendation of any final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2021 and the book close
period, if any;

4, proposed re-election of the Directors;

5. proposed the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as the

auditors of the Company, and discussed the auditors
remuneration for the annual audit;

6. reviewed the effects on the changes of the accounting
standards and principles;

7. proposed the general mandates to issue and repurchase
shares of the Company;

8. considered the provision of impairment on the
investment, the loan and interest receivables from an
associate;

9. reviewed the terms of the loan to an associate;

10. appointment of an independent non-executive Director;

11. revision of the constitutional documents of the Company;

12. adoption of the new share option scheme;

13. change of Hong Kong branch share registrar address;

14. change of registered office address in Bermuda; and

15. reviewed the compliance with the Corporate Governance

Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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(C)  MEETING RECORDS () EHRE
There were in total nine Board meetings and general meeting held RBE_E-__F+-_A=+—H81t
for the year ended 31 December 2022. FE AHBITAREEEEZNR
REARE -
The following set out the attendance record of Board meetings UWTHEHINFART 2 EZTZESZN
and general meeting held during the Year: R AKe 7 HEHT

Attendance for board and general meeting
for the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-T-_—_F+=-A=+-—H
LFECESEERRRRASHER

Board members Board Meetings General Meeting
EZERE Exged BRRXE
Mr. Xue Jian 7/9 0/1
R4
Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen 8/9 1/1
Mr. Tam Sun Wing 9/9 /1
BT E
Mr. Ng Ge Bun 9/9 11
REWSEE
Mr. He Yi 8/9 0/1
BRELE

One general meeting was held for the ended 31 December 2022. REBEE-_ZE-_—_F+=-—A=+—H1

FE - BRITABRERS -
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(D)

(E)

RXEARESE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board had at
all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors with at least one independent non-executive Director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each independent non-executive Director of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the contents
of such confirmation, the Company considers that the three
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

The independent non-executive Directors bring a wide range of
business and financial expertise, experience and independent
judgement to the Board. Through active participation in Board
meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests and serving on Board committees, all
independent non-executive Directors make various contributions
to the effective direction of the Company.

Non-executive Directors are not appointed for a specific term.
They are, however, subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company pursuant
to the Company'’s Bye-laws.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for determining the corporate
governance policy and performing the corporate governance
duties including the followings:

(i) to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

(ii) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;

(iif) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(v) to review the Company’s compliance with Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules (Corporate Governance Code).
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(F) DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
The Directors are committed to participate in continuous
professional development. The Directors are regularly briefed
on amendments and updates on the relevant laws, rules and
regulations.

The company secretary of the Company had also provided course
materials concerning professional training relating to the roles,
functions and duties of a Director to all Directors namely, Mr. Xue
Jian, Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen, Mr. Tam Sun Wing, Mr. Ng Ge Bun
and Mr. He Yi to develop and refresh their professional knowledge
and skills. According to the information provided by the Directors,
all of the Directors have read the course materials provided by the
company secretary of the Company for the past year.

(G) DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of financial statements of the Group, and to report on material
uncertainties, if any, relating to events or conditions that may cost
significant doubt upon the Group's ability to continue preparing
the accounts on a going concern basis. The Directors are not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or condition
which may cast significant doubt upon the Company'’s ability to
continue preparing the financial statements on the assumption
that the Group will continue as going concern.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The division of the responsibilities between the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer is clearly established. The Chairman provides leadership
for the Board and the Chief Executive Officer has overall chief executive
responsibility for the Group’s business development and day-to-day
management generally.

No appointment of the Chairman of the Board was made during the Year.
The role and responsibilities of the Chairman on governance matters of
the Company were shared by the executive Directors during the Year. The
Company will publish an announcement once an appointment has been
made in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Group adopted a board diversity policy, a summary of which is set
out hereinafter. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance and to
maintain the highest standards of corporate governance. The Board also
sees diversity at the Board level as an essential element in maintaining
a competitive advantage. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against appropriate
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. In forming its perspective on diversity, the Company will also take
into account of factors based on its own business model and specific
needs from time to time. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidate will bring to the Board.

The Board considered that independent non-executive Directors can
enhance the effectiveness and decision-making of the Board by providing
independent view, objective judgement and constructive challenge to
the Board and management of the Group.

Having reviewed the Board composition, the Board recognises the
importance and benefits of gender diversity at the Board level and had
taken initiatives to identify female candidate(s) to enhance the gender
diversity among the Board members. The Board appointed a female
independent non-executive Director on 1 January 2023.

Our diversity philosophy including the gender diversity was generally
followed in the workforce throughout the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022. As of the date of this report, the Board comprises
six Directors, of which, approximately 83% (comprising five directors)
of them are male and approximately 17% (comprising one director) is
female. And approximately 86% of our total workforce were male. We
will continue with our endeavor to increase female representation in our
Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES
The Board has also established the following committees with defined
terms of reference:

Audit Committee
Remuneration Committee
Nomination Committee

Each Board committee makes decisions on matters within its term of
reference and applicable limits of authority. The terms of reference as well
as the structure and membership of each committee will be reviewed
from time to time.

(A) AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee was established on 14 December 2001.
It currently consists of four independent non-executive Directors.

Composition of Audit Committee for the year ended 31 December
2022 was as follows:

Mr. Tam Sun Wing (Chairman)

Mr. Ng Ge Bun

Mr. He Yi

Ms. Kwok Pui Ha (Ms. Kwok was appointed as a member of the Audit
Committee with effect from 1 January 2023)

Role and function
The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for:

(a) making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditors, and any questions of
its resignation or dismissal;

(b) discussing with the auditors the nature and scope of
the audit and reporting obligations before the audit
commences;

TEERBES

EXegTZEg
EXENCOKLNIERES - URIARER
R E :

E%ZB®
B ES
REZB®

ExeR SR Be ABERERNER
BEAZEEFEHIRE » AR A KR
EREe HERE  RERKBES -

(A) BHREEE
BEREEER _ZE—F+-A+M
BRI - BRTAMNABYIENTES
EDA

REBEE—_ZE-_F+=-ZA=+—H1
FE BERLZEEIHENT :

BRI E(EE)

REW LA

BEE

SMEL T (BLLEZFAERLTE
28 HE-FT-—=—F—H—HE
ERL)

AR B EE
%*ZEZ,\ = E\E?EZEE\%% :

@ HINBEBEANEE EFNZX
ThEEAESSRHERZ
1t SIS 122 BEM HY 3 BN 2 S
G REBEAABZER
Fi 5 B R B AR R X B A O AR

(b) BT VER 6 AT 5L E A BiED

Mzt E RSB KA RE
WEE

BRIERAERAR | 2022 FF8% 27



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRES

(c) reviewing the Company’s annual report and accounts,
half-year report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly
report before submission to the Board, focusing
particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(if) major judgmental areas;

(iii) significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

(iv) the going concern assumptions and any
qualifications;

(v) compliance with accounting standards; and

(vi) compliance with the Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting.

(d) discussing the risk management and internal control
systems with the management to ensure that the
management has performed its duty to have an effective
system. This discussion should include the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting,
financial reporting functions and those relating to the
Company's ESG performance and reporting.
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Meeting Record

The Audit Committee met four times during the Year to discuss
and approve the interim and annual results, and to review the
internal control procedures of the Group.

The attendance record of Audit Committee meetings held for the
year ended 31 December 2022 was as follows:

TEERBES

SR
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L/\ujuﬁﬁ&ﬁlﬂlﬁqjﬁﬂ&ifﬁﬁéﬁ g ﬂﬁ*ﬁ
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Attendance at meetings held for

the year ended 31 December 2022

Committee member BE— —H+-RA=t—-RLEE
EEERE Fﬁ%fTE%ZHiJﬁE$
Mr. Tam Sun Wing 4/4
ui?ﬁﬁéﬁi
Mr. Ng Ge Bun 4/4
REWSEE
Mr. He Yi 4/4
BEE
During the meetings, the Audit Committee discussed the gL ERZESESRNIEE
following matters:
(1) Financial Reporting (1)  HIBHE
The Audit Committee met with the external auditors to BEZEE G Y EIMNEZBEN R
discuss the interim and annual financial statements and Te% dRAEBEcHER
system of internal control of the Group. The auditors 2 4F B 75 S 2k DA T2 P B BE 4
and the chief financial officer were also in attendance to € o ZHBMRMBGRETE D
answer questions on the financial results. TEE UREAEVEBEER
2R e
Where there were questions on the financial statements WEZZEERETEHIE
and system of control of the Group reviewed by the Audit R REE 2 B Rk RN
Committee, the management of the Company would EREHEFAREM  AAAE
provide breakdown, analysis and supporting documents fiﬂ#ﬁ%ﬁyﬁﬁﬁké%fﬁ
to the Audit Committee members in order to ensure that AR - oM RIZFXME - A
the Audit Committee members were fully satisfied and BREZZEGKETEEMN
make proper recommendation to the Board. WHESSELEEEHE -
(2)  External Auditors 2) SIMNEEEED
The appointment of the external auditors and the EBERZZBEEE E EINEZEAD
audit fee were considered by the Audit Committee ZEERZEEASEE I
and recommendations were made to the Board on the BB AN A B SNIEAZ ERAD 2 BB
selection of external auditors of the Company. The Audit EERNESSELNER BT
Committee had also discussed on auditor’s independence, ZEESNERZEM 2B L
objectivity and effectiveness of audit process. M BREUEAREZEFZE
%ZTEEZETTETHHE °
(3)  Internal Control (3)  NEBEFE

Review of the sufficiency and efficiency of risk
management and the internal control system.

¢.m A e IR N R AR BE R
EEEHMBEBRE -
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i

(B)

RXEARESE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 21 March
2005. It currently consists of one executive Director and four
independent non-executive Directors.

Composition of the Remuneration Committee for the year ended
31 December 2022 was as follows:

Mr. Tam Sun Wing (Chairman)

Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen

Mr. Ng Ge Bun

Mr. He Yi

Ms. Kwok Pui Ha (Ms. Kwok was appointed as a member of the
Remuneration Committee with effect from 1 January 2023)

Role and function
The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for:

1. reviewing any significant changes in human resources
policies and structure made in line with the then
prevailing trend and business requirements;

2. making recommendations to the Board on the Company's
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration;

3. determining the specific remuneration packages of all
executive Directors and senior management, including
benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments, including any compensation payable for loss
or termination of their office or appointment, and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of non-executive Directors;

4. considering factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group
and desirability of performance-based remuneration;

5. reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time;
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reviewing and approving the compensation payable
to executive Directors and senior management in
connection with any loss or termination of their office
or appointment to ensure that such compensation is
determined in accordance with relevant contractual terms
and that such compensation is otherwise fair and not
excessive for the Company;

reviewing and approving compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct
to ensure that such arrangements are determined in
accordance with relevant contractual terms and that
any compensation payment is otherwise reasonable and
appropriate;

ensuring that no Director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration;

advising the shareholders on how to vote in respect of
any service contract of the Director which shall be subject
to the approval of shareholders (in accordance with Rule
13.68 of the Listing Rules); and

making recommendation to the Board regarding the
remuneration of non-executive Director.

Where circumstances are considered appropriate, some
Remuneration Committee decisions are approved by way of
written resolutions passed by all the Remuneration Committee
members.
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(Q)

For the year ended 31 December 2022, three Remuneration
Committee meetings were held and the attendance record was as
follows:

Committee member

REBE-_E-_—F#+-_A=+—801F
FE FNZESTCRITZRNZE
EHgRIHFELSOT

Attendance at meetings held for
the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-B-—F+-A=1-ALEE

ZEERE FRBTERZHESR
Mr. Tam Sun Wing 3/3
BETERSE

Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen 2/3
Mr. Ng Ge Bun 3/3
REW L

Mr. He Vi 3/3
BUESE

During the meetings, the Remuneration Committee discussed
the remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior
management with reference to the prevailing market
conditions. The Remuneration Committee had also discussed on
remuneration policy and performance assessment for executive
Directors as well as the remuneration package for Ms. Kwok Pui Ha
who was appointed as an independent non-executive Director of
the Company.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 13 April 2007. It
currently consists of one executive Director and four independent
non-executive Directors.

Composition of the Nomination Committee for the year ended 31
December 2022 was as follows:

()

gt FHZES2ERTH A
EEREREREBZFHMTE o H M
ZEENERNTEZTZHFMEER R
RAFEARERERSARREILIE
HTEFZHMER T 2 HMFEE

SRR

REZEE
REZEGN_ZTLFWA+=H
XA BRI —BHTESERMOAE
MIERMITEEEK °

REBE-_T-_—&F#+-A=+—A1t
FE - REEEGKENT :

Mr. Ng Ge Bun (Chairman) REWSRE(EE)
Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen BKESE

Mr. Tam Sun Wing BT

Mr. He Yi BOgE

Ms. Kwok Pui Ha (Ms. Kwok was appointed as a member of the
Nomination Committee with effect from 1 January 2023)
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Role and function

The Nomination Committee’s terms of reference includes those
specific duties as set out in the code provision B.3.1 of the
CG Code. Pursuant to its terms of reference, the Nomination
Committee is required, amongst other things, to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board and make
recommendations for changes as necessary, to identify individuals
suitably qualified to become board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships, to assess the independence
of independent non-executive Directors, and to make
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors. The Nomination Committee should meet
at least once a year and when the need arises.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying,
recruiting and evaluating new nominees to the Board and the
assessment of the qualifications of the Directors. The criteria
adopted to select and recommend candidates for directorship
includes the candidate’s experience, professional knowledge,
integrity, time commitment and other statutory or regulatory
requirements.

Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a nomination policy stating the key
nomination criteria and principles during nomination of Directors.
In identifying suitable candidates qualified to become Board
members, the Nomination Committee shall take into account
the Company’s current or future business model and specific
needs, the challenges and opportunities of the Company will
face, and skill set and expertise of candidates required. The
Nomination Committee shall consider the candidates on merit
and contribution the candidate will bring to the Board with due
regard to the board diversity policy of the Company. The Board
will review the board diversity policy on an annual basis so as to
develop and review measurable objectives for the implementing
the board diversity policy and to monitor the progress on
achieving these objectives.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022, two Nomination Committee RBE-_E-_—_F+-_A=+—HLFE
meeting were held and the attendance record was as follows: REZESLRITMAEE  BEeE 2D

[FERERmA T -

Attendance at meetings held for
the year ended 31 December 2022

Committee member BE-ZE--F+-A=+—HLEE
EZEERE P84T %Ztﬂf?:$

Mr. Ng Ge Bun 2/2

REWKE

Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen 2/2

Mr. Tam Sun Wing 2/2

RS

Mr. He Yi 2/2

BREAE
During the meetings, the Nomination Committee reviewed the 2L REZEgYRNESE2HEE I

composition of the Board, it had also discussed the policy for nomination REFREGBRETIR - FHEZEE N
of Directors. The Nomination Committee had also considered, discussed FLA T BIREITEZ © fm IR EERER
and recommended the followings:

= the re-election of Mr. Ng Ge Bun as independent non-executive — RREWEEREFSXNANE
Director after his serving of the Board for over nine years; % BRER/BYVIIFNITES

= the application of the nomination criteria as stated in the — HAEBMELL (B EEZFE
nomination policy of the Company for the assessment of Ms. 7%$“ﬂﬁi#$ﬂﬁ§$fﬁﬁ$’& ]
Kwok Pui Ha (“Ms. Kwok”) to be appointed as an independent non- IRB BRI B IR 2 2R

executive Director of the Company; and

= the appointment of Ms. Kwok as an independent non-executive — ZABL T ARR BV BIULIERNITES ©
Director of the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

It is the Company’s responsibility to protect shareholder’s interest. To
do so, the Company maintains on-going dialogue with shareholders
to communicate with them and encourage their participation through
annual general meetings or other general meetings.

Registered shareholders are notified by post for the shareholders’
meetings. The notice of meeting contains the agenda, the proposed
resolutions and a postal voting form.

Any duly registered shareholder from time to time is entitled to attend
the annual and special general meetings, provided that their shares have
been recorded in the register of members of the Company.

Shareholders who are unable to attend a general meeting may complete
and return to the share registrar the proxy form enclosed with the notice
of meeting to give proxy to their representatives, another shareholder or
Chairman of the meetings.

Shareholders or investors can enquire by sending their enquiries to the
Company through the following means:

Hotline no. (852) 2804-2221

By post 28th Floor, Chinachem Century Tower,
178 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE A
SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

Shareholder(s) can by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of
the Company to require a special general meeting be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. To raise
such requisition, the shareholder(s) must have held at the date of deposit
of such requisition not less than 10% of the voting rights in the share
capital of the Company (Bye-law 58).

The meeting so requisitioned shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such
requisition deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with section 74(3)
of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (Bye-law 58).
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PUT
ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the company secretary whose contact details
are as follows:

The Company Secretary of Kai Yuan Holdings Limited

28th Floor, Chinachem Century Tower, 178 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong

Email :enquiry@kaiyuanholdings.com

Telephone No. (852) 2804-2221

Facsimile No. (852) 2723-8571

The company secretary will forward the shareholders’ enquiries and
concerns to the Board and/or relevant Board committees of the Company,
where appropriate, to answer the shareholders’ questions.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS
AT GENERAL MEETINGS BY SHAREHOLDERS

Subject to Section 79 of The Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, it shall be
the duty of the Company, on the requisition in writing of (i) any number
of members representing not less than one twentieth of the total voting
rights of all the members having at the date of the requisition a right to
vote at the meeting to which the requisition relates; or (ii) not less than
one hundred members, at the expense of the requisitionists unless the
Company otherwise resolves:

(a) to give to members of the Company entitled to receive notice of
the next annual general meeting notice of any resolution which
may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting; and

(b) to circulate to members of the Company entitled to have notice
of any general meeting sent to them any statement of not more
than one thousand words with respect to the matter referred to
in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting.
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Subject to Section 80 of the Companies Act 1981 of the Bermuda, notice
of any such intended resolution duly signed by the shareholder(s)
concerned (the requisitionist(s)), shall be deposited at the registered
office of the Company not less than six weeks before the meeting (in
the case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution); and not less
than one week before the meeting (in the case of any other requisition)
together with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
expenses in sending the notice and circulating the statement submitted
by the shareholder concerned.

Upon receiving the requisition, the Company would take appropriate
actions and make necessary arrangements in accordance with the
requirements under the provisions as stated in Sections 79 and 80 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

AUDITORS REMUNERATION

It is the auditor’s responsibility to form an independent opinion, based
on their audit, on those financial statements and to report their opinion
solely to the Company, as a body, in accordance with the Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. They do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of the
auditors’ report.

Apart from the provision of annual audit services, the Group's external
auditors also provided interim review of the Group's results, taxation
services, and professional consulting services for the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, Ernst & Young, the external
auditors provided following services to the Group:
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Audit services Bz 2,563
Taxation services AR 95
Professional consulting services BEXEA AR 800
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Audit Committee assisted the Board to perform its duties to maintain
an effective and sound internal control system for the Group. The Audit
Committee reviewed the Group’s procedures and workflow for the
financial, operational and compliance, and also the risk assessment and its
initiatives for business risks management and control. Recommendations
will also be put forward to the Board for consideration and approval.
The Group has an internal audit function. The Company engaged an
independent internal control consultant to carry out review on risk
management and internal control systems of the Group annually. The
review report had been presented to the Audit Committee to review, and
nothing had come to the Audit Committee’s or the Board's attention to
believe that risk management and internal control systems of the Group
were inadequate or ineffective. Please refer to the section headed “Risk
Management and Internal Control Report” for further details.

The management of the Company, together with the internal control
consultant, has reviewed the risk management and internal control
system of the Group for the Year and considered them to be effective and
adequate.

PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR

THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities and the Company has
established a policy on the handling and dissemination of inside
information (“Inside Information”). The inside information policy concerns
the handling and the dissemination of the Inside Information as follows:

Handling of Inside Information

1. an officer of the Company with appropriate skills has been
assigned to identify any potential Inside Information and to
escalate any such Inside Information to the attention of the Board;

2. the Company should, as soon as reasonably practicable after
any Inside Information has come to our knowledge, disclose the
Inside Information to the public, unless the Inside Information falls
within any of the safe harbours as provided in the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Charter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong); and

3. before the Inside Information is fully disclosed to the public, the
Company should ensure that the Inside Information is kept strictly
confidential. If the Board believes that the necessary degree of
confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may
have been breached, the Company should immediately disclose
the Inside Information to the public.
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Dissemination of Inside Information

Inside Information will be announced promptly through the websites
of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.com.hk) and the Company
(www.kaiyuanholdings.com).

INVESTOR RELATIONS

During the Year, the Bye-laws of the Company had been amended
to reflect core shareholder protection standards required under the
amended Listing Rules. Please refer to the circular of the Company dated
29 April 2022 for details.

The Company has in place a Shareholders” Communication Policy
to ensure that Shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately
addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure its effectiveness.

The Company has established a range of communication channels for our
shareholders to communicate their views, they include (i) the publication
of interim and annual reports; (i) the annual general meeting or special
general meeting providing a forum for Shareholders to raise comments
and exchanging views with the Board; (iii) updated members of the Board
are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company;
(iv) the website (www.kaiyuanholdings.com) of the Company offers latest
information of the Group and to receive comments and enquiries by
email or through telephone.

When information of the Group is communicated to our shareholders,
the Company is committed to ensure that information provided is drafted
by using plain and simple language and avoid legal jargon so that our
shareholders can understand the information easily. The information will
also be presented in any easy-to-read manner.

The Company is committed to listen and address to our shareholders’
views and concerns. The Board member as well as chairmen of the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee, or in their absence the Directors elected to chair the general
meeting, are available to answer Shareholders’ questions on the Group’s
businesses. The Company will also ensure the presence of the external
auditor to attend the annual general meeting and make written and/or
verbal representations to shareholders at the annual general meeting.

During the Year, the Company has reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of our shareholders communication policy (the “Policy”), it is
concluded that the Policy has been effectively implemented.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRES

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the following shareholders REBE-_E-_—_F+_A=+—HLt&FE "
T 0

meeting was held by the Company: RABERBITUATREAS ¢

Voting at
Date Venue Type of Meeting Particulars the Meeting
= 1B ezgEn #15 SLRETRR
2 June 2022 Board Room, Level 1, Annual General Meeting To receive and consider audited financial By Poll
South Pacific Hotel, statements for the year ended 31 December
23 Morrison Hill Road, 2021 and the corresponding reports of the
Wanchai Hong Kong Directors and auditors
To re-elect Directors and to authorise the Board
to fix their remuneration
To re-appoint Emnst & Young as the auditors of
the Company and authorise the Board to fix
their remuneration
To approve the general mandates to issue and
repurchase shares of the Company
To adopt the new share option scheme
To amend the Bye-laws of the Company
e S BREF EYEETN- HERZRHZ-_Z-_—F1+-A=T—-H RE
~AZA BRE |13E235 IR REVIBRREHENESZ SR
HABE EERGBAREE
— L EREERAREEEETEEME

FINANCIAL CALENDAR FOR 2023

Event

ELis

BRELK G BB AR R R ZEE R
REFEETEME
HE—REEAZTRBEARE RN
kit Bl

BRTAR R4

“E=FHHAEE

Date/Proposed Date
A, BERETHH

Announcement of 2022 annual results

NS~ =

Annual General Meeting

BFBAFAE

Announcement of 2023 interim results

N BE = FERHRE
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Late March 2023
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Around May 2023
—T_=FRALAE

Late August 2023
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OVERVIEW

Kai Yuan Holdings Limited (the “Company” or “Kai Yuan”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group” or “We") are pleased
to present the 2022 Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG") report
(the "Report”) which outlines our approaches, strategies, and practices in
relation to the sustainability development.

SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) is at the highest decision-making
level in the ESG governance structure, and it takes the ultimate
responsibility for overseeing the ESG performance. The Board is
committed to achieving the Group’s strategic ESG objectives through
risk identification and management, target setting, sustainability
performance evaluation and monitoring within the Group through
regular risk assessment and internal control review. Therefore, board
meetings are held to discuss ESG-related risks and opportunities with
appropriate response measures in maintaining the Group's sustainable
development.

In addition, we have engaged an independent ESG consultant, to assist
the Group in preparing this Report and providing ESG-related consultancy
services.

Board Diversity

The Group recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance and to maintain the
highest standards of corporate governance. The Board also sees diversity
at the Board level as an essential element in maintaining a competitive
advantage. The Group adopted a board diversity policy, a summary of
which is set out at page 26 of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to upholding high standards of business
integrity, honesty, ethics and transparency in our operations. We believe
that effective and comprehensive internal control, risk management and
compliance systems are the foundation for embracing good corporate
governance. For more details on our corporate governance practices,
please refer to our Corporate Governance Report.
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R - HERERRE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This Report covered the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022
(the “Reporting Period”). This Report mainly focuses on our core business
segment — The Hotel operation of the Paris Marriott Hotel Champs-Elysées
in Paris, France (the "Hotel” or the "Paris Marriott Hotel"). If there is any
change in the scope, we will explain the difference and reason for the
change in the Report.

This Report has been prepared in accordance with the Mandatory
Disclosure Requirements and the “comply or explain” provisions under the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (“ESG Guide”)
set out in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules of HKEX.

The preparation of the Report was underpinned by the following three
reporting principles:

Materiality: The Group has identified ESG issues by conducting
stakeholder engagement by considering its business nature and
development.

Quantitative: This Report has disclosed key performance indicators
("KPIs") in a quantitative manner where appropriate.
Consistency: This Report applies consistent statistical
methodologies for meaningful comparisons of ESG data
over time. In case of any changes in the reporting scope or
methodologies, they shall be explained in the appendix for
stakeholders’ reference.

This Report is available in English and Chinese and is uploaded to the
website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the Group's
website (http://www.kaiyuanholdings.com). In case of any discrepancies
between the two versions, the English version shall prevail.

We sincerely welcome your comments and suggestions regarding this
Report and our sustainability performance. Please feel free to provide your
comments via email at enquiry@kaiyuanholdings.com.

Stakeholder Engagement

We strive for a responsible business manner such that we create inspiring
values for our stakeholders and contribute to a more sustainable planet.
Engagement with stakeholders helps us find the right direction in
sustainability development. We maintain ongoing dialogues with our
stakeholders (including but not limited to employees, management and
suppliers) such that we actively collect their views to boost the growth
of both the Group and benefit our stakeholders. We communicate
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with other stakeholders through formal and informal communication
channels, including but not limited to questionnaires, emails, hotlines,
social media, physical meetings, assessments, reports, etc. It enables us
to recognise our strengths and weaknesses to better devise our business
strategies in responding to their needs and expectations, anticipating
potential risks, and strengthening key relationships. During the Reporting
Period, the Group reviewed its fundamentals, conducted a peer analysis,
adopted international standards and initiated internal resource allocation
to carefully identify stakeholders’ concerns. More comprehensive and
external stakeholder engagement channels, such as questionnaires and
interviews for external stakeholders’ opinion obtainment, will be further
strengthened in the future.

Materiality Assessment
The information collected throughout the stakeholder engagement
serves as an underlying basis for identifying key ESG issues. We have
identified and prioritised eight issues that both our stakeholders and
the Group consider significant to formulate the foundation for our ESG
objectives and the scope of this ESG Report. After consideration and
having detailed assessment related to the materiality of various ESG
issues, we have categorised and prioritised the issues below.
Highest materiality level:

Greenhouse gas and air emissions

Health and safety for employees and guests
Medium materiality level:

Water consumption

Labour practices

Supply chain management

Anti-corruption
Relevant materiality level:

Combating climate change

Customer privacy and information security
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL

A1. Emissions

The Group recognises the potential environmental impacts during our
operation and business activities. It is our policy to minimise emissions
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharge into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste. We are
committed to operating our businesses in an environmentally responsible
manner. We work closely with the Hotel manager to restrain emissions
and continue to improve our environmental performance. The Hotel
conserves resources by reducing unnecessary waste of electricity and
water at source and enhancing environmental awareness of Hotel staff
and guests through internal communication, training, warm reminders,
and interactions with our guests. We also communicate our policies and
requirements toward environmental protection with our contractors and
suppliers to collaborate in environmental protection.

Our major source of emissions includes (1) greenhouse gases which
generated from town gas and electricity consumption; (2) non-hazardous
waste generated by our Hotel guests and office; and (3) food waste
generated during our food and beverage services at the Hotel. Due to the
nature of the Hotel business, we did not generate hazardous waste during
the Reporting Period (as defined by regulations in France).

Our Group strives to take care of our planet while providing an ideal
experience for our guests. We aim to properly handle and reduce
emissions and waste by the following measures:

Actively manage the use of electricity to reduce indirect
greenhouse gas emissions;

Work collaboratively with different waste recycling partners to
trim down the tonnage;

Introduce refillable bath amenities in the guestrooms;

Recycle organic wastes with bio-waste partners to turn wastes
into compost and biogas; and

Recycle food waste, used oil, lamps, batteries, metal, plastic, glass
and paper by working with different recycling companies.

In addition, Marriott International introduced Recycling, Waste and
Hazardous Waste Disposal guidelines to the Hotel. During the Reporting
Period, the Hotel started a total waste removal partnership to reduce
waste disposal. Further waste reduction targets will be set along with our
waste removal partner in the future.
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The Hotel has conducted a renovation during the Reporting Period, which

helps to reduce greenhouse gas emissions. The renovation plan includes

the following:

Replacement of the air-conditioning in guestrooms;

Replacement of some windows to achieve better noise reduction

and energy-saving performance; and
Replacement of installations in kitchen.

Compliance

The Group strictly complies with the relevant laws and regulations,

including but not limited to French Environmental Code and French

Energy Code. We are committed to staying up-to-date of the latest

legal requirements and actively preparing to ensure our compliance.

During the Reporting Period, we did not notice any non-compliance

with all relevant laws and regulations relating to air and greenhouse gas

emissions, discharge into water and land, and generation of hazardous

and non-hazardous waste.
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Emission Type Unit 2022
BHER B " ——
Air emissions’
BERBER
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) Kg 34.01
A& NI
Sulphur oxides (SOx) Kg 0.08
ety NI
Particulate matter (PM) Kg 1.40
BT T NI
Greenhouse gas emissions?
BEREHKE?
Total (Scope 1 & Scope 2) Tonnes of CO, equivalent 563.35
wEt(BE—REE=) WB_—RciREE
Scope 1 Tonnes of CO, equivalent 63.33
HE— WS LIRE S
Scope 2 Tonnes of CO, equivalent 500.02
#HE—= WE—RriREE
Intensity (per room night) Kg of CO, equivalent/room night 17.41
wE(BHEFET%) RTFZSULREE BHEE®
Intensity (per m? of gross floor area) Kg of CO, equivalent/m? 31.79

B (G KREEH)

DTSR EEFITK
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R - HERERRE

Emission Type Unit 2022
BRMER B .
Non-hazardous waste
BZEEY
Total waste generated Tonnes 989.85
ELREEYES T8
Glass Tonnes 328.50
B Mg
Food waste Tonnes 3.89
BIER A
Paper Tonnes 0.46
AR e
Other general refuse® Tonnes 657.00
H At — AR &) M
Intensity (per room night) Kg/room night 30.58
mE(BHESE) R/ BEEE%
Intensity (per m? of gross floor area) Kg/m? 55.86
RE(EFFHAEEERE) NI VP N
Disposed waste Tonnes 657.46
EREMERY) 7]
Recycled waste Tonnes 332.39
E B REEY) 7]
1 The air emission is calculated based on the methodology suggested BERIENEIREBEFBHMAEL AR AT

in the “Steps for ESG Reporting - Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs” published by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

2 The greenhouse gas emission is calculated based on the methodology
suggested in the “Steps for ESG Reporting — Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs" published by The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

3 The amount of other general refuse was estimated by considering the
volume of a rubbish collection bin and the collection frequency.
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A2. Use of Resources
1. Energy

It is our policy to monitor each aspect closely to make sure we are
operating in a cost-effective, sustainable and responsible business
manner. During the course of our business, we consumed an array
of resources ranging from electricity, water, and town gas to food
ingredients used in our food and beverage services. Due to the nature
of the Hotel business, we do not have material consumption of any
packaging materials during the course of our operation.

We target to enhance the energy efficiency of the Hotel by managing
the electricity reduction at sources, such as guest rooms, public areas,
restrooms, parking lots and other facilities. During the Reporting Period,
we have improved our energy management by implementing a number
of energy-saving initiatives to optimise our usage of resources:

Energy efficiency initiatives
Turn off unnecessary lighting and air-conditioning;
Set and maintain standard indoor temperature;
Review regularly our environmental policy and energy-saving
plan;
Closely monitor energy consumption patterns and take necessary
actions if irregular usage is noticed;
Motion detectors are installed in back-office areas, public areas,
restrooms and meeting rooms. LED lighting is installed in back
offices, and LED motion sensor lighting is installed in the parking
staircase;
Programmable thermostats are adopted in guest rooms and
meeting facilities;
Window sensors were installed in guest rooms to switch off the
air-conditioning system when windows are opened; and
Educate and inspire associates and guests to conserve and
preserve by displaying signs.

2. Water

It is our policy to uphold best practices on water management
throughout our operations. We believe water is a basic necessity for all
living on earth, but water resource is scarce. For this reason, we target
to optimise water usage and enhance water efficiency by improving our
water management through a number of water-saving initiatives.

R - HERERRE

A2. B R{E R

1. BER

ZAMNBREENERS—EEE - BRRK
PIAEFRANE - AIKERBEENTR
LB ARPIKLEEHAEES - HFFER
ZREER A% K ERAZAREHRR
BORM - ARNBEEEBOEE » HAEL
LRETIREEANBEMPIERE o

BMEEBRBERERRFE  QAHEBE - %F
A FESREMRESRENAEE AR
BBEERBEREE - RI|BEHA - HIEBE
Bz REEREUNRERMANEREE
femEB RPN ERER -

AL
WMETREENEE RN
R RIRBBEZ R

TR IRIRBUR B RERT & -

FOERREEN  YRNBERTEF
RAERRINMBETE

FEREMFBLE ARRE - KFE
RERELRRBIERAE -  EREE
PFIZELEDBRIAREZFESBRELE

LEDE){ERRIE R -
ERENEHRZGEHEATREREE
FEnES

EEERREPRES
FRREZRA RS &
BRRLETHERZBE THNEA
RIRENA o

IR EFT

2. K

BB EEEREELSBIERRIFNKE
REBENTRERR - ROMBEKEMKE
FrEEmmEARNER - BRKERAZER
B oo At - HRMWBEEBIRZIEEMKERE
HERMAKERER  MmECAKEL
1Rm FAKRCE -

BRIERERAR | 202 558 47



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R - HERERRE

Water efficiency initiatives
Encouraging guests to save water and reuse linen and towel
during their stay;
Close monitoring on water consumption pattern and take action if
irregular usage is noticed;
Adoption of low-flow water faucets in guest rooms and common
areas;
Introduction of water savers, low-flow showerheads and tap
aerators in guest bathrooms;
Installation of water-efficient commercial dishwashers and
washing machines (except the washing machine in the kitchen);
and
Installation of low-flow pre-rinse spray valves in kitchen.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had no issue in sourcing water
that is fit for purpose due to its business nature and geographical

Bk e
FEEAEAFHEGSORKARE
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location.
Resource Type Unit 2022
BRESE By —E—-=
Energy consumption
BERH7E
In total kwh 3,646,750.13
st FEES
In electricity kWh 1,528,466.00
E TR
In steam production kWh 1,138,201.00
KREE FEEF
In chilled water kWh 929,000.00
RIK T RLBF
In non-renewable fuel kWh 51,083.13
SER AR T FL B
Intensity (per room night) kWh/room night 112.68
mE(BHEZE) TRESHE S8
Intensity (per m? of gross floor area) kWh/m? 205.81
ZE(BEEmE) FRE,FHAK
Water consumption
FEkE
In total m? 15,416.00
#Et SR
Intensity (per room night) m3/room night 0.48
mE(BHEZ®%) MHR EGEE TG
Intensity (per m? of gross floor area) m?3/m? 0.87

B (BRAEH)
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R - HERERRE

Resource Type Unit 2022
ERER B —E-—-F
Chilled water for cooling system

R RIRBATE 2K
In total m3 170,442.00
st AN
Intensity (per room night) m?3/room night 5.27
ZE(BREZ®) MHR EGEE TR
Intensity (per m? of gross floor area) m3/m? 9.62

HE(FREEE) SR FTK
A3.The Environment and Natural Resources

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not notice our operations
have a significant impact on the environment and natural resources.
Nonetheless, the Group strives to promote sustainability in every
aspect of our operation, including light and noise pollution reduction,
biodiversity conservation, carbon footprint reduction and sustainable
corporate development.

A4. Climate Change

Climate change is aggravating, and climate-related risks are imminent.
Physical risks such as severe heat waves and flooding due to rising sea
levels could adversely affect the Hotel’s operation, health and safety of
employees and guests. Transition risks such as tighter environmental laws
and regulations by the regulatory authorities could increase the costs
for the low carbon economy transformation and the Hotel operation.
We work closely with Marriott International and the Hotel manager to
implement climate actions. These include but are not limited to using
bamboo straws instead of plastic straws, placing recycling bins and
promoting green energy consumption within the Hotel.

B. SOCIAL

Employment and Labour Practices

B1. Employment

The Group is committed to valuing the differences between people and
works diligently in providing equal opportunity and anti-discrimination.
Our employment decision is only based on one’s working ability and
disregards gender, race, ethnicity, sexual orientation, disability, etc. We
review our remuneration policies and packages annually to ensure our
employees are fairly treated. We grant discretionary bonuses to qualified
employees based on operation results and individual performance. Our
employees are also entitled to medical insurance, mandatory provident
fund and paid leaves.
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Employees working in the Hotel (“Hotel Staff”) are employed and
managed by Marriott International. However, we work closely with
the Hotel manager to ensure they have consistent policies with us in
handling employee matters and are compliant with all relevant laws and
regulations in the area in which the Hotel operates.

As at 31 December 2022, we had seven employees working for the
Group, excluding the Hotel Staff, in Hong Kong and Luxembourg, and our
employee turnover rate is 0%. During the Reporting Period, the employee

distribution is as follows.

EBEIEMET(BEET ) BEXEE
BARER - A BMA—EREEEER
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2022

—E==

By gender
IR

By age
RFH

By geographical region
23 72 [ 35,

By employment type
REREL
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Male 6
S
Female 1
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21-30 1
21-308%
31-40 1
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Compliance

The Group strictly comply with the relevant laws and regulations,
including but not limited to the French Labor Code. We were not aware
of any material non-compliance with any relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, other benefits and welfare,
occupational health and safety, child and forced labour and other laws
and regulations during the Reporting Period.

B2. Health and Safety

It is our policy to provide a healthy and safe working environment for
employees. We believe that productivity comes from a healthy workforce.
We remind our employees to increase their awareness of occupational
safety. During the Reporting Period, we have implemented several
measures to ensure the health and safety of employees:

Established a Crisis Plan with detailed crisis management
procedures and visual guides;

Set up an Emergency Response Team with direct contacts;
Developed an internal accident instant reporting system, “MIRA”;
and

Health and safety training was provided to the Hotel staff.

Our Response to the Coronavirus Pandemic

During the Reporting Period, numerous pandemic precautionary
measures were gradually no longer be mandatory after the relaxation
of lockdown policies, such as social distancing and face masks were not
required by the Government of France. Nonetheless, maintaining a high
standard of hygiene and safeguarding the health of our employees and
guests are always one of our missions. Therefore, the Hotel manager has
made several hygienic enhancements and practices throughout the Hotel
area and in guest rooms during operation.

These include:

Enhanced Public Space Cleaning: We have increased the frequency
of cleaning and disinfection, particularly in areas with high traffic,
including restrooms, elevators, and escalators;

Public facility: Hand sanitising stations were installed at Hotel
entrances, at front desks, elevators, and meeting spaces;
Electrostatic Spraying: We utilised enhanced technologies,
including electrostatic sprayers with hospital-grade disinfectants,
to support our rigorous cleanliness protocols;

Reinforced Room Cleaning: Guest rooms were thoroughly cleaned
and disinfected prior to the arrival of visitors; and

Waste disposal: We placed lidded bins for the disposal of used
sanitary products.
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On the other hand, we are determined to provide a safe working
environment for our employees. With this regard, our Hotel manager has
implemented comprehensive hygiene and infection control practices,
including:

Provided workers with education and training on the pandemic,
COVID-19 risk factors and protective behaviours (e.g. maintaining
social distancing, cough etiquette, and care of personal protective
equipment)

Circulated clear guideline “COVID-19 Protocol” at every
department;

Facilitated air ventilation in the work environment; and
Reinforced cleaning and disinfection protocols for the workplace.

Compliance

The Hotel strictly complies with the relevant laws and regulations,
including but not limited to French Labor Code Part IV, entitled "Health
and Safety at Work”. During the Reporting Period, no work-related
fatalities or injuries and lost days due to work injury were recorded in the
past three years, including the Reporting Period.

B3. Development and Training

Employees are encouraged to attend seminars relevant to their position
to enhance their work capability. We provide all new employees with
orientation training to ensure that they are familiar with our corporate
values and goals and that the employees understand their role in our
Group. Other training provided during the Reporting Period including but
not limited to business ethics, anti-corruption, etc. During the Reporting
Period, the percentage of employees trained and the average training
hours of each employee by gender and employee category are as follows.
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B4. Labour Standards

It is our policy that we are against the usage of child and forced labour.
Our recruitment policy forbids the hiring of children or forced labour,
and we will not purchase from any supplier who is doing so. During the
Reporting Period, we have implemented several measures to prevent any
cases of child and forced labour:

Confirm the identities of newly recruited employees to verify their
ages comply with the employment standards;

Sign labour contract with all newly recruited employees to ensure
that employees perform their work on a voluntary basis in order to
eliminate all matters involving forced labour; and

Should any cases of child or forced labour be discovered, an
investigation will be carried out immediately, and the recruitment
procedure will be reviewed for the room for improvement.

Compliance

The Group strictly complies with the relevant laws and regulations,
including but not limited to the European Convention for the Protection
of Human Rights and Fundamental Freedom:s.

During the Reporting Period, no child labour or forced labour cases were
discovered.

Operating Practices

B5. Supply Chain Management

It is our policy to ensure our suppliers are operating in an environmentally
and socially responsible manner. Therefore, we work closely with the
Hotel manager to ensure responsible procurement is in place, which is
consistent with our approach to sustainability. Hotel operation involves
a number of procurement categories, including furniture, fixtures and
equipment, Hotel amenities, ingredient for food and beverages, office
supplies and different kinds of maintenance and professional services.
During the Reporting Period, the Hotel had 329 major suppliers (2021: 282
major suppliers), of which 302 were from France and 27 were from other
countries.

The Group works closely with suppliers to encourage them, ensuring the
Supplier’s Sustainability Policies are followed. The Paris Marriott Hotel has
in place a clear Supplier Code of Conduct, a Preferred Supplier Summary
List and a Sustainability Assessment Program to provide environmental
and social guidelines to their suppliers.
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In an environmental aspect, all suppliers were requested to sign
the “Marriott International Global Procurement”, highlighting their
commitment to minimising the impacts of its operation on the
environment and promoting environmental sustainability. The Hotel
has also followed Marriott International’s initiatives, such as choosing
suppliers who provide sustainable seafood, cage-free eggs, as well as
ensuring down and feather products are from humane sources.

In a social aspect, the Paris Marriott Hotel follows Marriott’s Global
Employment and Human Rights principles and expects their suppliers
to have safe and secure working environments, non-discrimination,
and avoid using child and forced labour. Annual review of the Preferred
Supplier Summary List and Supplier Screening Program is conducted
by Marriott International to monitor their suppliers’ work in an
environmentally and socially responsible manner. During the Reporting
Period, 17 suppliers have passed the assessment process before
engagement.

B6. Product Responsibility

It is our policy to provide services with impeccable quality. We ensure
the Hotel provides the best and most consistent customer experience
in terms of service, condition, cleanliness, and operation standards.
Also, we believe high-quality service is essential to maintain a long-term
relationship with our customers. Thus, the Hotel has its own “Standard
Operation Procedures” and “Quality Assurance Program” to ensure guests’
satisfaction. All Hotel staff are well trained with respective standards and
procedures to deliver high-quality services. Internal audit and third-party
audits were performed regularly throughout the Reporting Period. In
addition, the Hotel also reviewed the mandated external audit by Marriott
International during the Reporting Period.

Guest safety

Our number one priority is to safeguard the well-being of both the guests
as well as our staff. Surveillance cameras are installed at Hotel entrances
and exits for security purposes. Our Hotel operator also conducts internal
audit on operations and brand programs regularly. Once the Hotel
operator finds any non-compliance of food safety and fire or life safety
with self-audit standards, it will be resolved as soon as possible to achieve
safe operation. Apart from these, a comprehensive Crisis Plan sets out
contingency response procedures under different emergency and crisis
scenarios, including but not limited to terrorist attacks, fires and physical
injuries, to protect the Hotel and customers from inevitable threats.
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Guest satisfaction

Paris Marriott Hotel is classified and recognised as a five-star Hotel by
the République Francaise (French Republic), honouring its outstanding
service standards. The Hotel actively collects information to understand
customer experiences. Complaint handling procedures are in place,
together with a guest feedback program developed by Paris Marriott
Hotel “Guest Voice". A guest satisfaction system that integrates a shorter,
simpler guest and event satisfaction survey with social media (reviews,
posts, tweets, etc.) into a single user dashboard, enabling the Hotel to
act on issues and concerns without missing any opinion from guests
and facilitate a timely response. During the Reporting Period, the Hotel
received no major complaints relating to the services provided. The duty
manager, executive committees and relative personnel have reviewed
the complaints and discussed the responses and improvements. All
complaints were handled timely to ensure the satisfaction of guests.

Personal data protection practice

The Group acknowledges the importance of protecting the privacy and
confidentiality of its guest’s personal data. With the EU’s General Data
Protection Regulation (GDPR) coming into effect on 25 May 2018, we have
worked closely with our Hotel manager to ensure compliance measures
are in place. Our Hotel manager has undertaken a significant amount of
work to ensure the Hotel is complied with GDPR. The Hotel has further
strengthened its data governance and privacy programs, as well as its
centralised systems, in preparation for the GDPR implementation. A
number of specific actions include but are not limited to:

Updated procedures to ensure an appropriate response is made
to individual rights requests from our guests and associates as
required under GDPR;

Updated the terms and conditions of loyalty programs, privacy
statements and notices, as well as Hotel registration cards to
encompass GDPR principles;

Acquired customers for their consent before any release of
personal information if necessary;

Conducted a holistic review of marketing and digital processes
and policies to ensure accountability and data governance; and

Updated contracts with new privacy language to ensure the Hotel
is fully compliant with GDPR as well as other relevant personal
data privacy regulations in France.
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Compliance

The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on health
and safety, advertising, labelling, intellectual property rights and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and methods of
redress. Due to the nature of the Hotel business, we have no products
sold or shipped subjected to recalls for safety and health reasons.

B7. Anti-corruption

The virtue of integrity, honesty and fairness has been given the
highest priorities as the Group believes it is of paramount importance
that businesses are conducted in accordance with applicable rules,
regulations and social standards. No such rules, regulations or standards
should be traded in exchange for business benefits or even for guest
feedback. Meanwhile, the Group provides anti-corruption training to
directors and staff to enhance their awareness. For the Hotel, Marriott
International Policies (MIP) Anti-corruption Training is provided to all the
Hotel's employees annually, with an aim to educate our staff about anti-
corruption and business integrity.

Bribery in any form is prohibited. All Hotel staff are required to stringently
abide by the anti-corruption guidelines and policies of the Hotel. In
cases when breaching of Marriott International’s internal policies of
anti-corruption guidelines is spotted, disciplinary actions, including
immediate termination of employment and involvement of local
authorities, would be taken. Whistleblowing policy, hotline and mailbox
are set up for staff to report extortion, money laundering, fraud, bribery
and corruption. Whistle-blowers can come forward on the condition of
anonymity to protect themselves from retaliation.

Compliance

The Group strictly complies with the relevant laws and regulations,
including but not limited to the Sapin II: “Law on Transparency, Anti-
corruption Measures and the Modernisation of the Economy” in France.
During the Reporting Period, no legal case was filed against the Group,
the Hotel or its employees with regard to corruption issues.
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COMMUNITY

B8. Community Investment

The Hotel engaged in the Marriott TakeCare, which represents
Marriott International’s global commitment to promoting opportunity,
community and purpose for all. Marriott TakeCare offers holistic programs
beyond just physical well-being, including mental and emotional health,
career development, financial planning, team building, recognition,
sustainability and social impact, and much more. Forums were organised
to communicate the TakeCare programs with the Hotel staff quarterly.

It is our policy to encourage our employees and Hotel manager to
participate in and support community services in order to lead a healthy
and balanced lifestyle. The Hotel manager actively shared knowledge
about global issues and related topics with employees through internal
newsletters in order to promote better understanding and a deeper
appreciation for the contributions and struggles of people and cultures
different from one’s own and thus encourage them to participate in
various community activities.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to establish, maintain and
review a sound and effective risk management and internal control
systems. An enterprise risk management ("ERM") framework is in place to
implement risk management and internal control effectively.

Our risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve the Company’s
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable, but not absolute
assurance against material misstatements or losses.

RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

Effective risk management resides at all levels of the Group. Staff in
different business units identify and manage risks during their daily
operation, the management is responsible for identifying, assessing
and responding to risks at strategic level. Reporting to the Board, the
Audit Committee reviews and monitors major risks and effectiveness of
risk management and internal control systems. Through this top down
and bottom up approach, together with independent review by the
independent internal control consultant, assisted the Group to manage
its major risks in an effective manner.

Risk Management Structure
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Oversees the risk management and internal control systems;

Determines the Group's business strategies and risk appetite;

BEAKE 2 EHREEMARAZE

Reviews at least annually the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control

systems; and
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Monitors the risk management and internal control systems in an on-going manner.
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Audit Committee

gy
BEEE control systems;

Oversees the evaluation and improvement process of risk management and internal
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Reviews the Group's risk register; and
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Reviews and approves the internal control review plan and review results.
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Risk Management Structure

[ B B IR R A

Management and staff

EEENET

Internal audit function and
external auditors
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Identify and monitor all risks relevant to daily operations of the Group;
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Report to the Board and the Audit Committee on the risks identified including strategic,
operational, financial, reporting and compliance risks and its changes during the Year;
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Implement and execute and on-going monitor risk management and internal control
processes; and
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Develop and execute appropriate action plans to mitigate the risk-identified and to
resolve material internal control defects.
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Outsource the internal audit function to an independent internal control consultant;
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Review the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems;
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The scope of the internal control review is risk-based and is reviewed by the Audit
Committee;
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Communicate review result directly to the Audit Committee; and

HECZREQERBBRIER K&

External auditors are also able to communicate internal control issues they noticed
during their audit to the Audit Committee directly.
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RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

The risk management process defined the procedures for identifying,
assessing, responding and monitoring risks and their changes. The
management discusses regularly with each operating functions to collect
their views towards the risks they have identified at operation level, and
to strengthen their understanding to risk management at the Group’s
strategic view level to foster two way communication. Risk identification
is a continuous and interactive process, major risks are communicate
between the bottom and the top.

Define risk
universe

FE RS E

Monitoring and
report changes

B3 I #R 5 B

Mitigate risks
L2l

Significant risks are classified into one of the four categories: strategic,
operational, financial, reporting and compliance. After identified all
relevant risks, the management assesses the potential impact and
possibilities of the risks and prioritise the risks, appropriate internal control
measures are then developed to mitigate the risks. Also, effectiveness
of internal control measures and changes of risks are monitored in an
on-going manner and are communicated to the Board and the Audit
Committee to allow their monitoring at the top level.

60 Kai Yuan Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2022

Rk EERF
RiERRFREB@HEA - fHE - BHE R
ERRRMEEBH I ERF - EEEEHES
LERFETHR  AREHMELZERER
ERAIERERNER - X REEEER
BRUEERB B ANGR T AR EREIE - AREE
[ 58 o ﬂk%%e—ﬂﬁfﬁﬁkf 9
Mgt TRESEEZZRR

|dentify risks
29l

Assess risks
identified

AR [
Bl o 2R B2

ERAREFERAR/ATHRERNZ - K
%~ 20E - U5 BmKRAMR o ERAILAT
EEHERRE  EEEESNAAEARZ
BEZENRFENE  UREEAEBRRZE
FERRIRIRFF - HET I E B E B AR BE I i
Mhﬁﬂ o WS ARBERKEERAE

IEMZWﬂ&HA“E TEREFE
LREGZEGRBLIEE  EREESS
EBEEITES -



RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL REPORT

MAIN FEATURES OF OUR RISK MANAGEMENT AND

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

Maintain an effective internal control system at operational level
Establish clear internal control policies and procedures, clearly
define the responsibilities, authorities and accountabilities of each
key positions;

Establish code of conduct, explain the Group's requirements on
integrity and ethical value to all staff;

Establish whistleblowing mechanism, encourage employees to
report incidents of misconduct or fraud;

Establish appropriate level of information technology access rights,
avoid leakage of price sensitive information; and

Establish insider information disclosure policy, including reporting
channels and responsible person of disclosure, unified response
to external enquiries and obtain advices from professionals or the
Stock Exchange, if necessary.

In evaluating the effectiveness of internal control systems, the Board has
considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions.

On-going risk monitoring at risk management level

The management identifies and mitigates major risks according to the risk
management process, the identified risks are summarised in risk register
and submitted to the Board and the Audit Committee for their review
together with a 3-year internal control review plan to enable the Board
and the Audit Committee effectively monitor major risks of the Group and
how the risks are managed. Major risks relevant to the Group are shown
on pages 63 to 66 of this annual report.

REREERAEZERE

FAATEREERABERHEZE

EEe

EEEBEAR —BERNRBERE
HIEREN A BERRERIERF  BR
REEEEBIOBE  HERMEE

HERTER  AMERETHMEAKE
HMEREREREZER

HERBES  ZRERBRIETS
HAFF R

HIEEMPHERER ZEE FH - @&
RRRBEHEER &

HEANBBEERBERK - BRERERE
REERBEOAL  BINRERZHR—
Ol & K 6 7 B [ H A T3 P
BKER -

EFEABEEHNEZAN LR - EFE
ZEAEG - AMBE LM EREBET®
MER BIEEREREDRS  URE
THAEINBIRERERRERSRR

ERREEEE 2 FHERARER
EEERERREREREFEMNMEEEIEZR
o Bl R Z BB R ke B
I 3E F — (@3 F B M A BB B i T w1 81 - —
HEXTEZTERERZBEEMN  UEE
ERNERRERANERAREZIER
hERERERNE BAKEERLZ
T EZRBRBRAFRECHEROH °

BRERERAR | 2022 558 61



RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL REPORT

FEREERARREEERE

Independent review

The Group had appointed an independent internal control consultant
to conduct an internal control review' for the Year, the scope of review
has covered the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022. The
results of the internal control review has been submitted to the Audit

Committee.

The management had established remediation and improvement plan
for internal control weaknesses identified. Nothing had come to the Audit
Committee's or the Board’s attention to believe that risk management
and internal control systems of the Group were inadequate or ineffective.

! The internal control review performed by the internal control consultant
does not constitute an assurance engagement made in accordance with
the Hong Kong Standards on Auditing, Hong Kong Standards on Review
or Hong Kong Standards on Assurance Engagement issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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The Directors present their annual report and audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries comprise hotel operation and money lending.
The principal activities and other particulars of subsidiaries of the Group
are set out in note 1 to the financial statements.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's principal
activities during the Year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Please refer to the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
of this report for further details on review of the Group’s business and
particulars of important events affecting the Group during the Year,
together with future development of the Group.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The following are the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the
Group's hotel operation segment and money lending segment as
determined by the Board. The content below is not intended to be an
exhaustive list of all the risks and uncertainties that may arise.

Hotel Operation

(i) Operational risks
Notwithstanding the active monitoring and supervision of
performance of the Hotel by the Group, daily operations of the
Hotel are delegated to the hotel manager, pursuant to hotel
management agreement signed with third party hotel manager.
Dependent on the ability of hotel manager, the failure of hotel
manager to manage the hotel in an efficient and effective manner
could have a material adverse effect on financial results of the
Group.
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(ii)

(i)

(iv)

Furthermore, if any of the hotel management agreements
are terminated prior to their expiration, we may experience
disruptions to our operations, and will then be required to seek for
replacement of hotel manager.

Finally, the Hotel is operated under brand name of the hotel
manager. As a result, the continuation on revenue generation
relies on the success of the hotel manager in maintaining
reputation and enhancing the recognition of their brand.

Competition

The Group owns a Hotel in France in which the hospitality
industry is highly competitive due to ongoing supply of new
hotels and renovation of existing hotel properties. The intensity
of competition is affected by a range of factors including political
stability of country where the Hotel is located, regional and global
economic conditions, convenience of location, interior design
and amenities offered, as well as travel pattern of customers. The
Group is committed to offer the best of our services and hotel
experience to our guests.

Economic and market risks

The Group's business is exposed to risks of unfavourable
movements in the global and regional economies and financial
markets, in particular to the markets where the Hotel is located.
Change in economic conditions would lead to recession, inflation,
deflation, currency fluctuations, availability of financing, interest
rates and other factors that are beyond control of the Group.
Occurrence of any of the above may reduce revenue, increase
operating costs and lower asset value of the Group.

Terrorism, diseases and natural disasters

The Group's business could be adversely impacted by acts of
God, natural disasters, wars, terrorist attacks, riots, diseases and
other events beyond our control. The Group cannot predict the
occurrence of these events. An increased threat of terrorism
would affect travel patterns and reduce the number of travellers
of different categories. All of the above events would eventually
adversely affect the business and financial performance of our
Hotel.
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(vi)

(vii)

Indebtedness and interest rates

The Group maintains certain level of indebtedness to partly
finance the hotel property investment. The indebtedness level
could increase the vulnerability of the Group to adverse general
economic or industry conditions, and restrict the Group from
making strategic acquisitions or taking advantage of business
opportunities. Hence, increase in interest rates could materially
and adversely affect the results of the Group.

Foreign exchange fluctuations

The Group has operations in France, Luxembourg, the PRC and
Hong Kong, where transactions and cash flow are denominated
mainly in Euro, Renminbi, United States dollar and Hong Kong
dollar. Therefore, the Group’s financial results are exposed
to foreign exchange risk as a result of fluctuation in currency
exchange rates.

Information technology systems

The Group is dependent on information technology systems
provided by the hotel manager and by other third parties to
monitor and operate the day-to-day operations of the Hotel.
These systems include booking, check-in/check-out, management
of rooms and collection of payment etc. Any disruption of these
systems could result in the Hotel failing to operate. Furthermore,
operations of the above systems are also subject to information
security and cyber threats. The Group together with the hotel
manager will consistently review, maintain or upgrade these
information technology systems when required to minimize
system down-time and defend against cyber threats.

(vi)

(vii)
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Money Lending

(i) Credit risk
A credit risk is the risk of default on a loan that may arise from
borrowers failing to meet loan repayment obligation when due.
To control credit risk, the Group requires borrowers to provide
sufficient collaterals before mortgage loans will be granted.
We will also regularly monitor and review our loan portfolio.
Notwithstanding these measures, the Group might still suffer
from financial loss if the economic climate in Hong Kong changes
adversely and abruptly so that net proceeds from disposal of
collaterals might become insufficient to cover mortgage loan
granted and loan interests receivable.

Environmental Policies

We are attentive to consumption of natural resources and reduction of
pollution during the course of managing our businesses. It is our goal
to minimise our environmental impacts through recycling of materials,
encouragement of resources savings and reduction of wastes. The Group
is committed to ensure our compliance with relevant environmental
protection laws and regulations. We also require our business partners to
comply with relevant environmental protection laws and regulations. For
further details on performance of the Group on environmental aspects
during the Year, please refer to our Environmental, Social and Governance
Report on pages 41 to 57.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations
The Group requires operations of the Company and its subsidiaries to
comply with the relevant laws and regulations in the territories in which
we operate. During the Year, the Board was not informed of any events
relating to violation of laws and regulations.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

The Group has in place remuneration policies to ensure provision of
adequate rewards to employees with recognised experience of the
assigned roles and duties. The Group also provides other benefits
including bonuses, mandatory provident fund scheme, medical insurance
scheme and participation to share option scheme.

The Group places high priority on maintaining good relationship with our
customers. We have in place a mechanism to keep track on customers’
feedback and identify areas for improvement. Customer’s complaints
once acknowledged and reported will be dealt with timely, fairly and
diligently.
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To ensure efficient delivery of quality products and services to our
customers, the Group recognises the importance of maintaining close
and long-term relationship with suppliers. The Group will ensure fairness
when conducting procurement activities and a consistent balance on
qualities of products and services against value-for-money.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the
state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the audited financial
statement pages 82 to 187.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

Dividend Policy

The Board may from time to time propose the payment of a dividend,
if any, with respect to the shares of the Company listed on the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the following dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”).
Subject to the relevant laws of Bermuda and the Bye-laws, dividend may
be proposed and/or declared by the Board for a financial year or period as:

(i) interim dividend;
(i) final dividend;
(iif) special dividend; and

(iv) any distribution of net profits that the Board may deem
appropriate.

Any final dividend proposed by the Board for any financial year shall be
subject to the approval by the shareholders of the Company.
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The declaration of a dividend is subject to the discretion of the Board,
which will take into account the following factors, in no particular order of
importance, when considering the payment of a dividend:

(a) the financial results of the Group;

(b) the cash flow situation and future cash requirements of the Group;

(@] the general business conditions and strategies of the Group;

(d) the future capital expenditure or debt settlement requirements of

the Group;
(e) future operations and earnings of the Group;
6] the taxation consideration;

(9) the statutory and regulatory restrictions; and
(h) any other factors the Board may deem relevant.

Given the fluctuating nature of earnings or loss of the Group, the
Board does not recommend setting a target dividend payout ratio, or
maintaining a consistent dividend payment over time. There can be no
assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any specific
period.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to time.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years, as extracted from the audited financial statements
and restated as appropriate is set out on page 188. This summary does not
form part of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS
Details of movements in the Company's share capital and share options
during the Year are set out in notes 30 and 31 to the financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or the
laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF

LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the Year, neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of Company and the Group during
the Year are set out in note 44 to the financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
Details of the distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December
2022 are set out in note 44 to the financial statements.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS
During the Year, the Company did not make any charitable contributions
(2021: Nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted
for approximately 22% of the total sales for the Year, sales to the largest
customer included therein amounted to approximately 8%. Purchases
from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 40%
of the total purchases for the Year, purchases from the largest supplier
included therein amounted to approximately 14% of the total purchases
for the Year.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company's issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group'’s
five largest customers or suppliers disclosed above.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Xue Jian (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen
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Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Tam Sun Wing

Mr. Ng Ge Bun

Mr. He Yi

Ms. Kwok Pui Ha (Ms. Kwok was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director with effect from 1 January 2023)

The Directors, save and except for the Chairman (if any), are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of
the Company in accordance with Bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2).

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 16 to 18 of this
report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting had a service contract which was not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

DIRECTOR’S REMUNERATION

Subject to shareholders’ approval at annual general meetings authorising
the Board, remuneration of the Directors are determined by the Board
with reference to the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance
and the results of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Bye-laws provides that the Directors for the time being acting in
relation to any of the affairs of the Company, shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which
they may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done. The Company
has arranged for insurance cover on Directors’ and officers’ liabilities to
provide appropriate cover for legal actions brought against its Directors
and officers arising out of corporate activities of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director or any entity connected with a Director was materially
interested, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries
was a party subsisting during the Year or at the end of the Year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
The Group entered into or maintained following management contracts
for its Hotel during the Year.

Paris Marriott Hotel

The Group maintained a management agreement (dated 16 June 1995),
as amended from time to time (the "Marriott Agreement”) in relation to
management of Paris Marriott Hotel, with Marriott Hotels Manager France
SAS (“Marriott”). The Marriott Agreement shall continue for thirty years
after 1 January 2000. Marriott has option to renew the Marriott Agreement
on the same terms and conditions for each of three successive periods of
ten years.

The Group signed a hotel asset management services contract with
Jones Lang LaSalle Hotels & Hospitality Group in relation to the Paris
Marriott Hotel on 25 August 2022. The contract period commenced on 1
November 2022 and will expire on 31 October 2025.

No Director had interests in the above contracts.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2022, none of the Directors or chief executive of the
Company had interests and short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQ")) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant to the
Model Code, for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Director or their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such
rights exercised by them; save as disclosed in the section titled “Share
option scheme” below, the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was not a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire such rights in the Company on any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group'’s operations. Further details of the
Scheme are disclosed in note 31 to the audited financial statements.
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CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance (including any such contract for provision of
services to the Company and its subsidiaries by a substantial shareholder
of the Company or its subsidiaries) to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a substantial shareholder of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during
the Year.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION
The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s listed securities.

PERSONS HOLDING 5% OR MORE INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, the following persons (other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long Position

EXREN

ARA S EATTM B AR B ER L AR A K
HEMMBARZEERRNETERKME
BEHRAEA#D  HRAFEFEALFA
ERESEDAERZERNERAGH(BEALR
AREMBARN —RETERRAARA R
HB R RRERBOEFMEBEL) -

BERERHR
AAREFMERRA BRBERAR LD
BEFMEAEARARLRHE

RGO RMEBRAFHFE5%Z U L
EmZ AT
RZZE-_—F+-_A=+—8  BEAQA
BRELSNIAEIENFEB6ERTETFTFEL
Bzt THAL(RRREEHTE
FTRABBIN EARR R Z D KA KD+
BEERSIAR

"R

Number of Percentage of

ordinary issued share
Name of shareholders Capacity shares held capital
Fr¥s HERT
NPt &4 HBERYE RAE 7L
Mr. Du Shuang Hua ' Interest of controlled corporation 708,000,000 5.54%
HEEESE A REEHEE 2 R
Happy Sino International Limited ' Beneficial interest 708,000,000 5.54%
Bt
Mr. Zhang He Vi Beneficial interest 1,400,000,000 10.96%
RAMFESLLE Bt
Ms. Lu Xiaomei ? Interest of controlled corporation 753,190,000 5.89%
BR/ MG AL REHDEE 2 s
Sincere Profit Group Limited ? Beneficial interest 753,190,000 5.89%
Bagn
Ga Leung Investment Company Limited ? Beneficial Interest 1,866,666,666 14.61%

ERBREARARS
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Number of Percentage of

ordinary issued share
Name of shareholders Capacity shares held capital
P LB 1T
REHE BB =27} EZBEREE &Nl
Mr. Sun Yong Feng 3 Interest on controlled corporation 1,866,666,666 14.61%
FROK I 5 A REGEAE 2 s
Beneficial interest 133,000,000 1.04%
B
Ms. Meng Ya * Interest of spouse 1,999,666,666 15.65%
At [y 2
Mr. Hu Yishi Beneficial interest 1,300,000,000 10.17%
HAZE B ST A B

Mr. Du Shuang Hua and Mr. Zhang He Yi beneficially owns 85% and 15%
interest respectively in the issued share capital of Happy Sino International
Limited. Mr. Du Shuang Hua is deemed to be interested in the 708,000,000
shares held by Happy Sino International Limited under the provisions of
the SFO.

Ms. Lu Xiaomei beneficially owns 100% interest in the issued share capital
of Sincere Profit Group Limited. Ms. Lu Xiaomei is deemed to be interested
in the 753,190,000 shares held by Sincere Profit Group Limited under the
provisions of the SFO.

Mr. Sun Yong Feng beneficially owns 100% interest in the issued capital
of Ga Leung Investment Company Limited. Mr. Sun Yong Feng is deemed
to be interested in the 1,866,666,666 shares held by Ga Leung Investment
Company Limited under the provisions of the SFO.

Ms. Meng Ya is the spouse of Mr. Sun Yong Feng. Ms. Meng Ya is deemed
to be interested in the 1,999,666,666 shares in which Mr. Sun Yong Feng is
interested.

MEZESERRMEXEDEZHES
Happy Sino International Limited & 2 77 %
A85% K& 15%Em o RIBEH K EBE K
16§ 3+ HE B EE kA A AR B B Happy Sino
International Limited$¥ & 2 708,000,000 8% i%
DR -

B 7]\ 1§ 2 £ & % % A Sincere Profit Group
Limited 2 /TR AN 100% 25 » RIBEH KR
BRI HES » B8/ IME R TR AR Sincere
Profit Group Limited ¥ & 2 753,190,000 3% %
DGR -

BXEEEEREERERINEBRARBDE
TR 100%HE 25 © 1R IR 75 5 K B SR FIK
X HoKIELEERBARERIEERR AR
7 21,866,666,6660% X 15 B s o

TR T BFEKIE S E 2B - ZHZ W
BB FRKIE S A A #E 2k 2.1,999,666,666
ARAZ 1D R e fE s o

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, no person, other BREXHIEREN  RZZTEZ_F+=H

than the Directors and chief executive of the Company, whose interests =+t—B #BMEENAT(KRAFRESTREE
or short positions are set out in the section titled “Directors’ and chief TTERABBRIN - BEMEE 2 BEIOXEH
executive’s interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares REXTEEREZITHRABRKSD - HBER
and debentures” above, had any interest or short position in the shares DRESF2ERRAE |- RARE 2K

or underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded M HERO FHEEREE S RAEKGE
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO. 3361RZARER T ae bk Z (TR SORE ©
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Particulars of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out
in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 19 to 40 of this report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Company did not have any connected transactions
and continuing connected transactions which were subject to
the disclosure requirements of the Listing Rules. The related party
transactions as disclosed in note 39 to the audited financial statements
did not fall under the definition of connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions in the Listing Rules. The Company confirms that
the Group has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, the Company had maintained a sufficient
public float throughout the year ended 31 December 2022 and as at the
date of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Details of the significant events of the Group after the reporting period
are set out in note 43 to the audited financial statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

Emolument policy on the remuneration of the Directors and the
employees of the Group is reviewed periodically and determined by
reference to market terms, the Group’s performance and individual
qualifications and performance. The Company has adopted the Scheme
as an incentive to the Directors and eligible employees, details of the
Scheme are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by Ernst & Young (“EY”). EY
shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of EY as auditors of the Company is to
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Law Wing Chi, Stephen
27 March 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'REPORT

Ernst & Young
27" Floor, One Taikoo Place
979 King’s Road

EY Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

To the shareholders of Kai Yuan Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kai Yuan
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 82 to 187, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

B AHETRES
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section
of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our
audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the
basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial

statements.

Key audit matter

HMREEEE

BEETERE)

AITERITRED [ LRI FRE G HH
KAOEME|—SMANEE  BREAEZESE
HAEE » Bt - ATHEZ TIEREETT
BREEERATHAMHMBHRRLAEX
R R SRR o RITHETE
RIEFNER  BREMREEATEEMET
IR - BATTHBEM A 6 B B |MRAAE D
BB RIRMER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ERNEFNAEZRARENSE

Impairment assessment of a hotel property located in France (“French Hotel Property”)

W ROZBL2Z TG (DEBEE Y )2 B BRI

The Group had the French hotel property with a carrying
amount of HK$2,341 million, representing 65% of the total
assets of the Group as at 31 December 2022. As the carrying
amount of the Group's net assets was higher than the Group's
market capitalisation, the Group involved external experts
to perform an impairment assessment on the French Hotel
Property based on an income approach to estimate the fair
value less costs of disposal. This matter was significant to our
audit because the balance of the French Hotel Property was
material to the consolidated financial statements. Further, the
assessment process was complex and involved significant
judgements.

R-ZE-_—_H+-A=+—HB - BEEEEAREER

2,341,000,0008 T 2 EZBBEE % - HEih EEEBREE
65% ° AR BEBFEEZEEESR BE£EBZER

mE - BERETHINEERBERNEREBREEDE
EITRERE - AEATEREHERAE o i ERE M
MEFTBER  RE/ZEEENEZ EHREERS MR
RBER - 1o - FHEBREEM - B REXHE -

Related disclosures about the impairment of non-financial
assets are included in note 3 to the financial statements.

ERFemEEREZRBARESHNUHERERMES -
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Our audit procedures included, among others, assessing
the competence, capabilities and objectivity of its external
experts and involving our valuation experts to assist us in
evaluating the methodologies used by the Group's external
experts to determine the fair value less costs of disposal as at
31 December 2022 and testing the assumptions, in particular,
the average daily rate per room, occupancy rate, discount rate,
long-term growth rate and terminal capitalisation rate.
BB REFEE(ETEE)FHINEER ZEEE
B ROREEMN  UZHRMANBEZRBEIHMT
B SESEE/IERIZRET_ZT__F+-_A=+—HBZ
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

BREETEER

B AHETRES

FREETERE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANBFTNNEERARETSE

Provision for impairment of a loan to the associate

TR THE N FlZ B2 BERER

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a loan to an
associate of approximately HK$230 million and a provision for
impairment of the loan to the associate of HK$107 million. The
Group involved external experts to perform a credit evaluation
and assess expected credit losses of the loan. Provision was
made for lifetime expected credit losses (“ECL") on loan to
an associate, taking into consideration the recoverability
of collateral held. This matter was significant to our audit
because the balance and impairment charge of the loan were
material to the consolidated financial statements. Further, the
assessment process was complex and involved significant
judgements.

RoB-—F+-A=+-F  REERETHED
AIZERRRETHERARAZERZAERED A RLD
230,000,000 7T &% 107,000,000 7 - BEBETHIINER
FEEFETEENERAETEPEERBRE o K5 RPIHE
ER@OAEY - BSEERRETHEQLTNZERL
THEREEHER(TAREERE DT RERS - WFES
BANEAEBEE  REAZERZ AR IREX LR
EHMBRERBEE - o FEBEFEME  BPREXRY
o

Related disclosures about the provision for impairment of the
loan to the associate are included in note 39(b) to the financial
statements.

FRARETHMENR 2 ERZMERE 2 MRS NI
BHR&MIEE39(b) ©

Our audit procedures included, among others, assessing the
competence, capabilities and objectivity of its external experts,
involving our valuation experts to assist us in evaluating
the methodologies used by the Group’s external experts
to determine the expected credit losses of the loan to the
associate and the recoverable amount of collateral as at 31
December 2022, and testing the assumptions and estimations
used in the valuation. For collateral held, we inspected
legal agreements and supporting documentation, checked
mortgage registration system, and obtained legal opinion to
confirm the legal right to collateral and priority of settlement.
BHANEARFERE(ETERE) FEIBER Z2HE
BE - R IREEY  THRMANGEEZRIGEIFK I
B BS£E/NEERpET-_TS-_—_F+=-A=+—-HZ
RETHES LA ZERNEREEEHE LB DO
SHAER2AE  URASRGEMANSERRE A
e stPTERmME - BfIREEERZERERXM -
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us
after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Shun Lung Wai.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

M AEE 32
mEBmR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE"Z-—F+-A=+—RALFE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Notes HKS’000 HKS$000
it FET FET
REVENUE g 5 153,519 93,934
Cost of sales SHEER AR (154,313) (138,254)
Gross loss EE (794) (44,320)
Other income and gains HAth WA e M za 5 36,719 98,449
Provision for impairment of a loan to RETHENRZERZ
an associate AR 39(b) (3,525) (103,641)
Other expenses Hihf% 6 (619) (17,965)
Administrative expenses THHAXZ (34,427) (31,978)
Finance costs BB A 7 (46,293) (44,884)
Share of loss of an associate it AN o E = - (25,532)
LOSS BEFORE TAX BRI AT E 1R 8 (48,939) (169,871)
Income tax credit SR e 11 7,823 5,508
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FABIE (41,116) (164,363)
Attributable to: AT RE(
Owners of the Company EREHEB A (41,116) (164,363)
(41,116) (164,363)

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY
Basic and diluted
- For loss for the year

ARBEBESH A ARG
BRER

—-REREBRMS

HK(0.32) cents
B

HK(1.29) cents
AL
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meZHEBER

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE—Z-—F+-A=+—RLFE

2022 2021
—E-— —E-—F
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
Hfat FET FET
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FREE (41,116) (164,363)
Cash flow hedges: WemEE A
Effective portion of changes in fair value iWFiZ%ﬂT?*Iﬂ
of hedging instruments arising during NEEEF 2
the year B WER D 25 77,941 6,852
Reclassification adjustments for loss ABRGZAERRZ
included in the consolidated statement BBz EN D EAR
of profit or loss 25 (2,089) 3,067
Income tax effect PR & 29 (18,963) (2,480)
56,889 7,439
Exchange differences: MEHZHE
Exchange differences on translation of BMEIBINETSFIEE 2
foreign operations FEHZ% (68,875) (71,926)
Net other comprehensive loss that may be ~ RE&HAMAIsEE D
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent EEmR A EMEE
periods B8 55 (11,986) (64,487)
Other comprehensive income that will not be R EZHF A& EFHH A
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent §T§ mRZJAMEER
periods: WA
Actuarial reserve relating to employee 5= Eﬂ$ﬁ?@ﬂ’]ﬁ§:+1ﬁ
benefits, net of tax ® (BEMRTIR) 13 4%
Net other comprehensive income that will REBBRTSENHHE
not be reclassified to profit or loss in EEZRZAMER
subsequent periods WA FER 13 149
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR, SR E{th 2 &8
NET OF TAX (BHEBRHE) (11,973) (64,338)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR ~ F (N2 Th E5 124258 (53,089) (228,701)
Attributable to: LA pE(L -
Owners of the Company ViN/NCIEZZ =N (53,089) (228,701)
(53,089) (228,701)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

aRE SRR R

As at 31 December 2022
RZTEZ—F+=-R=+—H

2022 2021
—E-= B
Notes HKS’000 HKS$000
it FETT FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBNVE E
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE KM% 14 2,374,660 2,470,596
Right-of-use assets EREEE 15 3,525 543
Intangible assets B AE 16 461 186
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABRZ
profit or loss TREE 21 - 96,714
Loan to an associate REFHE AR ZER 39(b) - 87,235
Derivative financial instruments TESRmITE 25 30,374 387
Deferred tax assets RIETHIAE 29 31,126 42,865
Total non-current assets EREBEERE 2,440,146 2,698,526
CURRENT ASSETS MBNE E
Inventories FE 18 897 576
Trade receivables FE U BR FX 19 12,111 4,539
Prepayments, other receivables and TERT IR - B EYGRIE
other assets REMEE 20 49,146 52,466
Loan to an associate REFHE AR ZER 39(b) 122,547 48,108
Financial assets at fair value through AT EABRZ
profit or loss SREE 21 97,109 -
Derivative financial instruments PTESMTAE 25 50,008 =
Pledged deposits BEEMFR 22 19,802 39,276
Time deposits TE HATF K 22 124,580 =
Cash and cash equivalents BEMIBEEEY 22 700,237 871,732
Total current assets mEEEAE 1,176,437 1,016,697
Total assets BEE 3,616,583 3,715,223
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENBE
Trade payables FESRRER 23 7,157 1,354
Other payables and accruals Eab e IANMETB R 24 77,530 58,339
Derivative financial instruments TESRTA 25 = 516
Lease liabilities HEAE 26 1,530 481
Tax payable FER AR 6,348 3,502
Total current liabilities MBI BEERE 92,565 64,192
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENE EFE 1,083,872 952,505
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES wEERRDEE 3,524,018 3,651,031
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e AR R

As at 31 December 2022
RZEZZF+=-A=+—H

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
Htat FHET FET
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES wEERRESAE 3,524,018 3,651,031
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EmBEE
Other long term payables H b = BAFE A 5018 28 1,699 1,635
Interest-bearing bank borrowings SHEIRITEE 27 1,450,071 1,516,793
Lease liabilities HEAE 26 2,163 =
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE 29 139,439 148,868
Total non-current liabilities MBI B EETE 1,593,372 1,667,296
Net assets BEFE 1,930,646 1,983,735
EQUITY M
Share capital 5N 30 1,277,888 1,277,888
Reserves [tz 32 652,758 705,847
Total equity B 1,930,646 1,983,735

Approved on behalf of the board of directors:

Xue Jian
[

Director

EF

REREFSHE -

Law Wing Chi, Stephen
Director

EFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-_—F+-A=-t+—BLEFE

Cashflow  Exchange

Share hedge  fluctuation
Share Share option  Retirement reserve* reserve*  Accumulated Total
capital  premium*  reseve*  reservet  BEFE EXRD losses* equity

B Efefr BRERE Brolf  Week B TER  RudE
HISOOD  HKSOW RSO0 HKSOMO SO0 MO SO0 KO
TEr  TRT  TEr  TRn TEr TRr TEr TEn

At January 1, 2001 RCBC-F-RA-Az84 1277888 1007637 2158 545 (7554 (36839) (G140 221243
Loss for the year ENER = = = = = = (164363) (164363)
Other comprehensive loss or the year: ERihEEEE:
Cash low hedges, net o tax RemEin
(BHBRE) - - - - 749 - - 7439
Exchange differences on translation RESNSEHMEE,
of foreign operations ExEE = = = = - (71,926) - (71,926)
Actuarial reserve relting to AESEHIAENRE
employee benefits, net of tax EES(BNRHE) = - . 149 - ; _ 149
Total comprehensive loss for the year ENREERLE = = = 149 7439 (11926) (164363) (228701)

At31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 R-E--E+-f=1+-Bk

“E--F-B-H 1277888 1027637 2158 694 (115 (108764) (215,763) 1,983,735
Loss for the year EnEE - = = = - - (41116)  (41,116)
Other comprehensive loss forthe year: EREMZEEE:
Cash flow hedges,net of tax Renekn
(BHIHE) - - - - 56889 - - 56889
Exchange differences on translation BEBINERMEE,
of foreign operations EHEE = = = = - (68,875) - (6887
Actuarial eserve relating to EESRARIEE
employee benefits net o tax B (B1RHEE) - = = 13 i - - 13
Total comprehensive loss for the year ERAEERLE - = = 13 56889 (68875  (an116)  (53,089)

Transfer of shae option reserve upon RERERNEERERERE

the lapse of share options - - (2,158) - - - 2,158 -
At 31 December 2022 RZE-ZF+ZA=1-H 1,277,888 1,027,637 - 707 56,774 (177,639) (254,721) 1,930,646
& These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of o HEFEEBEXGATBERIBRERRZ
HK$652,758,000 (2021: HK$705,847,000) in the consolidated statement of 4RA FE#652,7580008 L ( — T - —F :
financial position. 705,847,000% 7T ) ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
MERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE—Z-—F+-A=+—RLFE

2022 2021
—E-C —E-—F
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
HtaE FHET FEIT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES KAREEHHERE
Loss before tax: MREAIERE (48,939) (169,871)
Adjustments for: IEPE AT A% -
Finance costs (excluding interest expense of BE A (R EAR 5T 21
defined benefit plan) FEFZEBRIN 46,278 44,877
Share of loss of an associate g o = - 25,532
Interest income from a loan to an associate RE|TBHERRZERZ
FEHA 5 (7,222) (12,085)
Investment income from financial assets BAFEFAERZ
at fair value through profit or loss EREEIRERA 5 (7,828) (7,828)
Change in fair value of an investment in BRESFEEZ
convertible bonds NEEES 5 (395) 9,619
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME  BENMRETE 14 37,098 38,186
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE 15 1,614 1,625
Amortisation of intangible assets BB 16 41 32
Provision for impairment of an investment in REENRZIREZ
an associate VEREREL 17 = 8,302
Provision for impairment of a loan to an associate  f2fit F—RE & A7 2
ERREREE 39(b) 3,525 103,641
Defined benefit plan expenses RERAGEIRX 28 168 151
24,340 42,181
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEUEM),/ SR (321) 110
Increase in trade receivables FE U BR 2R3 A (7,572) (4,539)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, other TARFUE « EMEMEIE R
receivables and other assets ﬁﬁﬁ?—:ﬂ” L/ ($1n) 3,320 (11,843)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables FERTBR R 00, CRi ) 5,803 (1,730)
Increase in other payables and accruals ﬁ’rlﬁﬁ’&%ﬁmlﬁi&
FEZTE RN 19,190 16,201
Net cash flows generated from BEFEN S
operating activities RemeFH 44,760 40,380
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-_—F+-A=-t+—BLEFE

2022 2021
—E_- —E-—F
Note HK$’000 HKS'000
Htax FET FEIT
Net cash flows generated from REFEE
operating activities RemEFH 44,760 40,380
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REREEBZHERE
Increase in time deposit TE BRI N (124,580) =
Purchases of items of property, BEWE - MEKREESR
plant and equipment (75,968) (16,922)
Purchases of intangible assets HBEEFEE (331) -
Interest received EUHI S 13,933 7,828
Net cash flows used in investing activities REEZSHAREE SRS T8 (186,946) (9,094)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES REMERD L HERE
Decrease in pledged deposits BEFFFR S 19,474 99
Principal portion of lease payments HENKAE2HH (1,385) (1,797)
Interest paid BEAFIE (39,476) (38,247)
Net cash flows used in financing activities MEEESFARSRE T (21,387) (39,945)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND Re kR EEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS B R (163,573) (8,659)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year i?}]ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%@% 871,732 892,871
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [EREE) s 2T (7,922) (12,480)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATEND OF YEAR SRS RIBEEEY 22 700,237 871,732
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br RS ERAR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-Z-_—F+-A=1+—ALFE

BRERERAT | 2022 FF% 89

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. 2QRARKEEEHR
The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted AARTDRBRETIMA I 2 EHRE
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on The ERETRA  EBRMHREBHBA
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). T BRAR([EZ]) B o
The address of the registered office of the Company is Clarendon NN &) 5 it 3% = BR b E & Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda, and the House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
principal place of business is located at 28th Floor, Chinachem Bermuda * EE& B AN EEE
Century Tower, 178 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. FETITE 1785 E M 40 B 5 281 o
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding, and KRB EBEK AR EIER ZIE T
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in hotel operation and BARTENESHELREREEET -
money lending.
Information about subsidiaries NG =g
Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are as follows: AKABIHEBARFBEMT :
Percentage of
Place of incorporation issued share/registered
or registration/ Issued ordinary/ capital attributable
place of operations registered to the Company
Form of BRI AT share capital ANRES
Name of subsidiary legal entity B ming BRITLER/ BRITRG,/ Principal activities
WEARER EERERA - piok s ZfRA aMEAFAL  TEEHR
Direct% Indirect %
E#% %
Crown Value Limited Corporation Hong Kong/Hong Kong HK$80,984,251 100 - Investment holding
("Crown Value")
([Crown Valuel) A B/ EE 80984251787 REER
Splendid Holdings Sar.l. Corporation Luxembourg/Luxembourg EUR20,000 - 100 Investment holding
A ERE/ERE 20,0001 REER
MCE OpCo HoldCo Corporation France/France EUR1,000 = 100 Investment holding
NG Ve W 1,008 7 AR
MCE OpCo Corporation France/France EUR17,835,915 = 100 Hotel operation
AL B/ R 1783591580 & BERE
Splendid PropCo Corporation France/France EUR44,000,010 - 100 Owner of a hotel
property
AL =B/ 5B 44,000,010BX % BEENERAA
Global Strategy International ~ Corporation British Virgin Islands/ US$100 100 - Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong
ERERERERARD A EBARREE/ B 1005%7T RERR
Kai Yuan Capital Limited Corporation Hong Kong/Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Money lending
FRREBRAR A7 iE /B 10,0007 7T RWEXH
Star Wonder Limited Corporation Hong Kong/Hong Kong HKST - 100 Investment holding
ERBRAR A7 BE/BA 18T REER
Ever Info Limited Corporation British Virgin Islands/ US$100 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong
A7 RBERREE/ B 100X 7 REER



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS SRR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE-Z-_—_F+-A=+—HLFE

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Place of incorporation

1. 2RAREEERE)

A RER ()
ARFMBARFEDT : ()

Percentage of
issued share/registered

or registration/ Issued ordinary/ capital attributable
place of operations registered to the Company
Form of FEMRILS share capital b NG i3
Name of subsidiary legal entity BRames/ BRTEER/ BERTRG/ Principal activities
WEAREH EERREA geny AR adMERESIL  TEXEK
Direct% Indirect %
E#% %
Universal Yield Investments ~ Corporation British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100 - Investment holding
Limited © Hong Kong
EFREFRRA" R RBERREE/BE EM RERR
Deluxe (China) Limited Corporation Hong Kong/Hong Kong HKS1 = 100 Investment holding
FR(ME)ERAT R BB/ B 18T RERR
Shanghai Top Star Advanced ~ Wholly-owned The PRC/Mainland China US$35,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Materials Co., Limited foreign enterprise
iz BB A NEBELE /R AR 35,000,000 7T REER
BRRA
Ever Profit Management Corporation Hong Kong/Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 - Service provision
Limited
KM ERBRAR NG B/ B 1,000000787C AR
Charter Best Investments Corporation British Virgin Islands/Hong US$1 100 - Investment holding
Limited Kong
7] EBAERREE/ B EM REER
Oriental Institute of Science  Corporation Hong Kong/Hong Kong HKS$100 - 100 Research and
Limited development
A BE/BR 10087 g3
Full Kingdom Limited @ Corporation British Virgin Islands/Hong US$100 100 - Investment holding
Kong
A EREBREE/TE 1007 REER
New York Limited Corporation Hong Kong/Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 Investment holding
A Bh/ BB 10087 REER
0 No audited financial statements have been prepared for (i) HWEERTEGEBE_T_—F

TZA=t+—BLEFEZERZY
BHk  REAR/RBREEMAL
ZEVERE 2 BRED SRR 2R
E o RENREMEERTRANZ
PRl

these entities for the year ended 31 December 2022 as these
entities were not subject to any statutory audit requirement
under relevant rules and regulations in their jurisdictions of
incorporation.
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2.1

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”") (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for derivative financial instruments and an equity investment
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights
results in control. When the Company has, directly or indirectly,
less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

() the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

2.1

Br RS ERAR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-Z-_—F+-A=1+—ALFE

A EE
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HEED ]| BEABEBVERELE
Al - RS EN(TFE G EA])
kizk)  BREBRMZEHRAR
BELAGRIIZEBEREMRS - ¥
BHRRERBEELKANERRER - 1
TEEMTAREERAFEFAR
i 2 E WA Z AR ERI - MER
NFEFE - WFEMBHRRIIUET
25 BRBEREREIN  AEEEY

MEBEREOTT

RERE
REMBRREEBEAAALENB R
AR [AEEDBEE_T_—_Ft+
A=+ HLEFEZBBERE - K
BRARIRARREEXREENE
B(BREREER)  EAKEHZ
B EURER 2 F B E AR R
AEBRNANGEEBERAIRKRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-_—F+-A=-t+—BLEFE

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control described above. A change in
the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on
the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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2.2

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first

time for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

The application of the revised HKFRSs in the current year had no
material impact on the Groups’' consolidated financial position

Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
lllustrative Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41

and performance for the current and prior years.

Br RS ERAR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-Z-_—F+-A=1+—ALFE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS SRR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-_—F+-A=-t+—BLEFE

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between

HKAS 28 (2011) an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture’
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease liability in a Sale and Leaseback’
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts’
Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'>
Amendment to HKFRS 17 Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and

HKFRS 9 — Comparative Information®

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-

current (the “2020 Amendments”)>*

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(the “2022 Amendments”)’

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies’
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates’

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities

arising from a Single Transaction’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

g No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

4 As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective date of

the 2020 Amendments was deferred to annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2024. In addition, as a consequence of
the 2020 Amendments and 2022 Amendments, Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause was revised to align the corresponding wording
with no change in conclusion
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2.3

2.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in
October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary
exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than
HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

2 An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to
the classification overlay set out in this amendment shall apply it
on initial application of HKFRS 17

While the adoption of some of the new and revised HKFRSs may
result in changes in accounting policies, none of these HKFRSs is
expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control
or joint control over those policies.

The Group's investment in an associate is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's share
of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of an associate is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there has
been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate,
the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its
associate are eliminated to the extent of the Group's investment
in the associate, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from
the acquisition of the associate is included as part of the Group’s
investment in an associate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-_—F+-A=-t+—BLEFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investment in an associate (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant
influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture,
the Group measures and recognises any retained investment at
its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the
associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint
control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds
from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is classified
as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments and an
equity investment at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:
Level T - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
deferred tax assets, financial assets and non-current assets/a
disposal group classified as held for sale), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher
of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-_—F+-A=-t+—BLEFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group, and the sponsoring
employers of the post-employment benefit plan;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-_—F+-A=-t+—BLEFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and
equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a
disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated and
is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over the estimated useful life. The principal annual rates
used for this purpose are as follows:
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2.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in
the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed
funds during the period of construction. Construction in progress
is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised basis over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

The useful life of an intangible asset is shown as follows:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-_—F+-A=-t+—BLEFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHEHEBE®)
POLICIES (continued)
Leases HE
The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or AREBeRAYRABBIERZAELNR
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract LEAESRBSHE - i EeE
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a SEHAEEE —REBARNNARE
period of time in exchange for consideration. IR EAE - ZEHAEHESK
BEHEE -
Group as a lessee 7K EE B E AAFAA
The Group applies a single recognition and measurement AREBEHFEHEERBE AN
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of B HEHHERREEEEMEE
low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make B o REBEBRIAEHHASENRZ
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to HEeEaBEMEREEE(AERERE
use the underlying assets. B2 HER]) o
@) Right-of-use assets (a) FREEE
Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement FREEEREERKG B
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset (BB EETHFERB )
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured R - FHREEEZRKARE
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any ERRFITEREMFEEEE
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement 2 UnEEaGcHEME
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes HFAESEEAR - FHEESE
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct ZRABEEERATNEAES
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the BB OESEERAKA LA
commencement date less any lease incentives received. FRFAB B ZRIEEL 2
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis HEMNFREEMAE WKE 2
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated ERE FRHEEERERE
useful lives of the assets as follows: REH B EE <A E
RER(AREE BE)FTER
E SBeT
Lease terms
FHH
(Years)
()
Buildings BF 2-3
Motor vehicle a8 23
Office equipment HENE 3-4

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments to
be made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a
purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by
the Group and payments of penalties for termination of
a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate the lease. The variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as
an expense in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to all its short-term leases (that is those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option) and leases of items that are considered to be of
low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to each component on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis. Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis
over the lease terms and is included in other income and gains in
the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognised as other income and
gains in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee are
accounted for as finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group's business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (“SPPI") on the principal amount
outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI
are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets,
or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised
cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while
financial assets classified and measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are held within a business model
with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash
flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held within the
aforementioned business models are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably
its equity investments as equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income when they meet
the definition of equity under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled
to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as
other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and
the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably, except
when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of
part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains
are recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income are
not subject to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and
the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial
liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host
and accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a
separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the
hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit
or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms
of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that
would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial
asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a
financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial
asset host together with the embedded derivative is required to
be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-_—F+-A=-t+—BLEFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).
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2.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information. The Group considers that there has been a significant
increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more than
30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are classified
within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for
trade receivables which apply the simplified approach as detailed
below.
Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an

Stage2 -

amount equal to lifetime ECLs
Stage3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established
a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in
an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables, other
payables, derivative financial instruments, lease liabilities and
interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of profit
or loss.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as interest
rate swaps, to hedge its interest rate risk. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when
the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives
are taken directly to the statement of profit or loss, except for the
effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in other
comprehensive income and later reclassified to profit or loss when
the hedged item affects profit or loss.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:
fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes

in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or an
unrecognised firm commitment; or
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

(continued)

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)
cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to
variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a
particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability
or a highly probable forecast transaction, or a foreign
currency risk in an unrecognised firm commitment; or

hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally
designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the
Group wishes to apply hedge accounting, the risk management
objective and its strategy for undertaking the hedge.

The documentation includes identification of the hedging
instrument, the hedged item, the nature of the risk being hedged
and how the Group will assess whether the hedging relationship
meets the hedge effectiveness requirements (including the
analysis of sources of hedge ineffectiveness and how the
hedge ratio is determined). A hedging relationship qualifies for
hedge accounting if it meets all of the following effectiveness
requirements:

There is “an economic relationship” between the hedged
item and the hedging instrument.

The effect of credit risk does not “dominate the value
changes” that result from that economic relationship.

The hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same
as that resulting from the quantity of the hedged item
that the Group actually hedges and the quantity of the
hedging instrument that the Group actually uses to hedge
that quantity of hedged item.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(continued)

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)
Hedges which meet all the qualifying criteria for hedge
accounting are accounted for as follows:

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging
instrument is recognised directly in other comprehensive income
in the cash flow hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in the statement of profit or loss. The
cash flow hedge reserve is adjusted to the lower of the cumulative
gain or loss on the hedging instrument and the cumulative
change in fair value of the hedged item.

The amounts accumulated in other comprehensive income are
accounted for, depending on the nature of the underlying hedged
transaction. If the hedged transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of a non-financial item, the amount accumulated in
equity is removed from the separate component of equity and
included in the initial cost or other carrying amount of the hedged
asset or liability. This is not a reclassification adjustment and will
not be recognised in other comprehensive income for the period.
This also applies where the hedged forecast transaction of a non-
financial asset or non-financial liability subsequently becomes a
firm commitment to which fair value hedge accounting is applied.

For any other cash flow hedges, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to the statement of profit or
loss as a reclassification adjustment in the same period or periods
during which the hedged cash flows affect the statement of profit
or loss.

If cash flow hedge accounting is discontinued, the amount
that has been accumulated in other comprehensive income
must remain in accumulated other comprehensive income
if the hedged future cash flows are still expected to occur.
Otherwise, the amount will be immediately reclassified to the
statement of profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. After
the discontinuation, once the hedged cash flow occurs, any
amount remaining in accumulated other comprehensive income
is accounted for depending on the nature of the underlying
transaction as described above.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE-T-—F+-A=

2.4

+—BIEFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(continued)

Current versus non-current classification

Derivative instruments that are not designated as effective
hedging instruments are classified as current or non-current or
separated into current and non-current portions based on an
assessment of the facts and circumstances (i.e., the underlying
contracted cash flows).

Where the Group expects to hold a derivative as an
economic hedge (and does not apply hedge accounting)
for a period beyond 12 months after the end of the
reporting period, the derivative is classified as non-current
(or separated into current and non-current portions)
consistently with the classification of the underlying item.

Embedded derivatives that are not closely related to the
host contract are classified consistently with the cash
flows of the host contract.

Derivative instruments that are designated as, and are
effective hedging instruments, are classified consistently
with the classification of the underlying hedged item. The
derivative instruments are separated into current portions
and non-current portions only if a reliable allocation can
be made.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and, in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group's cash management.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to
cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

2.4

Br RS ERAR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-Z-_—F+-A=1+—ALFE

TEETBEBREH)

RERBESSEWE)

BB MBARRBRME - He kR
SEEVERTFRRETRES(BEE
HEREEEAURe R EERR
B EE) °

B

HWERBEFFEHE TR CAEIE
) EE - BARRAIBEARLBIRN
EBNEME  BEERBE  HELEAET
HEES R ERIER A S -

HMBERFEEN  BWARBREZER
SAEHBERENEEMERIRNER
HRGEAZHRE BERERAE
HEZEBRRBEE AR St ABRR
RZBERA

Frig®

SR e R FRERER - R
KA R ZIAB ZHEBEAE
B BRBRERANESHER - AR
Hib 2 E W AR NE RN B ER

BB IAEERAGBIIRENR 2R
REHEHERORERBM 2HE (R
BOR) » ERFAGEXRGHAEBRRE
Riz2BRED - NFEHA B RBH
R ERAR AN Z 2B E -

EREBRIBTERAEE - R 2H
REEHEERAB I RELEEIEY
BERBAG REERMAEREZHE
TR B -

BEERARAR | 20258 115



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-_—F+-A=-t+—BLEFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and an associate, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and an associate, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only
if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with
the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-_—F+-A=-t+—BLEFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

Revenue recognition for the hotel operation of the Group is
subject to HKFRS 15, including rendering of accommodation
services, catering services, travel agency services and laundry
services, each deemed as a separate performance obligation.
Such performance obligation is satisfied over time as the service
is rendered and revenue is recognised accordingly. Payment is
generally due within 30 days upon completion of the service.

Revenue from other sources
Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting period
in which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they
are granted.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in
equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the statement of profit or loss for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken
into account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is
assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance
conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated
service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions.
Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award
and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are
also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition
is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-_—F+-A=-t+—BLEFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial
to the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the statement
of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Defined benefit plans

The Group's subsidiaries which operate in France have obligations
to pay benefits to eligible employees either at the end of their
employment or during their retirement. The Group’s main defined
benefit plans provide indemnities payable to employees on
retirement or when they leave the Group.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits (continued)

Defined benefit plans (continued)

The Group operates an unfunded defined benefit pension
plan, which is covered by provisions recorded in the financial
statements. The cost of providing benefits under the defined
benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit
actuarial valuation method.

Remeasurements arising from a defined benefit pension
plan, comprising actuarial gains and losses are recognised
immediately in the consolidated statement of financial position
with a corresponding debit or credit to retained profits through
other comprehensive income in the period in which they
occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss at the earlier of:

(i) the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and
(i) the date that the Group recognises restructuring-related
costs

Interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the defined
benefit liability. The Group recognises the following changes in
the net defined benefit obligation under “cost of sales” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss by function:

(i) service costs comprising current service costs, past service
costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine

settlements

(ii) interest expense or income
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-_—F+-A=-t+—BLEFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement of translation of monetary items are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss with the
exceptions of monetary items that are designated as part of the
hedge of the Group’s net investment of a foreign operation. These
are recognised in other comprehensive income until the net
investment is disposed of, at which time the cumulative amount
is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss. Tax charges and
credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary
items are also recorded in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.
The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of
the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which
the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of
the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and an
associate are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
statements of profit or loss are translated into the presentation
currency at the exchange rates that approximate to those
prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-_—F+-A=-t+—BLEFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of Mainland China and overseas subsidiaries
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year of the cash flows.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined, based
on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements,
such as the lease term not constituting a major part of the
economic life of the commercial property and the present value
of the minimum lease payments not amounting to substantially
all the fair value of the commercial property, that it retains
substantially all the significant risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of these properties which are leased out and accounts
for the contracts as operating leases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making that
judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers
whether a property generates cash flows largely independently
of the other assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise
a portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
and another portion that is held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes. If these
portions could be sold separately or leased out separately under
a finance lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately.
If the portions could not be sold separately, the property is
an investment property only if an insignificant portion is held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an individual
property basis to determine whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as an investment

property.

Estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

Depreciation of items of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. Useful lives are
determined based on management’s past experience with similar
assets and estimated changes in technologies. If the estimated
useful lives changed significantly, adjustment of depreciation will
be provided in the future year. The carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment at 31 December 2022 was approximately
HK$2,374,660,000 (2021: approximately HK$2,470,596,000). More
details are given in note 14.

3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE-T-—F+-A=

3.

+—BIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-
use assets) at the end of each reporting period. Non-financial
assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
Group involved external experts to perform an impairment
assessment on the French hotel property with a carrying
amount of HK$2,341,192,000 as at 31 December 2022 (2021:
HK$2,432,317,000) based on an income approach to estimate
its fair value less costs of disposal. The assessment is based
on key assumptions, such as the average daily rate per room,
occupancy rate, discount rate, long-term growth rate and terminal
capitalisation rate. Further details are contained in note 14 to the
financial statements.

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
estimation is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to
recognised tax losses at 31 December 2022 was HK$50,332,000
(2021: HK$45,602,000). The amount of unrecognised tax losses at
1 December 2022 was HK$266,821,000 (2021: HK$252,245,000).
Further details are contained in note 29 to the financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
The fair values of the Group's investment in convertible bonds
are calculated using valuation techniques. Valuation techniques
are certified by an independent qualified valuer before being
implemented for valuation and are calibrated to ensure that
outputs reflect market conditions. Valuation models established
by the valuer make the maximum use of market inputs and rely as
little as possible on the Group’s specific data. The model involves
estimates on time to expiration, risk free rate, share price, share
price volatility, discount rates and others. As at 31 December 2022,
the carrying amount of the Group's investment in convertible
bonds was HK$97,109,000 (2021: HK$96,714,000). Further details
are contained in note 41 to the financial statements.

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 represent management’s
best estimate of losses incurred at the reporting date under ECL
models.

The measurement of the ECL involves significant management
judgements and assumptions, primarily including the selection
of appropriate models and determination of relevant key
measurement parameters, criteria for determining whether or
not there was a significant increase in credit risk or a default was
incurred, economic indicators for forward-looking measurement,
and the application of economic scenarios and weightings,
management consideration due to significant uncertain factors
not covered in the models and the estimated future cash flow. The
information about the ECLs on the Group’s loan to an associate is
disclosed in note 39(b) to the financial statements.

Impairment of an investment in an associate

The Group assesses annually if its investment in an associate
suffers any impairment in accordance with HKAS 36. The
assessment requires an estimation of future cash flows,
including expected dividends, from the assets and the selection
of appropriate discount rates. Future changes in financial
performance and position of these entities would affect the
estimation of impairment loss and cause in the adjustments of
their carrying amounts. Further details are contained in note 17 to
the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS SRR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-_—F+-A=-t+—BLEFE

4, OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has two reportable
operating segments (2021: two) as follows:

(a) the hotel operation segment engaged in the operation of
the hotel business in France; and

(b) the money lending segment engaged in providing
mortgage loans in Hong Kong.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before tax from
continuing operations. The adjusted profit/loss before tax from
continuing operations is measured consistently with the Group's
profit before tax from continuing operations except that interest
income, other interest income from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, interest income from loan to an associate,
fair value gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, share of loss of an associate and corporate expenses are
excluded from such measurement.

An analysis for the Group’s revenue is as follows:

4, REHITER

R BIR B AR 2 B R R RIS S
BEMS WL MU EE - KEEH T
SIMER RS EEDB(— T4 -
mfE) -

@ HEEBRGEEEEBBERL

B R

) EEBRERBERZBAE
BAH -

EREEBVERASEEE N LE
A AEELEBERDERREFN
HZRE - DEBRBDREAI|MED
BaF, R ERREREEE X
ZIESHERBANERN,BERZHE) T
IARHAE - REHBERLEEB 2 KRR
B B0 A A, 5 18 2 5t 8 B AN 52 (B 2R
BEREREXBZBRAEN 25 E
— B MEFBWA - BAFEE AR
B EREEEMABWA - R
THERRZERZAMBWA - B
FEFABZZEREEZAFER
7 BEBEARZBRELAFRX
YAHEER o

REBZ WS DHMT

Hotel Money
Year ended 31 December 2022 operation lending Total
BE-E-_—_F+-A=+—HLEFE B E & B R st
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FHET
Segment revenue (note 5) 7Bz (HEES)
Sales to external customers RN REHE 153,519 - 153,519
Segment results DEBHEE (51,044) (942) (51,986)
Reconciliation: HAR
Bank interest income HRITH EWA 7,409
Interest income from financial assets 22 FEzT ABZRZ &
at fair vale through profit or loss REEZF B WA 7,828
Interest income from a loan toan 32t FHE & AR 2 B
associate ZFEHA 7,222
Fair value gain on financial assets at A EFFABRZE
fair value through profit or loss BEE s AT EYE 395
Provision for impairment of a loan to 2 ft FHt &N a2 B3
an associate ZIRBE R (3,525)
Corporate and other unallocated A& R H M KD ELF
expenses (16,282)
Loss before tax BRSBTS 18 (48,939)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Br RS ERAR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-Z-_—F+-A=1+—ALFE

4. REZIERGE)

Year ended 31 December 2021 Hotel Money
operation lending Tota
BE—_T-_—F+-_A=1t—HILFE B JE 4 R eSS st
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$000
FET FET FET
Segment revenue (note 5) 7 e 7 (KaEs)
Sales to external customers AINER R F S E 93,934 = 93,934
Segment results DEEE (29,055) (627) (29,682)
Reconciliation: HER
Bank interest income HRITH EWA 3,208
Interest income from financial BAFEABZRZ
assets at fair vale through TREEZHBHA
profit or loss 7,828
Interest income from a loan to an 2t FEEZE AT 2
associate B2 FBWA 12,085
Fair value loss on financial BAFEFABZEZ
assets at fair value through EMEEZAFE
profit or loss [E518 (9.619)
Provision for impairment of RETFELE NG 2
a loan to an associate B2 R ERE (103,641)
Share of loss of an associate FE(LEEE N 2 B8 (25,532)
Provision for impairment of REERTZIREZ
an investment in an associate B (8,302)
Corporate and other unallocated A& R EMAD A
expenses (16,216)
Loss before tax M F Al S 18 (169,871)
Geographical information i EE R
(@)  Revenue from external customers (a) KEINEEFZ Was
2022 2021
S — 58 =g
HK$’000 HKS$000
FHETT FET
France bl 153,519 93,934

The revenue information above is based on the locations

of the customers.

btz WamBERTREEP A
B
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS SRR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-_—F+-A=-t+—BLEFE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. REFIERE
Geographical information (continued) wEER(E)

(b) Non-current assets (b) R EE
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HKS’000 HKS'000
FET FET
France 7EH 2,345,171 2,433,053
Mainland China FR B K 33,463 38,251
Hong Kong &5 12 21
2,378,646 2,471,325

The non-current asset information above is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes financial instruments
and deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

No revenue from transactions with a single customer
accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R My =

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE—Z-—F+-A=+—RLFE

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. W& - Hib AR W=
The Group’s revenue represents revenue from contracts with REBZWHEEPLAHWZE - &9
customers. The disaggregation information is as follows: BRI
2022 2021
=g5=—= —E-—F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHET FET
Type of services BRig A
Rendering of accommodation services RHEERS 133,974 76,006
Rendering of catering services RHERIRTE 17,165 13,409
Rendering of travel agency services RAEIRTT AL AR TS 1,685 3,856
Rendering of laundry services RAERARTE 695 663
Total revenue from contracts with customers P& 4 U E 4258 153,519 93,934
Geographical market B
France and total revenue from contracts EBIRE P AW SR
with customers 153,519 93,934
Timing of revenue recognition W R R
Services transferred over time and total ARG — RSN ER &
revenue from contracts with customers REG AW AR 153,519 93,934
Total revenue from contracts with customers can be directly BEEASANZFETE N E T4 E 2
reconciled to the segment revenue of hotel operation disclosed in BEREE D BN TREE SR -

note 4.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS SRR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-_—F+-A=-t+—BLEFE

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued) 5. W Httw AR WE(#)
Other income and gains is as follows: EA WA RSN T -
2022 2021
—E-— —E-—F
HKS’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Other income Hiug A
Gross rental income from a property MELCERE A RALLE -
operating lease
Fixed lease payments & FEHH & FIE 1,649 1,806
Investment income from financial assets at BAFEFAEBRZZ
fair value through profit or loss EREECRERA 7,828 7,828
Interest income from a loan to an associate 12 FELA AT BER Y
FLEWA 7,222 12,085
Government grants BB 12,216 70,511
Bank interest income RITH B YA 7,409 3,208
36,324 95,438
Gains I &
Gain on financial assets at fair value through 2R F{EFF ABZHZ
profit or loss (note 21) SrE E 2z W (FiaE21) 395 =
Insurance indemnity R 1E = 3,011
395 3,011
36,719 98,449
6. OTHEREXPENSES 6. Hpx
2022 2021
—E=-= T
Notes HKS’000 HKS$000
et FETT FET
Fair value loss on financial BAFERABRZ
assets at fair value TREEZ AT EEIE
through profit or loss - 9,619
Provision for impairment of REFERRZIREZ 21
an investment in an associate TE R = 8,302
Foreign exchange losses b & 1E 17 619 44
619 17,965

1 32 Kai Yuan Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2022



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br RS ERAR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE—T-—F+-_A=+—HItFE
FINANCE COSTS 7. ®EHRK
2022 2021
—Z=—-= —E-—F
Notes HK$’000 HKS000
Htat FET FET
Interest on bank borrowings fﬁﬁfﬁ%ﬂ, 48,222 41,743
Fair value (gain)/loss, net: AFEURE), B8
Cash flow hedges (transfer from RemeEdh(eEEg
other comprehensive income) Hbh2mEmKEA) (2,089) 3,067
Interest on lease liabilities HEBERE 26 145 67
Interest on a defined benefit plan ATRAEEIFE 28 15 7
46,293 44,884
LOSS BEFORE TAX 8. Tl SR
The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): REBBBATERB &G (GTA)
LATRIEE ¢
2022 2021
—-5—_- —E-—F
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
Hiet FET FEr
Cost of hotel operation BB A B R 117,082 99,921
Depreciation of property, plant and ME  BENMRETE
equipment 14 37,098 38,186
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHEEERE 15 1,614 1,625
Amortisation of intangible assets m A EE 16 41 32
Provision for impairment of an investment ~ REf& AR ZIRE 2
in an associate B 17 = 8,302
Provision for impairment of a loan to RETHERRZERZ
an associate B 39(b) 3,525 103,641
Lease payments not included in the VESAHEEEFEL
measurement of lease liabilities HER K 37(b) 28 46
Auditor's remuneration ZEEE & 2,563 2,323
Wages, salaries and other benefits T FehEMEF
(including directors’ and chief (PEEEFWREE
executive’s remuneration) (note 9) 1TE A BE ) (P 5E9) 8,668 9,087
Foreign exchange difference, net BE W% =R 6 619 44
Fair value (gain)/loss, net: NHERE) /BRFE
Cash flow hedges (transfer from fﬁimiﬁﬁlﬂ(%ﬁi}ﬁﬁ
other comprehensive income) Hip2EHA) 7 (2,089) 3,067
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFAEBRZ
profit or loss TRIEE 56 (395) 9,619
Investment income from financial assets RAFEGFAERL
at fair value through profit or loss EHMEEZRERA 5 (7,828) (7,828)
Interest income from a loan to an associate 124t FEEE AT 2 R 2
FEWA 5 (7,222) (12,085)
Bank interest income RITH A 5 (7,409) (3,208)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS SRR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-T-—#+-A=t+—HLFE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. EBERIFIETHAEHMH
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, BEFTTRHREEE(CRIIEH)
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), () £383(1)@) * (b) * QORNOIERLAT(IHR
and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the BEENRER RO B2 EFEE
Companies (Disclosure of information about Benefits of Directors) ERFETHRABFAFHFHAOT ¢

Regulation, is as follows:

2022 2021
—E-— T —F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Fees weE 1,000 1,000
Other emoluments: H b REN
Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind e R REWA S 4,290 4,290
Performance related bonuses Eﬁiﬁfﬁﬁff@fz?ﬂ 760 760
Pension scheme contributions RIS FTEIHEER 36 36
5,086 5,086
6,086 6,086
No share options were granted for the years ended 31 December RBEE-_E-_—_FR-_EBE-_—F+=
2022 and 2021. A=+—BLFE  UERLEMNE
A #E o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R My =

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-Z-_—F+-A=1+—ALFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. EERIEITHAEEHFM#)
REMUNERATION (continued)
Executive directors, independent non-executive directors HTEE BIUFEHITEERITE
and the chief executive: TEAE .
Salaries,
allowance and
benefits Pension
inkind  Performance scheme
% * related bonuses contributions Total
2022 Fees BER  ERTHEC EBIKE  remuneration
et 2 we BYFE A SHEIHR B0 Pkl
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
Executive directors:
WITESE :
Mr. Xue Jian*
it 200 2,600 500 18 3,318
Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen
BokERE 200 1,690 260 18 2,168
400 4,290 760 36 5,486
Independent non-executive directors:
BYIENTES
Mr. Tam Sun Wing
BIREE 200 - - - 200
Mr. Ng Ge Bun
REWESE 200 - - - 200
Mr. He Yi
BREE 200 - - - 200
600 - - - 600
1,000 4,290 760 36 6,086
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RS SRR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-_—F+-A=-t+—BLEFE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. ESERFIETHAEFM@®
REMUNERATION (continued)
Executive directors, independent non-executive directors HITEE BUIHTESERTE
and the chief executive: (continued) THAE : (&)
Salaries,

allowance and

benefits Pension
in kind Performance scheme
¥% - related bonuses contributions Total
2021 Fees R BERBHEMEZ BIKE  remuneration
—E-—fF ok Bz TE4T SHEIf R HolesE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
FET TFET FET FET FET
Executive directors:
HITES -
Mr. Xue Jian*
Bl 200 2,600 500 18 3318
Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen
BokERE 200 1,690 260 18 2,168
400 4,290 760 36 5,486
Independent non-executive directors:
B IEITES
Mr. Tam Sun Wing
BT EE 200 = = - 200
Mr. Ng Ge Bun
REWEE 200 = = = 200
Mr. He Yi
BREE 200 = = - 200
600 - - - 600
1,000 4,290 760 36 6,086
@ Mr. Xue Jian is the chief executive officer of the Company. S B2 L E B A RITTIARE -
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or FAMBERNEBRESREXREN
agreed to waive any emoluments during the Year. BN 2 ZHE
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10.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 10.
The five highest paid individuals during the year included two

directors (2021: two directors), details of whose emoluments are

set out in note 9 above. Details of the emoluments for the year

of the remaining three (2021: three) highest paid individuals who
are neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are as

follows:

Br RS ERAR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-Z-_—F+-A=1+—ALFE

TEEEFHMAL
FRAAERSFMALERE_2ES
TECF I ZRER) WEZH
B RN E XS - FRB T =5
—ECF ZR)RFARAES
MIEETBTBABZESFMALZ
NSO

2022 2021

= T4

HK$’000 HKS'000

FETT FET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RBRBEYIE 2,332 2,432
Performance related bonuses A RIR R FEAT 234 234
Pension scheme contributions RIS FT B 53 53
2,619 2,719

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
individuals whose emoluments fell within the following bands is

as follows:

FHNFUATEE ZBEIFESINIEE
ETBABRSFMALZABLT

Number of employees

EEA™
2022 2021
—E- —_EF - —
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000/ IT 2 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T E 1,500,000/ 7T 1 1

All share options of the Group, which were brought forward
from last year, lapsed and accordingly, there were no potential
ordinary shares in issue for the years ended 31 December 2022 (31

December 2021: Nil).

REE G EF LA ERFTA BIRE KR
FAY #HE—_ZT-_—_F+=-A=+
—BIFEMERRTEELTBR(C
TE_—F+_-_A=+—H:&)-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE-T-—F+-A=

11.

+—BIEFE

INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2021: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year, except for one subsidiary of the Group
which is a qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The first HK$2,000,000 (2021: HK$2,000,000) of assessable
profits of this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2021: 8.25%) and the
remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5% (2021: 16.5%).
Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at
the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

The provision for PRC current income tax was based on the
statutory rate of 25% (2021: 25%) of the assessable profits of
the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China as determined in
accordance with the relevant income tax rules and regulations of
the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, which came into effect on 1
January 2008.

The provision of French current income tax was based on the rate
of 25% (2021: 26.5%) of the estimated assessable profits arising
during the year. The tax rates in France are as follows:

For year 2021 26.5%
For year 2022 and afterwards 25%

The provision for Luxembourg'’s current income tax was based
on the rate of 24.94% (2021: 24.94%) of the estimated assessable
profits arising during the year.

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended
1 December 2022 and 2021 were as follows:

11.

g

BEENCSHBEBEFTFRNERBEE A
ETERT R IR E1650( ZF =—
F 1 165%) B E - WASEE T —REMH
BRI (HAFSHEMRH T cE6E
FRERE) BRI o HE KB A B & 2,000,000
BT (ZZ = —%F 1 2,000,000 7T) 2 &
RFGE A H28.25%( —F — —4F 1 8.25%)
FREFEHIE - B TERH 5 BliE
16.50%( ZFZ—4F : 16.5%) Fi REHEH
IE HMBERZ ER & FIEANER

BETERRZRITHEGTERIE -

PEIBNEAAT S LB B T S AN S E R A

B KB 2 BB A R SRR MR AT

AR50 ( Z = —4F : 25%):tiE ° B

MR NIEBRR_EENF—H—H

AR ZHRBRSEMBRIEHBREH
AR AEBIMERE °

EEIBEFT S MABIEFRNEE 2
SRR R AR 255% (= —F

26.5%) TR o AR EMT ¢
—E-—FF 26.5%
B FERIE 25%

ERENEEHBEFRNEL 2(E
ST E R R AR B R 24.94% ( —F — —
£ 1 24.04%) B o

HE_Z-_—_FR-_ZFT-_—F+=A1
—t+—BLFEMBSHALXZEES
DT

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HKS$000
FHET TET
Current income tax — Mainland China BNERFT 1S AT — A B K e
Charge for the year FAZH 2,835 3,113
Current income tax — Hong Kong BUERFRS A — &8
Charge for the year FRAZE 438 337
Overprovision in prior year BEFERBEEE (107)
Deferred (note 29) MBI (M15E29) (10,989) (8,958)
Income tax credit for the year FRAEHEL (7,823) (5,508)
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11.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br RS ERAR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-Z-_—F+-A=1+—ALFE

INCOME TAX (continued) 1. FREHR@E)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to loss before tax at WEANANANR REWE NG FTE R
the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the Company and FREEZETMEAFE B AIER
its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax credit at the effective tax 2B BIRERRRTE 2%
rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the statutory e 288 URERRE(BEER
tax rates) to the effective tax rates are as follows: RVEERFE ZHRINT ¢
2022 Mainland China Hong Kong France Luxembourg Others Total
ZRIZE REIRE Bk yi iRg Hfpo it
HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %  HKS$'000 %
F&n Fén Fén 7 ¥ F&n
Profit/loss) before tax IR ERETER]/
(BE) 2501 12712 (65,228) 1,047 (31) (48939)
Taxat thestatutoryincome AEHER X3t
fax rate BB 625 25.0 2,107 165  (16,307) 25,0 261 249 - - (13314) 212
Bxpenses not deductble R AAERR
for tax - - - - 5318 (8.2) - - - - 5318 (109)
Lower tax ateenacted by 7 & B2
local authority HEHZ - - (165 (13 - - - - - - (163) 03
Income not subject totax  EZEAUA - - (39100 (306) - - (261 (249 - - @) 85
Taxlosses and temporary A ERHBSER
diferences not recognised - EEEE 2210 884 2406 188 - - - - - - 4616 (9.4)
Adjustmentsinrespect BB HRIA
of current tax of PafERE
previous periods - - (107) (0.8) - - - - - - (107) 0.2
Taccharge/(credif) atthe  RAEEEERHE
Goupseffectiverate  FFEZBER
%/ (#%) 2835 1134 331 26 (10989) 168 - = = - 783 159
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-_—F+-A=-t+—BLEFE

11.  INCOME TAX (continued) 1. RS GE
2001 Mainland China Hong Kong France Luxembourg Others Total
o AR 53 48 gae £ it
HKS000 % HKSO00 % HKS000 % HKS000 % HKSO00 % HKSO00 %
AT T TAT AT AT TAT
(Loss)/profitbefore tax ~ FREI(E5) /
T (125665 (1500 (538%) 1236 i (163871
Taxat thestatutoryincome EEEHEHE
faxate REYEE B1416) B0 (49 165 (18) 265 3! 292 - - e »3
Expenses not deductible for AATHIH RS
tax - - 1587 (1058) 2304 (52) - - - - 3891 (23)
Lower tax sate enacted by 37 E B2
local authority i S - (165) 110 - - - - - - (165) 01
Income not subjecttotax ~ EZEHIMA - - B w07 - - B6) (92 = - B3 20
Taxlosses and temporary A EEARAEER
diferences notrecognised Bl EE 4743 77 209 (1473) = - - = = - 36992 218
Hfectof diferent taxrate TAHE T2 - - = - 30 09) - - - - 30 02
Taxlosses utllzed from YA
previous periods HEgs (14 02 (39) 2 - - - - - - (249) 01
Tacharge/(cedit) atthe  RAEEBERE
Gowpseffectiverate  FFEZBER
/(&%) 313 0 W @) 6%y N4 - - - - 6508 3
(1) Others represent the results of certain subsidiaries which are tax- (i) HiieETHBATI(RBEEERE
exempted companies incorporated in Bermuda and the British BHERABETMK S 2 ERETH
Virgin Islands. BAR))ZHE °
12. DIVIDENDS 12. RE

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the Year (2021: Nil).
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13.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic loss per share amount is based on
the loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company, and the weighted average number of 12,778,880,000
(2021:12,778,880,000) shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted loss per share amount is based on
the loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the Company. The weighted average number of ordinary shares
used in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year, as used in the basic loss per share calculation,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to
have been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise or
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary
shares.

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share amounts
presented for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 in
respect of a dilution as the exercise prices of the Company’s
outstanding share options were higher than the average market
prices for the Company'’s shares during the years.

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on:

13.

Br RS ERAR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-Z-_—F+-A=1+—ALFE

AAREREEREAERLER
B8

EREABEEBSBEDNIREBEAQALE
ERFBEANBRFRABEARFAR
BT IR {0 hnAE 35 B 88012,778,880,000
(=T = —4 :12,778,880,000% ) 5t

st
H o
S

BRESERSRIREALAER
BakE AREFABENE - 58
Ry P {66 P 2 & 3 A A 19 B B A At
HEREAERNMERA FADH
TEBRHE  UERBRRMAEAEE
BEYEEARBGA/ITENER
A3 E B AR AR 31T 2 AR N T

WERBEZS-__FR_ZT=—F
+-A=+—BLFEEERZER
EXNBESEELEERE  RAA
REBEEARRA W ARITHEBEREZ
AEEHERARRRN ZFHME
L

BREREBR T BURTE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HKS$000
FET FAET
Loss [5F ]
Loss attributable to ordinary equity RRalLBERER A
holders of the Company iy agi=! (41,116) (164,363)
2022 2021
—=E_= 4
Shares ('000) B (FiR)
Weighted average number of ordinary AR EEREEEE 2
shares in issue during the year used in FRE BT L BRI
the diluted loss per share calculation I RG 8L 12,778,880 12,778,880
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS SRR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2022

14.

HE-Z-_—_F+-A=+—HLFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% BERRERE

Hotel Leasehold Motor Office

properties Buildings  improvements vehicles equipment Total

Vil BT HENEEE AE BOERE @it

HKs'000 HKs'000 HKs 000 HKs'000 HKs 000 HKS 000

FE A A AT AT AT
Cost A
As at 31 December 2020 RZBZFE+ZA=1-H 336,157 59262 1830 4375 1221 3302845
Additions BE 16,922 = = - - 16,922
Brchange differences on translation ~ MEEA 7B EE (241371) 1,79 5 176 6 (239390)
As at 31 December 2021 A\-E--F#+-R=1-R 3,011,708 61,056 1,835 4,551 1,221 3,080,377
Additions g 75,968 - - - - 75,968
Brchange differences on translation ~ MEE4A 7 EHEE (162,954) (4,641) (13) (456) (17) (168,081)
As at 31 December 2022 RZEZZF+-A=1-H 2,924,722 56,415 1,822 4,095 1,210 2,988,264
Accumulated depreciation ZithE
As at 31 December 2020 RZE-EFT-A=1-A QB214) (20,728) (1,830) (3.800) (1,183) (250,761)
Charge for the year wm (36,174) (2002 - - (10) (3,186)
Exchange differences on translation BEELVEHER 18,139 (661) (5) (159) (6) 17,308
As at 31 December 2021 RZEZ-F+ZA=1-H (241,249) (23,391) (1,835) (3,965) (1,199) (271,639)
Charge for the year EWW& (35,195) (1,894) - - (9) (37,098)
Eichange differences on translation ~ MER4 v EHEE 12,759 1,779 13 410 17 14,978
As at 31 December 2022 R_F-_—F+-A=+-A (263,685) (23,506) (1,822) (3,555) (1,191) (293,759)
Impairment loss HEFSE
As at 31 December 200 RZFRET-A=T-H (365392) - - - - (365,392)
Eichange differences on translation ~ MER4 v EHEE 27,250 = - - = 27250
As at 31 December 2021 RZE--%#+-R=1-H (338,142) - - - - (338,142)
Frchange differences on translation ~ BEEA 7 EHEE 18,297 - - - - 18,297
As at 31 December 2022 RIEZZF+-A=1-H (319,845) - - - - (319,845)
Net carrying amount FEFE
As at 31 December 2022 R-B-ZE+-f=1-H 2,341,192 32,909 - 540 19 2,374,660
As at 31 December 2021 R-E-—F+-A=1+-H 2432317 37,665 - 536 28 247059
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15.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br RS ERAR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-Z-_—F+-A=1+—ALFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14. Y¥ BERREE)
The Group’s land is included in hotel properties. The analysis of AREBZ M ABEDERN - i
land is stated as follows: ZANMEINIAT -
Analysis of land: T ST
2022 2021
=LI== ===
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHET FET
In France, freehold AOEB - KA ZERE 1,741,614 1,841,244
At 31 December 2022, certain of the Group's hotel properties with R-ZE-_—_F#+_-_A=+—8 K&
a net carrying amount of approximately HK$2,341,192,000 (2021: ] B TR E 49 2,341,192,0008 T ( — &
approximately HK$2,432,317,000) were pledged to secure general T4 #92432317,0008 ) 2B T
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 27). BIEMECIELR  EAREEER
—RRERTTEE 2 AR o (fEE27) o
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 15. EAEEE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the AEBEGEAREECKREEREFA
movements during the year are as follows: BT ¢
Motor Office
Buildings vehicles  equipment Total
BF AE S BAERE #Hat
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
FET FHET FHETT FET
As at 1 January 2021 R=—ZE=-—-%—HA—H 1919 73 53 2,045
Addition NE - 131 - 131
Depreciation charge MEMY (1,468) (157) = (1,625)
Exchange differences on MHEEZER
translation =5 = @) ) )
As at 31 December2021and WH=-ZE=—%+=A#
1 January 2022 =t—-BkK
—®2--%-8—-H 451 43 49 543
Addition =T 4,532 70 - 4,602
Depreciation charge FEFRS (1,458) (110) (46) (1,614)
Exchange differences on MEEEZENR
translation =5 - (3) (3) (6)
As at 31 December 2022 RN-—EBE__%+—-8
=o=H 3,525 - - 3,525
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS SRR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-_—F+-A=-t+—BLEFE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. EBREE

Software
B4
HKS'000
FEIT

Cost [SAS
As at 31 January 2021 RZE-_—F—H=+—H 827
Exchange differences on translation BREEECZERER (25)
As at 31 December 2021 R-EBE-_—F+-A=+—H 802
Addition NE 331
Exchange differences on translation mEEACERER (74)
As at 31 December 2022 R-BE-_—_F+-A=+—H 1,059

Amortisation e
As at 31 January 2021 R=—E=-——F—HA=+—8H (603)
Provided for the year F N (32)
Exchange differences on translation BMEESLZIERZH 19
As at 31 December 2021 N_ZE_—F+-_HA=+—8H (616)
Provided for the year FNEE (41)
Exchange differences on translation BMEEEZERER 59
As at 31 December 2022 N-TE__F+_H=+—H (598)

Net carrying amount IRERE

As at 31 December 2022 R=-B=-=—H+=-H=+—H 461
As at 31 December 2021 R-EBE-_—F+-A=+—H 186

1 44 Kai Yuan Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2022



17.

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br RS ERAR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

17. REEQTZRE

31 December

31 December

2022 2021
—E=-= T4
TrEHSr—=E T=AZTE
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHET FET
Share of net assets EhREEFE 6,637 7,046
Goodwill on acquisition W iE 2 e 1,161 1,256
Provision for impairment NERIERE L] (7,798) (8,302)
Particulars of the associate are as follows: BB EARFBOT ¢
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ ownership interest
Particulars of registration attributable to
Name issued shares held and business the Group Principal activity
r5E
FEERT EMRL/ EiLHEEE
1 ROFE BLREXLE EREat FEER
Beijing Chemical Reaction Engineering Registered capital PRC/Mainland China 37125 Manufacture and sale of
Science & Technology Co, Ltd. of RMB1 each # Bl /B KK chemical products
RS ER A RAR A RA SR HERHEIER
AREIT

The Group's shareholding in the associate is held through a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

AREBERERABE QR < BETER

AATET2EMBATISE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-_—F+-A=-t+—BLEFE

17.

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

The Group acquired the 37.125% equity interests in Beijing
Chemical Reaction Engineering Science & Technology Co., Ltd
(the "Associate”).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, a major subsidiary
("Associate Subsidiary”) of the Associate was impacted by then
the socio-economic environment in the People’s Republic of
China, rendered the Associate Subsidiary’s development progress
as well as business and financial performance being less than
satisfactory. The Associate Subsidiary had also been involved in
certain cases of litigation regarding an outstanding balance on
construction of its production plant (“Litigation Case”). The Group
recorded HK$8,302,000 covering the provision of impairment of
the investment due to their unsatisfactory financial performance
with no obvious upturn or potential financing solutions in the
foreseeable future.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the financial
performance did not improve, and the Associate recorded further
losses. In addition, as at the date of this consolidated financial
statements, Litigation Case has not been resolved. The Group
discontinued recognising its share of further losses as its interest
in the Associate had been reduced to zero and, therefore, the
directors are of the opinion that it is not meaningful to disclose
the summarised financial information of the Associate.
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19.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br RS ERAR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-Z-_—F+-A=1+—ALFE

INVENTORIES 18. FE
2022 2021
—E-= T4
HK$’000 HKS$000
FETT FET
Food and beverages B Rk 897 576
TRADE RECEIVABLES 19. FEWERFX
2022 2021
—E_— —E-—F
HKS$’000 HKS$000
FET FEIT
Trade receivables FEUER TR 12,111 4,539

Hotel operation revenue is normally settled by cash or credit
card. For travel agents and certain corporate customers, the
credit period is generally one month. There is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade receivable
balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

BEZLERA—RUBRERERRX
e RKTHERETRARNETEFPME -
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SRR - AEEBEREUKRRE
BRAEAEARAEBEEERE
I o RUARRIAL TALR o

SRPESEER - RBEEZH S
R (EMBREERE) 2R
RO

my X

3

EE|

2022 2021
—=E-= —E-—4F

HK$’000 HKS'000

FET FAEIT

Within 1 month — (& A AR 11,155 3,222
1 to 3 months —Z=={@A 740 838
Over 3 months =@ALE 216 479
12,111 4,539
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-_—F+-A=-t+—BLEFE

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 19. BEWERR(E)
The Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs NEBERBESHMBERELERFo5E
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime FRETRR 2 B L BRI 5 AR T E T BE
expected loss for all trade receivables. To measure the expected EEE EAGmAEWRERER
credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on > HATEEAEIE - B ETEHEEEE
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The o EBUWERDEEAREERRE
expected credit losses have also incorporated forward-looking BN B EE T ADLE o o - FAHR
information. The expected credit loss rates for trade receivables FEEBBRITMNAEEREEZER -
that were not yet past due are minimal. WABH 2 EBWERFR 2 BEBEEBIE
KEBERHN o
20. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 20. FANNE - HtEWFERH
OTHER ASSETS ftb & =

2022 2021

—E-= T —F

HK$’000 HKS$000

FET FET

Input tax of value added tax ER 2 ETE I8 44,939 42,390
Deposits and other receivables e & E th fE W5 IE 2,562 1,627
Prepayments TR RIA 1,639 2,388
Corporate income tax prepayment I EFBR AN KIE 6 86

Government grants receivable JFEE LR T 4 B = 5975
49,146 52,466

None of the deposits and other receivables was either past due
or impaired and there was no history of default and past due
amounts.

The recoverability of deposits and other receivables and interest
receivables is classified as Stage 1 without any significant increase
in credit risk tracked since initial recognition. Their recoverability
was assessed with reference to the credit status of the debtors,
and the expected credit loss as at 31 December 2022 and 31
December 2021 was considered to be minimal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

Br RS ERAR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-Z-_—F+-A=1+—ALFE

BAVEFARBZEHEE

2022 2021
—E=-= T —F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FE FHET
Investment in convertible bonds, BRAFEGE 2T RRES
at fair value K& 97,109 96,714

On 16 November 2020, the Company invested in the unsecured
convertible bonds issued by Zhonghua Gas Holdings Limited
("Zhonghua Gas’, PEMRFILR B R A F)) at a face value of
HK$97,800,000. Zhonghua Gas is listed on GEM (stock code: 8246),
and is principally engaged in the provision of diverse integrated
new energy services in China. The convertible bonds shall be for a
term of 3 years, bearing interest at the rate of 8% per annum with
the conversion price at HK$0.27. The Company can exercise the
conversion at any time until the maturity date.

The fair value of the investment in convertible bonds as at 31
December 2022 is determined by reference to the valuation
carried out by an external independent valuer.

With the valuation work detailed in note 41 to the financial
statements, a fair value gain of HK$395,000 was recognised
in profit or loss during the year (2021: a fair value loss of
HKS$9,619,000).

RZZEZZEF+—A+"8 " KXAF
WERERFIERAR QA ([ ER
RNBITHERBAIBRRKES  BE
/97,800,000 7T © A E R RN GEM k£
MR RREE : 8246) » TEBHRERG
BRI Z bz & FEERRTE o Al &
RESFZFPE=F  WEFEK3wst
B BB A0278TT - AR BRI R E
B HA AT BE R T (IR A o

NZE-_—_FE+-_A=+—RHB2Za#Hk
R EHIRE 2 A FETIEREIINEE
SREREIT HEEE °

ERUBRRMENFAEHE ZGHET
B AEBRFATESERAFE
W %5395,000/8 T (ZE=—4F : AFE
JE5189,619,000/ 78 ) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_Z-—F+-A=+—HILFE

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED 22. BERBRELEEYURCER
DEPOSITS Ve
2022 2021
—E-= B
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FE
Cash and bank balances B4 RiIRITES 844,619 911,008
Less: Pledged deposits B BEEER (19,802) (39,276)
Time deposits TFHITER (124,580) =
Cash and cash equivalents BeKIREFEY 700,237 871,732

As at 31 December 2022 the pledged deposits represented
the time deposits pledged to secure the repayment of interest
arising from interest-bearing bank borrowings, amounted to
HK$19,802,000 (2021: HK$39,276,000).

At as 31 December 2022, time deposits with original maturity
of more than three months when acquired amounted to
HK$124,580,000 (2021: Nil).

As at 31 December 2022, the cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in RMB amounted to HK$16,396,000 (2021:
HK$10,244,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, and Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one day and three months in Hong Kong and
Mainland China depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term
time deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default. The carrying amounts of these assets approximate to their
fair values.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R My =

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-Z-_—F+-A=1+—ALFE

23. TRADE PAYABLES 23. MR
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the RERABAED - KB¥ZHHE
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: g ENBRACEREDITOT -
2022 2021
=F=——fF —E-—F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET TET
Within 1 month — AR 6,217 1,354
1to 3 months —Z=={@A 767 -
Over 3 months =EANKE 173 —
7,157 1,354
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally FETBRE R0 R B R — 30 H 60
settled on terms of 30 to 60 days. HRASE -
24. OTHERPAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 24. HMENREARESER
2022 2021
—E__F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$000
FET THET
Other tax payables HAth IR 41,116 37,780
Accruals fEEt &R 26,045 15,199
Other payables HAth fET IR 10,369 5,360
77,530 58,339
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have no significant Hib e IEY R 8 - AR EEE
balances aged over one year. BABIE—Ey EALEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS SRR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-_—F+-A=-t+—BLEFE

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 25. fTHEE®TA

2022 2021

—E=-= B

(Liabilities)/

Assets assets

BE (8f)EE

HK$’000 HKS'000

FET T8T

Interest rate swaps FRIFEAE 4 80,382 (129)
Less: portion classified as current portion B D AR S 2 2o 50,008 (516)
Non-current portion JEBNHAER 2 30,374 387
At 31 December 2022, the Group had an interest rate swap R-ZE-——#F+—-_A=+—H8 &A&
agreement in place with a notional amount of EUR175,000,000 (T3 T 4% © %8 5175000000 B 2
whereby it received interest at a variable rate equal to the Europe TRRISE A o I AEEE
Interbank Offered Rate ("EURIBOR") on the notional amount and ESHEIREERBTEETRERS
paid interest at a fixed rate of 0.19% (2021: 0.19%). The swap is ([Rr T mETRIZERE ) 2 ZFF =
designated as a hedging instrument to hedge the exposure to WEH B » WIRBETFEEZRI9E(-F
changes in future cash outflows of interest arising from its 5-year ——F 019E )X AF B o FiiiEHE]
secured loan (note 27). BHOREEEREFATA  BEH

hFEHABEMER(ME27) M B 2R

KREROEBER
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25.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Cash flow hedge - Interest rate risk

There is an economic relationship between the hedged item and
the hedging instrument as the terms of the interest rate swap
critically match the terms of the fixed rate loan (i.e., notional
amount, maturity, payment and reset dates). The Group has
established a hedge ratio of 1:1 for the hedging relationships as
the underlying risk of the interest rate swap is identical to that of
the hedged risk component. In addition, based on quantitative
assessment prepared by the management by comparing the
changes in the fair value of the hedging instrument against the
changes in the fair value of the hedge item attributable to the
hedged risk, the hedge of the interest rate swap was assessed
to be highly effective with insignificant ineffective portion. For
the year ended 31 December 2022, the effective portion of the
hedging instrument arising from the hedge of the interest rate
swap was included in the hedging reserve as follows:

25.

Br RS ERAR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-Z-_—F+-A=1+—ALFE

TTESmI A
BeRBY I —FERER
MARFEREHA N2 RRETEBER

2R (AaEe®  BHAE - ARE
EFTAH)—2 - SR IR B
HTAZEAGEERERBE - NEBEH
HHARREZE AL RE
AR 12 A 4 2 18 B R e SR A e
R e o 2 HEERAR - tih - R
BEEEBEBKH T TANATFEE
B AR E R RGP IEE AT E
HEETHHMAERNTEENE - 7
ERMANHARIERTERR -
MEBERLDLFEX - BE_FT -
FH_A=T—"HLEFE  MX{=H
BROHIRATE SR B T AR A KA
DEFAERREEIT

2022 2021
—E__F —E-—F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHET T/
Total fair value gain included in SPAEREE . AT ENGEERE
the hedging reserve 77,941 6,852
Deferred tax on changes in fair value NSSIEE 0 o 5 1o (19,485) (1,713)
Recognised in finance costs included in the RIBE R 2 BE ANTER
statement of profit or loss (note 7) (Biat7) (2,089) 3,067
Deferred tax on reclassification to ENNBEEBRRZ
profit or loss ERETIE 522 (767)
Net gain on cash flow hedges RemeEsmz Wam#58 56,889 7439
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS SRR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_Z-—F+-A=+—HILFE

26.

LEASE LIABILITIES

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during

the year are as follows:

26. #HE:EJ*

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HKS$000
FET FHAEIT
Carrying amount at 1 January M—A—BZREE 481 2,155
New leases SEIEE 4,602 131
Accretion of interest recognised during FARTHERF BB
the year 145 67
Payments - (1,529) (1,864)
Exchange differences on translation HMEEAVIENZ5E (6) (8)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—HZEAEE 3,693 481
Analysed into: paR)il
Current portion BNHAER 1,530 481
Non-current portion JEBNER R 5> 2,163 -
Maturity profile of lease liabilities as at 31 December 2022 and RIE-—FR-_TE-_—F+=-F=
2021 is as follows: +—B  HEABRZHHBEIAT
2022 2021
—E-= —E -
HK$’000 HKS$000
FHET TETT
Within one year —&FR 1,680 481
In the second year F_F 1,680 -
In the third to five years, inclusive kk_zkkﬁi( BIEEEMSF) 560 -
Total undiscounted lease liabilities KR EEEEERE 3,920 481
Discount amount AhIREE 227 -
Total present value of lease liabilities HEAaBRRE 3,693 481
Current portion BNEAER > 1,530 481
Non-current portion JEBNEAER 5 2,163 =
2022 2021
—F—= —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TETT
Analysed into: paR)il
Within one year —FR 1,530 481
In the second year F_F 1,609 -
In the third to fifth years, inclusive EZEERF
(BIEEREME) 554 =
Total present value of lease liabilities HEBEEBERE 3,693 481
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br RS ERAR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-Z-_—F+-A=1+—ALFE

27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 27. FTEBITEE
2022 2021
kS “E-F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) rate (%)
LT Maturity HK$'000 BRAE Maturity HKks000
(%) B8R FE7 (%) 5EA TEL
Non-current E3:)
Bankloans - secured BIET-ERA
Three month G R 0.19%42.2%* 14 October 2024 1,450,071 0.19%+2.2%* 14 October 2024 1,516,793
EURIBOR+2.2% HEMLIE k- Ja 3 12
ARl TAtEA
1,450,071 1516,793
e Includes the effects of a related interest rate swap as disclosed in © BIER SIRFR M FE 25 TR BE 2 AH R
note 25 to the financial statements. FERISHE N 22 -
2022 2021
—E-= T —F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FETT FET
Analysed into: PaR)ilE
Bank loans repayable: IRITEFENRD
In the second year =l 1,450,071 -
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FFEFRF
(BIEERME) - 1,516,793
Total 1a=t 1,450,071 1,516,793
(i) On 14 October 2019, the Group renewed loans of EUR175,000,000 (i) R-—_ZT—AE+A+MA K

from Societe Generale Corporate & Investment Banking, which
bear interest at the three-month EURIBOR plus 2.2%, and
will be repaid on 14 October 2024. The loans were pledged
by the Group's hotel property situated in France, which had
an aggregate carrying value of HK$2,341,192,000 as at 31
December 2022 (2021: HK$2,432,317,000). Deposits amounting
to HK$19,802,000 (2021: HK$39,276,000) were pledged to secure
the repayment of interest arising from interest-bearing bank
borrowings.

% B & & H [\ Societe Generale
Corporate & Investment Banking &
AZ 175000000 B EH * BEAE
Ei=@MARTEREITERERSM
WEEE  WERZZT_MF+
A+IMNAEE - EllERAAREE
M PAEB 2B E SRR - AR
—E-_—_F+-_A=+—H82ZE
T #8184 2,341,192,00078 T (= &
— — 4 124323170008 7T) ° &
¥8 /419,802,000 L (Z T = — 4 :
39,276,0007 7T ) Z 17 SR E 1EH 3]
ERBEENBERITEEMEEZF
BZER-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS SRR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_Z-—F+-A=+—HILFE

28. OTHERLONG TERM PAYABLES 28. HMRHIESFIE
2022 2021
—E-= —E %
HKS’000 HKS'000
FBT FHT
Defined benefit plans AEBHMETE 1,699 1,635

R E R E - £ ' &K Paris

Under defined-benefit plans, the Group has an obligation to

provide benefits to employees of the Paris Marriott Hotel in France
either on their retirement or when they leave the Paris Marriott
Hotel. The Group’s defined benefit plans are unfunded and are
covered by provisions recorded in the financial statements. The
Group's obligations under defined benefit plans are measured
using the projected unit credit method. This method involves the
use of long-term actuarial assumptions concerning demographic
variables (such as employee turnover and mortality) and financial
variables (such as future increases in salaries and discount rates).

Marriott Hote iR RS BERE R - ANEEH
2 7% A K B Paris Marriott Hotel (& &
REEF - NREEMRTENTE B
REFESMUE  HAETHRETBHR
ERBERE - ASBRATEFG
BETHMEENRBBENELCERE
FTE o ZAESRERAEBALDS
BE(WMEEBRLILTE) RIHE
E(ﬁﬂﬂix%?/i\&ﬁﬁfﬁfi‘ﬂﬂ)m%,ﬁﬂ

BRERR ZEFEESFHEETE
%o MAEDE2EIHRANTEE
NAEZFMBRERETE -

These variables are reviewed each year. The discount rate is
determined by reference to the market yields at the reporting date
of high quality corporate bonds.

The principal actuarial assumptions used for the major defined REZWAREER  AEEEXER
benefit plan of the Group as at the end of each reporting period ERAETEIFTAMEZRERRNT
are as follows:

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—F

% %

Discount rate B3R =& 3.84 0.98
Expected rate of salary increase TERRFT 218 hnth =& 2.52 1.40

1 56 Kai Yuan Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2022



28. OTHER LONG TERM PAYABLES (continued) 28.
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at
the end of the reporting period is shown below:

2022
—E-=

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R My =

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE—Z-—F+-A=+—RLFE

mﬁﬁﬁﬁ RIE (1)
REWMRAEE - BEABRAE
g%%@&nﬁﬂmmT-

Sensitivity of fair value to the input

DNFEHBARBZHRE

Discount rate

RRIR R

Expected rate of salary increase

TEHA%: £ 1 Nty R
2021
—E-—F

5% increase/decrease would result in decrease/increase in defined benefit
obligations by HK$39,000
EA T BS%S e BBARERFET T’ £F39,00078 7T

5% increase/decrease would result in increase/decrease in defined benefit
obligations by HK$26 000

R T BS% S E R R ERANE L EF T 26,0005 7T

Sensitivity of fair value to the input

DNFEHBARBZRRE

Discount rate

BETLE

Expected rate of salary increase

BHH S I =

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on
a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit

5% increase/decrease would result in decrease/increase in defined benefit
obligations by HK$10,000

ER A TH%EEBHAERMEETE_EF10,0004% 7T

5% increase/decrease would result in increase/decrease in defined benefit
obligations by HK$16 000

R TIBSw S e B R ERAEE LT TR 16,000/ 7T

Ll BERES T DERYRAERMNE
ElxiiixﬁﬂﬁﬁAﬁﬁEﬁ

obligations as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions SRR EETHENARAEE - &

occurring at the end of each year. The sensitivity analysis is
based on a change in a significant assumption, keeping all

BEATERL - EARRNLD
FIFS AT A B RHS T2 - B

other assumptions constant. The sensitivity analysis may not DA RTATRNETHERE

be representative of an actual change in the defined benefit

) EEKM#F“%E@ R

obligations as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions would B o

occur in isolation of one another.

The total expenses recognised in the consolidated statement of

Fhakat SRR B Ba R P ER A A

profit or loss in respect of the plan are as follows: YR

2022 2021

—Eg== —E——
HK$’000 HK$000
TET T#ET
Current service cost B HA AR 75 B AR 153 144
Interest expense FERE 15 7
168 151
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS SRR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-_—F+-A=-t+—BLEFE

28. OTHER LONG TERM PAYABLES (continued) 28. HARHEMSRE)
The movements in the present value of the defined benefit REBMNEEOREESEOT :

obligations are set out below:

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—%F
HK$’000 HKS$000
FHET FAEIT
At 1January n—HA—H 1,635 2,262
Current service cost BV EA AR 75 X AR 153 144
Interest expense AMERXZ 15 7
Gain an actuarial changes in Hittir e A BEE S ESE
other comprehensive income pal & (17) (558)
Exchange realignment b 5 (87) (220)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 1,699 1,635
The defined benefit plan is unfunded, and there are no expected AERINGTEBRABETHASBER
contributions in the next 12 months. R A =8 A I FEERER K o
The average duration of the defined benefit obligations as at 31 RZZBEZZF+=ZA=+—H AER
December 2022 was 10 to 30 years (31 December 2021: 10 to 30 MEARFEHER S B A10F30F (=
years). T —F+ZA=+—H :10530%F) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R My =

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-Z-_—F+-A=1+—ALFE

DEFERRED TAX 29. EEHIEA
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the BEHBEEELREEREAZEFHNN
year are as follows: T
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHEEE
Fair value
adjustments
from
acquisition
of subsidiaries
upon
purchase
price Cash flow
allocation hedges Others Total
REBE
EBRo##E
WS
DEFFEEZ HeRe
ALERE ¥ Hith st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FHET
As at 1 January 2022 RZZEZZ5—H—
H 148,868 97 3,049 152,014
Deferred tax charged to the statement of FREE K R 2
profit or loss during the year (note 1) IEFEFZIE (H5F11) (1,361) - (2,449) (3,810)
Deferred tax credited to other FRFAEMEE
comprehensive income during the year WA Z RIEFRIE - 18,963 - 18,963
Exchange differences fEHZ% (8,068) 156 (185) (8,097)
Gross deferred tax liabilities N-ZE-_—F+_-H
at 31 December 2022 =t+—HZEL
HIBAEAHE 139,439 19,216 415 159,070
Deferred tax assets EERIEEE
Losses
available for
offsetting
against future
taxable profits Other Total
AR
RIRFERBL
w2 BB Hitr et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET F#ET
As at 1 January 2022 R=ZZE-—#—H—H 45,602 409 46,011
Deferred tax credited to the statement of ERXE ABZERZ
profit or loss during the year (note 11) R IE(AraL11) 7,137 42 7,179
Deferred tax charged to other FATEEMZEEKA
comprehensive income during the year Mk 2 EIERIA - (4) (4)
Exchange differences i W5 (2,407) (22) (2,429)
Gross deferred tax assets RZE__F+_A
at 31 December 2022 =t+t—HZEL
MIBEELRE 50,332 425 50,757
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-_—F+-A=-t+—BLEFE

29. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 29. EEBIEE)
Deferred tax assets (continued) EERIBEEE(E)
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and TEHRME A TELHEEENE
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of EE NG A B EAR R @Rz K -

financial position.

HK$’000
FHET
Net deferred tax assets recognised RZE_ZF+-A=+—H#&E
in the consolidated statement of AR RER PR 2
financial position at 31 December 2022 RERTBEEFE 31,126
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised R-ZB-_—F+-A=+—H%
in the consolidated statement of RE IR MR PR
financial position at 31 December 2022 BRI IE B EFE 139,439
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIREE
Fair value
adjustments
from
acquisition
of subsidiaries
upon
purchase
price Cash flow
allocation hedges Others Total
REEE
B ER
Lz B P S
RAIFMEEZ RenE
NEEFE Egpa: HAth et
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET TFET FHET FET
As at 1 January 2021 RZEZ—F—A—
H 162,528 (2,465) 4516 164,579
Deferred tax credited to the statement of Rt ABHRZ
profit or loss during the year (note 1) IRIEFZIE (H7F11) (1,604) = (1,178) (2,782)
Deferred tax charged to other FREEMEERA
comprehensive income during the year — #1f& 2 IEIEFIA - 2,480 - 2,480
Exchange differences BEE 5, = (12,056) 82 (289) (12,263)
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZE-_—F+_A
at 31 December 2021 =t+—HBZEL
IR EASE 148,868 97 3,049 152,014
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29. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R My =

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-Z-_—F+-A=1+—ALFE

29. EEMBIE(®)

Deferred tax assets EEMRIEEE
Losses
available for
offsetting
against future
taxable profits Other Total
AN
Nkl St =] Hitb @t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
FET T FEr
As at 1 January 2021 R=_F—_—%—H—H 42,878 - 42,878
Deferred tax credited to the statement of R ABzER ZIEE
profit or loss during the year (note 11) BIE(KEET1) 6,176 = 6,176
Deferred tax credited to other FAFFAEMEERA
comprehensive income during the year ZIEIEFIIA = 409 409
Exchange differences MEH =5 (3,452) - (3,452)
Gross deferred tax assets RZE=Z—F+=H
at 31 December 2021 =t+—BZEL
MIBEERR 45,602 409 46,011
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and ?jﬁ%iﬁ %‘ AT RIEREBEEERE
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of BEERGE MBI R HRR P -

financial position.

HKS$000
FET
Net deferred tax assets recognised RZZBZ—F+-HA=+—H%
in the consolidated statement of FREMBIRRREPERZ
financial position at 31 December 2021 EEFIBEEFE 42,865
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised RZE-—F+—A=+—RH%&
in the consolidated statement of iﬁ/\ﬁﬁ‘&#/ﬂiﬁﬁ‘:ﬁ@amz
financial position at 31 December 2021 EERIR A E TR 148,868

BEZERERAR | 202548 161
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-_—F+-A=-t+—BLEFE

29. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 29. EEHIR(H)
Deferred tax assets (continued) FBERBEE(B)
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the WL T5IEE BRELEHRIBEE :

following items:

2022 2021
—E-= —E -
HKS’000 HKS$000
FET FET
Tax losses arising in Hong Kong © REBEE Z FHIEERO 265,713 251,488
Tax losses arising in Luxembourg @ REREES ZHIEEEO 757 757
266,470 252,245
) The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$265,713,000 (i) REBNEBEL 2 FHERERA
(2021: HK$251,488,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting 2657130008 L ( ZF = — F
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses 251,488,000/87T) + AIEEMRFHAFA1E
arose. HEELEBE AT BEERT
A e
(if) The Group has tax losses arising in Luxembourg of HK$757,000 (ii) NREBREREBEL ZHIBEEES
(2021: HK$757,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting 757,000 75 ( —F = — 4 : 757,000
against future taxable profits of the entities in which the losses Br)  AIERFEAREREESS
arose. B2 ERB 2 BRERTER -
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the WERETHBARFMES 2 Fatf
above tax losses and deductible temporary differences arising in TEEE NI SR =R IELER
certain subsidiaries as they have been loss-making for some time BHEE BEEAZSEHNEBAREHR
and it is not considered probable that future taxable profits will be R —ERERE BEEHEAENAE
available against which the tax losses can be utilised. TAAEEELER =M< HEH
HIBEEENER -
There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment XA ) [A) E AR R R 2 AR B R A
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders. B HRER -
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30.

31.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br RS ERAR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-Z-_—F+-A=1+—ALFE

ISSUED CAPITAL 30. EBRITRAE
Number of shares Issued capital
RAEE ERTRA
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-CE —Z-—f —EBC-CE —Z-—F
000 000 HK$’000 HK$000
FiRE FiR FEL FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BRER0I0B T ERR
Authorised: EE
At beginning and end of year REMREFL 20,000,000 20,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR
At beginning and end of year REREL 12,778,880 12,778,880 1,277,888 1,277,888
SHARE OPTION SCHEME 31. MERRMESHE

2012 Option Scheme

The Company has a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants for their
contributions to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit
and retain high calibre employees and attract human resources
that are valuable to the Group. The Company adopted a share
option scheme pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 17
May 2012 (the “2012 Option Scheme”). The 2012 Option Scheme
had a term of 10 years from its adoption date. Under the 2012
Option Scheme, the board of directors of the Company might
grant options to eligible employees, including directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the
Company. The 2012 Option Scheme expired on 16 May 2022.

—E-CEBERETE

RRARRAE —BRBRETS - ZBH
RRBEEHEERSEALTHALE
BAEZ BRI R SEAREEG AR
AREEESREE  LR3IHAEE
MEBBEEBEZIANER - RER=
T-—_FRAATERBBEZERAS
£ ARARMA—IABERETE( =
T-_FEREFE])  —T——F
BRESTE 8 LR E e AR+
FoRE_Z-_FERENE K
RAEZGAREEARRRENEB
REAEFEAZARERRERERHAR
BARBBRMD ZERE —T——F
BhREAENR T -__FAA+XA
Edlp
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-_—F+-A=-t+—BLEFE

31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Pursuant to the 2012 Option Scheme, the maximum number
of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and not yet exercised under the 2012 Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time. The
subscription price for shares in respect of any options granted
under the 2012 Option Scheme shall be a price determined
by the board of the directors of the Company, in its absolute
discretion, but in any case will not be lower than the higher of (i)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange'’s
daily quotation sheet on the date of offer, which must be a trading
day; (ii) the average closing prices of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of a share on the date of grant, provided that for the
purpose of calculating the subscription price, where the shares
have been listed on the Stock Exchange for less than five trading
days, the new issue price shall be used as the closing price for
any trading day falling within the period before such listing. Upon
acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the
Company by way of consideration for the grant. Unless otherwise
determined by the directors at their sole discretion, there is no
requirement of a minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised.

No eligible participant shall be granted an option if the total
number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted (including
both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
up to the date of the proposed grant to such eligible participant
would exceed 1% of the shares of the Company for the time
being in issue unless the proposed grant has been approved by
the shareholders of the Company in a general meeting with the
proposed eligible participant and his associates abstaining from
voting.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
2012 Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may
in its absolute discretion determine which shall not be more than
ten years from the date of grant of the option and subject to the
provisions of early termination thereof and the Board may provide
restrictions on the exercise of an option.

Pursuant to the 2012 Option Scheme, the Company granted
options to subscribe for 145,780,000 shares to eligible participants
in December 2017.
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REABERBERAE L4tE - ARE
FEZEREBREZABRZ2EA
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BREERZEALRHERBERE -
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BB 2GR REERABYHNIG
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31.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br RS ERAR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-Z-_—F+-A=1+—ALFE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 31. BREE )
As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the exercise RZEBE-_—_F+-_A=+—"HBEK=-Z
prices of the share options under the 2012 Option Scheme —_—H+=-_RA=+—H8'=ZTB——%
outstanding are as follows: BAESTEI A T R ARITRBREZTT
EEMT -
2022 —F==
Closing price
per share
Exercise Price hefore
Forfeited/  Outstanding pershare  thedate on
Outstanding Granted Exercised lapsed asat  (subjectto which the
at 1 January during during during  31December  anti-dilutive  options were
Grantees 2022 the year the year the year 2022 adjustment) granted
e i O RSRScE SHARE BER
i . FRRE/ tZAZt-B (TERE BUAR
5 IN BRI ERRH ER{TE XH HATE BHE) SRUGE
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 HKf HKf
K & & 7K 7K A A
Directors Bz
Mr. Xue Jian ERgs 127,780 - - (127,780 - 0.100 0.047
Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen 7 Gy . 10,000 - - (10,000 - 0.100 0.047
Other employees EftES 7,000 - - (7,000) - 0.100 0.047
144,780 - - (144,780) -
Erercisable at the end of the year XA F77(f 144,780 -
Weighted average exercise price  SRRMETITI5(E
per share (HKS) (&) 0.1
2021
—E——F Closing price
h per share
Exercise Price before
Forfeited/ Qutstanding pershare the date on
Outstanding Granted Exercised lapsed asat (subject to which the
at 1 January during during during  37December ant-dilutive  options were
Grantees ‘ 202 the year the year theyear 2021 adjustment) granted
S WS35 SEARE 2hE
) A ) g/ tSASIoR (TfRR BeAM
HEA AT EREL EfifE X HATTR ) SRUHE
000 000 000 000 000 ‘HK_$ \HK_S
& H i % % AT AT
Directors EZ
M. Xue Jian 35 127780 - - - 127,780 0.100 0047
Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen 7y 10,000 - - - 10000 0100 0047
Other employees EfhEE 7000 - - - 7,000 0100 0047
144780 - - = 144780
Brercisableatthe end of the year 4R E] FAT(E 144780 144780
Weighted average exercise price  SRMETITI5(E
per share (HKS) (&) 0.1
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-_—F+-A=-t+—BLEFE

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 31. BRESE ()
The exercise price and exercise period of the share options R-ZB-_—F+-A=+—BKTE
outstanding as at 31 December 2021 are as follows: BB ENITEENRITERET

Shares to be

allotted and issued Exercise price
Grantees upon exercise of per share*  Exercise period
BTG T
ZSLN Fic 2 } 217 2 I Ap BRITEE TS
000’ HKS
T BT
Directors of the Company 137,780 0.100 15 December 2017 to 16 May 2022
ARAES —E—+F+A+HRAZE
—E-_FRA+RH
Other employees 7,000 0.100 15 December 2017 to 16 May 2022
Hitnfg 8 —E—tF+HATHAZE
—E-_FHA+H
144,780
@ The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in & I TH IR R AT AR 31T » SN A A
the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the IR HIR A2 E) - R AR
Company'’s share capital. IT{EER] T o
The exercise price of the share options under the 2012 Option T FERETEETERE Y
Scheme was HK$0.1 per share. These share options vested TEEAEROEBIT - ZFTHWIRER
immediately at the date of grant and are exercisable up to 16 May HEEBHEGEE BEE T -_—F
2022. None of these share options were exercised prior to their AR+ ABATE - RAFE  %F
expiry during the year (the year ended 31 December 2021: Nil). All BIEEND BRI ETFE(BE
these outstanding share options lapsed during the year, resulting ——F+-_A=t+—HIFE:E)-
in HK$2,158,000 transferred from the share option reserve to MEZERTHERBRESRFRL
accumulated losses. AN - 2,158,000/ T BB AR AE e

BERAHEE -

2022 Option Scheme —ECCFRRESE

In view of the expiry of the 2012 Option Scheme and to enable the BN *_E BRI Em R A
Company to grant Options to eligible participants as incentives FARRFBIENEEERDEERHE
or rewards for their contributions to the success of the Group, the Ji% #eE f’EZ%{BZ EHAREE E’\Jﬁ)ZIjJ Fr{ER
Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “2022 Option RAA B S 22E) - R = —F/XA
Scheme”) on 2 June 2022. = Y 7N B W—IE?F)TE']E%HXTEEJF

g(—ZF-_—FEiEsral) -

The 2022 Option Scheme became effective for a period of 10 years —E - —FEERKEASAEIEE S
commencing on 2 June 2022. SNAZRBET10FERAER -
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31.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Pursuant to the 2022 Option Scheme, the maximum number
of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and not yet exercised under the 2022 Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time. The
subscription price for shares in respect of any options granted
under the 2022 Option Scheme will be a price determined by the
board of the directors of the Company, in its absolute discretion,
but in any case will not be lower than the higher of (i) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotation sheet on the date of offer, which must be a trading
day; (ii) the average closing prices of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of a share on the date of grant, provided that for the
purpose of calculating the subscription price, where the shares
have been listed on the Stock Exchange for less than five trading
days, the new issue price shall be used as the closing price for
any trading day falling within the period before such listing. Upon
acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the
Company by way of consideration for the grant.

No eligible participant shall be granted an option if the total
number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted (including
both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
up to the date of the proposed grant to such eligible participant
would exceed 1% of the shares of the Company for the time
being in issue unless the proposed grant has been approved by
the shareholders of the Company in a general meeting with the
proposed eligible participant and his associates abstaining from
voting.

31.

Br RS ERAR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-Z-_—F+-A=1+—ALFE

BREE ()
BE_FT-_—_FEREASE TED
BE_E - —FEREAERARQT
EREMERET IR A ERITE
ZIEREEITERA TRITZBRMA
o THEBBTEEBITRMG Z30% -
BE S —FERESSREZE
MEREZROREBEEAARE
ESRUEBMBREZER  EREM
BRATASERUTEEZESE ()
BROREHBE(ABRSA)EHRR
FTERERFTRKTIE : (MR RBEER
H BB A ERS B ERRATERE
FraR Mm@ « KR H B B
HEE HRTEREEMS @ Wk
PREZFETTRABLSE - 8l
HETEBEARZBE LTATHER
FRRZEZH/HE - REWNERE
B AR ABRAR R X 1.00/8 7T
TERERBERERE -

NHEBEZZRNAERZEALTRE
BhEE A 2 EM2EABRRRT
EERTEBAERSEALZER
(BRI R RITEZBRE)
BITERABTRERERTZARBK
MEBRBBARRERCHETRND
1% BRIFZEELBRE-—FCER
NEARRABERAE LiE - BERE
FEZBERIBEEZABRZEA
ITREBEATHORERSE  GRIT
BRABRZEATHE LA BERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-_—F+-A=-t+—BLEFE

31.

32.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
2022 Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may
in its absolute discretion determine which shall not be more than
ten years from the date of grant of the option and subject to the
provisions of early termination thereof and the Board may provide
restrictions on the exercise of an option.

From the effective date of the 2022 Share Option Scheme to the
date of approval of these financial statements, there were no
share options granted, exercised, cancelled or forfeited/lapsed
under the 2022 Option Scheme, nor any outstanding share
options.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior year are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 86 of the financial
statements.
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BRERAATRE-_S--_FBR
BB RESSARYUBIE
SRTE 2 HA RS 79 £ 1] B S 17 4 RS AR A -
W47 155 HA e B AR 42 12 B BR AR S RN 1B
BB+ ERETHERHELIEL A
EEQAARTABIEBERESR
# o

BE-E__FRRESIERANE
ZEVBHRRELEER  HERE
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33.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(a)

(b)

Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$4,602,000
and HK$4,602,000, respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements for buildings, motor vehicles and office
equipment (2021: HK$131,000 and HKS$131,000).

Br RS ERAR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

33. GEBREHRERMT

(a)

FTEFRERS

FRN - AEEEFRABEER
HEBBCZIHBSEED AR
4,602,000 7T M. 4,602,000/ 7T
THEETF RBERMRAERE
BEA(ZZ=——%F : 131,000 7T
131,000/ 7T ) °

Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) RMETBFELEZEEEH
activities
The following are changes in liabilities arising from UTARERYMEEZEE
financing activities, except for the changes in lease BE) o EFHERBEHGI
liabilities which have been disclosed in note 26 to financial HR B MER 2615 ¢
statements:
Interest-bearing
bank borrowings
FTERITEE
HK$’000
FET
At 1 January 2022 R-ZZE-_—_4F—H—H 1,516,793
Effective interest rate amortisation B F R 46,133
Interest paid BHE (39,476)
Foreign exchange movement FE o % (73,379)
At 31 December 2022 R-T-—F+—-A=+—H 1,450,071

Interest-bearing

bank borrowings

FTERITEE

HKS$000

FET

At 1 January 2021 R—FT=-_—F—H—H 1,625,806
Effective interest rate amortisation B A= 44,810
Interest paid BRHE (38,247)
Foreign exchange movement b 5, (115,576)
At 31 December 2021 R-ZE-_—F+=-_A=+—H 1,516,793
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-_—F+-A=-t+—BLEFE

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTOF  33. S4B E&REBRME(8)
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(c)  Total cash outflow for leases (c) HECRERHBLE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement RenBRAAREZR SR
of cash flows is as follows: HABREINT
2022 2021
—E-_F —E-—F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHETT FET
Within operating activities BEEE) 28 46
Within financing activities BB EE 1,529 1,864
1,557 1,910
34. PENSION SCHEME AND OTHER RETIREMENT 34. RATEEIRHEMERKEF
BENEFITS
The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident REBEREART LB EEN A
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under HEFEEAGEKEER L —IATEH
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its MR B M AERRKEFEFEI(] 58
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made BesrEl])  c RERBESFTEH 2R
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are Al - R DIRBEEEAFXER
charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable ALEL - WRENRERERRP X
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of He BBEEHECEER BELE
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group BESRER HAKBEZEEIRAE
in an independently administered fund. The Group's employer F o AEBRBESEELEEH#
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed - BARSAEHEBETES -
into the MPF Scheme.
The total MPF costs charged to the consolidated statement of REEBERRIBEZEBSAKRAE
profit or loss are approximately HK$177,000 (2021: HK$178,000). #9177,000/8 7T (ZZE = —4F : 178,000/
TT) e
There is no provision under the MPF Scheme which whereby RIBEEETEIWEA R UM AT A A
forfeited contributions may be used to reduce future HURBARRERZHATE o
contributions.
35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 35. HAREME
As of 31 December 2022, the Group had no contingent liabilities. RZE-_—_F+-A=+—8 K&
B I E A AEE -
36. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 36. EEER

Details of the Group's assets pledged for the Group'’s bank loans
are included in note 14 and note 22 to the financial statements.

1 70 Kai Yuan Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2022

AEBERERTERMER 2 BEEF
BRI T R MY s 14 M aE22



37.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of buildings,
motor vehicles and office equipment used in its operations.
Leases of buildings and motor vehicles generally have lease terms
between 2 and 3 years, while office equipment generally has lease
terms between 3 and 4 years. Generally, the Group is restricted
from assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the
Group.

(a) Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
Detailed information regarding right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities has been set out in notes 15 and 26,
respectively, to the financial statements.

(b) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to

37.

Br RS ERAR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-Z-_—F+-A=1+—ALFE

HE

FEEEREBA
AEBMABYREFEFMEMRNE
FAERMAERBESTZERBH
HEAHN BFRAEZHEZHY
—RAB2EEIF MMAERB2E
H—RR3FE4F - EX L AKH
TRRAKSEISIALTEZ RO HEE

(a) ERELSERHERE
FHEEELRTEEREZFHIE
D RIS R B B R R M R 15 R
5526 ©

b) HERBEZFTESZIHEHBL

leases are as follows: BB -

2022 2021
—E_-— —E-—F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHET TET
Interest on lease liabilities HEBGERNE 145 67
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets {FFREAEITER 1,614 1,625

Expense relating to short-term leases BREHEE ZFAXZ(GTA
(included in administrative expenses) 1THFIX) 28 46
Total amount recognised in profit or loss  fE1ER R PHERZ E L 58 1,787 1,738

(c) The total cash outflow for leases and non-cash additions to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are disclosed in note
33(c) to the financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases one of its buildings in Mainland China under
operating lease arrangement, with a lease term of within one
year. Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was
HK$1,649,000 (2021: HKS$1,806,000), details of which are included
in note 5 to the financial statements.

© HEZRSRHBEARER
REERHEERFERIIFASE
ENPERERMEIORKE ©

AEBERAEHAA
AEERBEEHAELHEHAREUR
FEAREMES—EEF  BHIR
—F-FR AEEE®ERAZES
WA B16490008 T (=ZF = —F
1,806,000/ 70 ) + B AT BRI %R
FMIFES ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-_—F+-A=-t+—BLEFE

37. LEASES (continued) 37. HEW®)

The Group as a lessor (continued) AEBERBHBAE)

At 31 December 2022 and 2021, undiscounted lease payments RZE_—_FR-ZE-_—F+_A=

receivable by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable +—H BEAEEHEHEMEPFFIVZ
THHHEEERE - XEERKKRE
A ARANIR ERFERIBNT -

operating leases with its tenant are as follows:

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FET
Within one year —&FR 899 1,540
After one year but within two years —FEREMERN = 899
899 2,439
38. COMMITMENTS 38. 7KiE
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of AEBERERPEHEEBR TIEXR
the reporting periods: I
2022 2021
—E=E-= T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FET
Contracted, but not provided for: BRT#E R B
Hotel properties Ny ES 7,252 66,352
39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39. BEBALIXRE
(a)  Related party transactions (a) BEEMAXXRZ
In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in B 5% 55 B 7% ik H b 5 S
these financial statements, the Group had the following ZRHHN - AEBR IR R
transactions with related parties during the period: BALRIZL TR S -
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHT FHT
An associate: Bt Na) -
Interest income 2 U A 7,222 12,085
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-Z-_—F+-A=1+—ALFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 39. BBMALIRF(#)
(b)  Outstanding balances with related parties: (b) BAEE ALt 2 R EEE

2022 2021

—E=-= T

HK$’000 HKS$000

FET FEIT

Loan to an associate RHETEHE QR ZER 229,713 238,984

Provision for impairment B B (107,166) (103,641)

122,547 135,343

Current portion BNHAER (122,547) (48,108)

Non-current portion FERNEREE 7 - 87,235
The loan to an associate was secured by collateral R TS QA 2 B R %
provided by the associate, bearing interest at a rate of ERAEHNER . EER
6% per annum. As at 31 December 2021, the loan was o RERRNTE - R
repayable from April 2022 to April 2023 by instalments. ——%®+=-A=+—H' ' BEX
During the year, the Group agreed to extend the maturity TR FMAE=T ==
and, accordingly, the loan will be repayable in April 2023 in FHADHEE - FR - &%
one instalment. ERELERINEA Bt &
RER—_ZT—_=ZFWMA— K&

&g -

The Group regularly monitors the business performance AEETFHERZEEANFN
of the associate. As at 31 December 2022, a portion of EBRE - RZE__F+=
interest was 90 days past due and, therefore, the loan was A=+—8 HoFEcaHH
classified to Stage 3 for ECL purpose from August 2022 (31 8  EHitr BZZEZ_FN
December 2021: Stage 2). Impairment loss of HK$3,525,000 FRHREHEESEEmNS ' &
(2021: HK$103,641,000) was recognised during the year, REEEFEF=BER (== —
taking into consideration the recoverability of collateral F+=ZA=+—8: F=F
held. ER) o &ET R B HE ATl

U E M - REE D HERREE
83,525,000 L ( =& = —F :
103,641,000/ 7T) °

On 19 January 2023, the Group had made an application RZEZ=F—H+AHAH &

to the People’s Court of Leling City, Shandong (LI 5% £% SEMURELETARER

BT ARJABR) to apply for enforcement of the collateral, HENTERR  ZRERZ

which was accepted on 20 February 2023 for hearing. T AT HXEZH
E
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-_—F+-A=-t+—BLEFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(c) Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group
Key management personnel of the Group include
two (2021: two) executive directors, the respective
remuneration of which has been disclosed in note 9 to
financial statements.

Having due regard to the substance of the relationships,
the directors are of the opinion that meaningful
information relating to related party disclosures has been
adequately disclosed.

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

39. BEBALTRBE)
() XEBIEEEASZRM

AEBZTEEEABBREMN
H(ZEZ—F  MB)YPTE
E(HRESBZFHME R R
KT E) -

MEHEBET ZHRLE
% ERABERSBERH
BALEBAMEAEERN
aH -

40. REHEr eI E

RERPEEER FRFEMIA

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: ZEBRENT
2022 —g-=
Financial assets SREE
Derivatives
designated Financial
as hedge assets
instruments at fair value Financial
in hedge through assets at
relationships profit orloss  amortised cost Total
EHHERETR
EEAYUWIAE RATPHERA REHEA
ZITETR BRzERMEE HEZLREE @t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Loan to an associate RETHEARCER - - 122,547 122,547
Financial assets included in FTAERFR -
prepayments, other receivables and  E At FEURFUIE &
other assets HBE S REE - - 2,562 2,562
Financial assets at fair value BRRTFEGFABE L
through profit or loss SREE - 97,109 - 97,109
Trade receivables R - - 12,111 12,111
Time deposits THEDR - - 124,580 124,580
Pledged deposits BERER - - 19,802 19,802
Derivative financial instruments fTESRMTA 80,382 - - 80,382
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBRLZEY = - 700,237 700,237
80,382 97,109 981,839 1,159,330
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

Br RS ERAR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-Z-_—F+-A=1+—ALFE

40. RERESZERMIT A

Financial liabilities SRMEE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
REBHERATTE
ZEe@masE
HK$’000
FET
Trade payables FETRRER 7,157
Financial liabilities included in other payables and StARMENRERETER 2
accruals TREE 10,369
Lease liabilities HEAE 3,693
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTRRITEE 1,450,071
1,471,290
2021 —EFE-—4F
Financial assets TRVEE
Financial assets
at fair value
through profit Financial assets
orloss  atamortised cost Total
BAFERA R SER AR
BR/eMEE ECEREE Bt
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FET FEr
Loan to an associate RETHENR ZER = 135,344 135,344
Financial assets included in prepayments, &+ AFEfFRIE -
other receivables and other assets HibEdaia &
HiBE e REE - 1627 1627
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEEGAER L
profit or loss CRIBE 96,714 = 96,714
Trade receivables =) G = 4,539 4,539
Pledged deposits BTN = 39,276 39,276
Cash and cash equivalents HeNEE2ZEEY = 871,732 871,732
9,714 1,052,518 1,149,232
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

40. BERESZEMT A

Financial liabilities TREE
Derivatives
designated
as hedge
instruments Financia
in hedge liabilities at
relationships amortised cost Total
el et
EBEBYHITAE IREHEMATE
ZITETAR ZEMARE BEt
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FET FET
Trade payables FETER K = 1,354 1,354
Derivative financial instruments MEEMIA 129 = 129
Financial liabilities included in other STAH MR FIER
payables and accruals EAEBRAZeRMEE - 5,360 5,360
Lease liabilities HEERE - 481 481
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STRRTIEE = 1,516,793 1,516,793
129 1,523,988 1,524,117
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41.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that

41.

Br RS ERAR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-Z-_—F+-A=1+—ALFE

EMIRZAFERIFEE
&
TRIRAEE BT AZRAE
RAFECEEAERAFEARAS

reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows: HRRAN) -
Carrying amounts Fair values
IREE DYE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-CEF —E-—% ===k —T-—fF
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEr FET FET
Financial assets CHEE
Loan to an associate, RETFHENRZ
non-current portion B JEEEE S - 87,235 - 87,235
Financial assets at fair BATEABS
value through profit or loss SREE 97,109 96,174 97,109 96,174
Derivative financial instruments TESmIA 80,382 = 80,382 =
300,038 183,949 300,038 183,949
Financial liabilities CHEE
Derivative financial instruments TESmIA 129 = 129

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, time deposits, pledged deposits, trade receivables,
trade payables, financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets, the current portion of a loan to
an associate, financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals, the current portion of interest-bearing bank borrowings
and the current portion of lease liabilities approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

Management has assessed that the fair values of the non-
current portion of interest-bearing bank borrowings of the Group
approximate to their fair values due to their floating interest rates.

Management has assessed that the fair values of the non-current
portion of lease liabilities and financial liabilities included in other
long-term payables of the Group approximate to their carrying
amounts due to their carrying amounts are present value and
internal rates of return are close to rates currently available
for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities.

EEECDHE NIBBEZAFE R
ERBEEEEY  THEXR  BEEM
Trak - BUER - BARRA - 5T AR
MR HiBRABEREMBEE
TRMEE HARHKTHMELQRZE
R BNEAER D - BT AE o B 5IE K
B ERzERMAE  FERRTEER
Z By MEERE D
MR PR TEREHANTE  HEA
FEEEmERES -

REEEEMENGE  ARNREHE
KR BUAKRBEFERITIEEFE
&y 2 R EREAFERE -

EEEFEASEHEABRAR
fi = B B R IR 2 & Bh A B IE B A AP
DZAFEEAFEEERS  RER
HEmEMRSRE BEASEREE
BB BRLUER - E5 =R KR 6k F 5
ZTRZBITEHREEL -
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41.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group’s corporate finance department headed by the
finance manager is responsible for determining the policies
and procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The corporate finance team reports directly to the
chief financial officer and the audit committee. At each reporting
date, the corporate finance team analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved
by the chief financial officer.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were
used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of lease liabilities and
financial liabilities included in other long-term payables have
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows
using rates currently available for instruments with similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities. The changes in fair value as a
result of the Group’s own non-performance risk for lease liabilities
as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 were assessed to
be insignificant.

The fair value of the non-current portion of a loan to an associate
has been calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using rates currently available for instruments with similar
terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The differences
between the carrying amounts and fair values of those financial
liabilities are not significant.

The fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss has been determined by reference to the valuation carried
out by an external independent valuer by using binomial model.
The model involves estimates on time to expiration, risk free rate,
share price, expected volatility, discount rates and others. The
significant unobservable input used in the fair value measurement
is the expected volatility. The fair value measurement is positively
correlated to the expected volatility. Any changes in the major
inputs used in the model will result in changes in the fair value of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. The variables
and assumptions used in calculating the fair value are based on
the directors’ best estimate.
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41.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments

with creditworthy financial institutions. Derivative financial

instruments, mainly interest rate swaps, are measured using

valuation techniques similar to swap models, using present value

calculations. The models incorporate various market observable

input including the credit quality of counterparties and interest

rate curves. The carrying amounts of interest rate swaps are the

same as their fair values.

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments:

Financial assets measured at fair value

As at 31 December 2022
R-ZB-_—f+-A=+—H

Quoted prices

41.

Br RS ERAR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-Z-_—F+-A=1+—ALFE

ERTRACZATERATVEE
36 )
AREBEEER TP EEBRT LT
EEBMTAR - TESRTA(ZESF
K REK) RBELERRA Z AER
- ERREFHELFE - AREEN
AAABIRTSABRBARE 8%
HBFHZEEEERF KM - M =X
AN REEREAFEMER -

AP EER
TRINEAKREERITAZ A FE
EER

BAFEABZTHEE

Fair value measurement using
ERANTERETRAVEE

Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
SEERTIS EAAHE EAXFTTHE
ZHE BARE WAHE
(E—#%) (B=#%) (E=8) @5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx TFEx FEx FEx
Derivative financial instruments ~ $14£& g T A = 80,382 = 80,382
Financial assets at fair value BATEGFAER
through profit or loss LERMEE - - 97,109 97,109
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41. FAIRVALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Financial assets measured at fair value (continued)

As at 31 December 2021

R-E-_—F+=-A=+—H

41. €MIBACZAFERAFEE
FED)
AFEBR(E)
BRNFEGTECEHEE ()

Fair value measurement using

ERATSEETAYEMNE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

RS BEARABE SEATIEE

2B BABE A BUR
(F—&) (F=#&) (F=R) et
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FET FET FHET

Financial assets at fair value BATER AR

through profit or loss ZERMEE = 96,714 96,714

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the

valuation together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31

December 2022 and 2021:

TERBINR - —FR=_FT=—
+-A=+—BHEMERZERT
AERGARBERTESRED

Significant
unobservable Sensitivity of fair value
31 December 2022 Valuation technique input Range to the input
EXFTEE DPEH
ZB--F+ZA=1-H HER BARE #E BABBZHRE
Financial assets at fair value Binomial mode Spot price 0.18 5% increase/decrease would
through profit or loss “RA A REER result in increase/decrease in
BATEABGZEREE fair value by 1%
R/ B EHATE
EF/THI%
Significant
unobservable
31 December 2021 Valuation technique input Range Sensitivity of fair value to the input
EDNGIE 1 RHES
“EC-ftZA=1+—H HERM AR [ BABE 2 BRE
Financial assets at fair value Binomial mode Spot price 0.20 5% increase/decrease would
through profit or loss ZEARS REE®’ result in increase/decrease in

BRFEAANRS EREE

fair value by 1%
R/ THR%H SR ATE
LA/ TH1%
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 41. ERMIAZAFERATFERE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) (&)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEBHR(E)

Financial assets measured at fair value (continued) BATFEGECeMEE(B)

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 during FRNE=LFHANFEEAEZ BT -

the year are as follows:

Financial assets

at fair value
through
profit or loss
RAVE
FFABRZ
tREE
HKS'000
TETT
1 January 2021 e 106,333
Loss recognised in the statement of profit or RERFRBRI T AR MR 2 B
loss included in other expenses (9,619
As at 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 R-B-—F+-fF=+—HAK=-Z=
—%¥—-H—-H 96,714
Gain recognised in the statement of profit or PSR ERL T A MU A RIS 2
loss included in other income and gains g 395
As at 31 December 2022 RZEBE-_—#F+—-F=+—H 97,109
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41. FAIRVALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

EWMITAZAFERAVER
R m)

ATFEBER(E)
BATEHEZ2BAE

41.

Financial liabilities measured at fair value

As at 31 December 2021 Fair value measurement using

KRZZE-_—4%+-HA=+—H FERUTEEETATETE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BTG ERABE SEAPAEE
2B B ABUR B ABR
(B—%) (F=%) (F=%) Fh
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T4 &R T A - 129 - 129
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FRN - REBEBEMS  E—RME

“RAVEMAEZELEEMNERS -
FZREMEEAEARBLH(ZFT——
FE) e

MEEREEEREREE
AEEZEESBTAGIATAR

M BEFERITEEUNRRE MRS
FEY - HFEMIAZIZAENE

measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into
or out of Level 3 for financial liabilities (2021: Nil).

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 42,
AND POLICIES
The Group's principal financial instruments, other than derivatives,
comprise interest-bearing bank borrowings and cash and cash
equivalents. The main purpose of these financial instruments is

to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various RAEREBEBEEEEER - A&

other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables, loan EEEHMZEeMEERBE &

receivables, other receivables, trade payables and other payables, FEREWERR - BB R - H b FE UK

which arise directly from its operations. IH - ERNERFREMENKIE - HE
BEEAEERESE -

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, principally AEBBZLTHATARS - H=E

interest rate swaps. The purpose is to manage the interest rate EENXEHEY  BHEBEELAEH

arising from the Group's sources of finance.

The main risks arising from the Group'’s financial instruments are
credit risk and liquidity risk. Management reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised
below. The Group’s accounting policies in relation to financial
instruments are set out in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from
its operating activities (primarily loans receivable).
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42,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties and related parties. It is the Group's policy that all
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad
debts is not significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, time deposit,
pledged deposits, trade receivables, financial assets included
in prepayments, other receivables, other assets and loan to an
associate included in the consolidated statement of financial
position represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
in relation to its financial assets. The Group has no other financial
assets which carry significant exposure to credit risk.

The investment in convertible bonds exposes the Group to
concentration of credit risk. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group assesses the financial position and performance of
the issuer of the convertible bonds and in view of sufficient net
assets and significant bank balance and cash of the issuer, the
management considers the default risk on the investment in
convertible bonds is not significant.

The ECL stage classification for the loan to an associate is
disclosed in not 39(b) to the financial statements. In addition, the
rest of the financial assets at amortised cost applying the general
approach were classified as Stage 1 in terms of ECLs as at 31
December 2022 and 2021.

42,

Br RS ERAR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-Z-_—F+-A=1+—ALFE

MHREREEREREEE)

FERR(E)
AEERGHEERAREERIFNS
=HTRBBMATETRS  c AEEZ
BRE FMEEEREEGIRSZZ
BEPULAETEEZERF U
AEEERBEERBRFREH R
SEPTES IRRRARETERX -

B = AR K 5 R ER
ARGAMBRABERZRE MRS
FEY THEXR  CERER R
WBRFR « ST AT FRIR - E At 8 K
B HMWEEZEMEE NIRRT
ERBIZEFRZEREAANEERES
MEEMAZEZERERRESE A
SEYELMEMHEENERERR
LEREE °

MR EFREBRAEEEREES
RRER - RB|EHR - AEEFEA
BEREFETAZHBERRNLES
ERNBETAZEEFERRBEHEERXR
ERTHEKBEES  BEERR A
BEREFRENEORBRILFEK

RHUTHMEARZEFNEMEEES
BRERD BRI B HRRMFE39(b) &
Eohsh R-B__FR_FT_——
F+-A=+—B A ERACE
BEME  BRA - RERTEER
BHEKAFEZRTSREEDER

E—FEE -

BRZERERAT | 2022 55 183



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS SRR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-_—F+-A=-t+—BLEFE

42, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk
The Group's treasury department closely monitors the Group's
cash flow positions on a regular basis to ensure that the cash flows
of the Group are positive. The Group aims to maintain flexibility
in funding by keeping committed credit lines available, obtaining
debentures from specific entities and borrowing loans from
banks.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted

42, HEEREREEAERBEE®)

RBE SRR
AEBZEBHPIERLTNERA
SEZBSRERN - LERANEE
ZHREREBLEH - AEEBBER
EARYABHAZEERERE @
HEBEREREZ RARTEAER
R BOBFHESTAE -

RIEA KR BE I RIAS

AR AKEE
BMEEREZRHAPEER

Z B RER

payments, is as follows: N
2022
—E-C
Lessthan 3 toless than 1to
3 months 12 months 5 years Total
3R ZE
AR 1288 R 15855 #at
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Trade payables FEfTERRR 6,984 173 = 7,157
Financial liabilities included in &t A B b T 5018 12
other payables and accruals EtERzeRmERE 10,369 - - 10,369
Lease liabilities HEEE 420 1,260 2,240 3,920
Interest-bearing STERITIEE
bank borrowings 13,922 41,312 1,484,707 1,539,941
31,695 42,745 1,486,947 1,561,387
2021
B —F
Less than 3 toless than (R)
3 months 12 months 5 years Total
MERE
3EAR 12EAR 1EE5F st
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000
FET FET FET FET
Trade payables JERTBRFR 1,354 - - 1,354
Derivative financial instruments T4 & EI T A 516 = = 516
Financial liabilities included in 5T A E b B4 ZE K
other payables and accruals EiAERzeRERE 5,360 - - 5,360
Lease liabilities HE&E 399 - - 399
Interest-bearing STERITIEE
bank borrowings 8,950 26,560 1,663,708 1,699,218
16,579 26,560 1,663,708 1,706,847
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br RS ERAR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-Z-_—F+-A=1+—ALFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 42. HMBEBREERERBE®E)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management BEAXRER
The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to REBEAEE TEBEZARER
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and EEBEBERKEZENTMBEREERENR
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business B AT ERHEEBRBSRABRE
and maximise shareholders’ value. B1E o
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments AEEEBEEEAREHE  THELE
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk SR REREE 2 RREREL
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the FHEE o EZ&?%&ﬁWEKﬁ% $’§
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment Bk mRRIKE2RER
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new A A% B 2R B & AR sl B 1T HT AR ZK%I
shares. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital PR ERIINEHEINE) B ANIREFTIR
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies Bz - —"F+-_A=+—HKZ=
or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 E_—F+_A=+—HLEFE " %i
December 2022 and 31 December 2021. KEE 7 BZ - BURSIEF I mE
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total NEEF A é%‘ﬁﬁtt? (B E#a%a
borrowings divided by total assets. Total borrowings include BRABERE)ERER - BERER
interest-bearing bank borrowings. The gearing ratios as at the end EiBEETEE - RE ;ﬁz H &8 H
of the reporting periods were as follows: ZEEABLZENT
2022 2021
=== —E—F
Note HK$’000 HKS000
Hiet FHETT FHEIT
Total borrowings EEMA%
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTEIRITIEE 27 1,450,071 1,516,793
Total assets BEMRE 3,616,583 3,715,223
Gearing ratio BEBENLE 40.1% 40.8%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS SRR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-_—F+-A=-t+—BLEFE

43. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 43. ERHBREE
As at the date of approval of the financial statements, in addition REBHRRIEBE - BB BEHmERM
to note 39(b) to the financial statements, there was no material FF39(b)Ah » REBRBEASFAHESE
subsequent event undertaken by the Group. IF o
44, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 44, AATZHBERRBR
COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the REFHABMSE R KRN B 2Bk
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: WmERZERIT
2022 2021
—E=-= T —F
HKS$’000 HKS$000
FETT FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EMBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR Z&KE 155,950 82,240
Total non-current assets EMBEELE 155,950 82,240
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Due from subsidiaries NG e 1,361,584 1,448,670
Other receivables and prepayments H g W 3R 08 K FE A IR 937 1,164
Time deposits TFHEATFER 124,580 =
Cash and cash equivalents HENBEESEED 458,277 658,516
Total current assets MENEEBE 1,945,378 2,108,350
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEAE
Other payables and accruals Hb A HIB R ETE R 2,215 1,683
Total current liabilities MEN A EBRE 2,215 1,683
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENEEFAE 1,943,163 2,106,667
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES REERRDEE 2,099,113 2,188,907
Net assets BEFE 2,099,113 2,188,907
EQUITY M
Share capital &N 1,277,888 1,277,888
Reserves (note) His () 821,225 911,019
Total equity EmMRE 2,099,113 2,188,907
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br RS ERAR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-Z-_—F+-A=1+—ALFE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 44, ARFZHHARREHER (5
COMPANY (continued)
Note: HaE -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: IATAARBIRERE -
Retained
profits/
Share  Share option Translation (accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses) Total
REEF
R RE BRERE B i (RFER) @st
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FHET FET FHET FET
At 1 January 2021 RNZZE-_—F—A—H 1,027,637 2,158 23,350 69,679 1,122,824
Loss and total comprehensive FREBR
loss for the year ZHEELE = = = (211,805) (211,805)
At 31 December 2021 and NI —F
1 January 2022 +-A=+—HEK
—E--_%—AF—H 1,027,637 2,158 23,350 (142,126) 911,019
Loss and total comprehensive loss & A E518 K&
for the year 2HEEBEE - - - (89,794) (89,794)
Transfer of share option RS AR S i 12 B2
reserve upon the lapsed of BB
share options - (2,158) - 2,158 -
At 31 December 2022 R_E__F
+=-A=+—H 1,027,637 - 23,350 (229,762) 821,225

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share options granted
which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the accounting policy
for share-based payments in note 2.4 to the financial statements. All these
outstanding share options lapsed during the year (2021: Nil), resulting in
HK$2,158,000 transferred from the share option reserve to retained profits.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45.

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 27 March 2023.

BIREFERED R HERRITEZ B
ZAFE #E—SFBERIBERERME24
BERRGONRZETEREE - TEZEN
RITEZERERFRAR(ZE=—F :
7)) - (2,158,000 7T H B A% A o A B A

EREEN -

HEEBT ISR ER
BEREREN_E-_=F=A=-++
BESESIEL REZE -
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LEMBYUE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling NTARASEEBETEMBFEE 2 EENR
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the BE BENMIFERESREE  B@EESNT)
published audited financial statements and re-presented/reclassified as R EE T8 o CEZVBHRE - WIELHE
appropriate, is set out below. EZEWREHOEERER -

Year ended 31 December

BEEt-A=t—-HLHEE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—E--f T ZZ-%TF T-NEF ZT-)\F
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
F#ET FEr FETL FET FET
RESULTS E3
REVENUE Wz 153,519 93,934 37,770 244,685 300,710
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX BT (E518) /S5 F (48,939) (169,871) (442,150) (27,059) 339,977
Income tax credit/(expense)  Fr5FiER,(FX) 7,823 5,508 109,276 (3,556) (1,121)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FORTHE YEAR  E R (18) /5 F (41,116) (164,363) (332,874) (30,615) 338,856
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING BE  BERFERES
INTERESTS
As at 31 December
R+=B=+—H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—B-CF T CZE-TF —T-NF ZT)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FHET FET FET FET FET
Total assets BEE 3,616,583 3,715,223 4,067,167 4,210,121 4,339,175

=pe
CRH
iy
TH

Total liabilities (1,685,937) (1,731,488) (1,855,326) (1,787,282) (1,843,148)

1,930,646 1,983,735 2,211,841 2,422,839 2,496,027
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